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As a world-class racing club, we act
continuously for the betterment of our society
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CORE VALUES
MBI

World-class Leadership
Uncompromising Integrity
Continuous Development

Serving the Community
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INTEGRATED BUSINESS MODEL

mEEERN

Through its integrated business model, the Club generates
economic and social value for our society.

In 2021/22, the Club returned 77% of its betting and lottery

revenue directly to Hong Kong in the form of tax payments
and charitable donations.

FEEBAGSEERN AIBEER
HEEE

2021/22%E EE2EBHANEEIER
HTT%MBER AN A EEZRERS -

Racing &
Racecourse
Entertainment

EERESRY

By continually developing the quality
of our world-class racing, we bring pride
to Hong Kong and provide a racecourse
spectacle filled with entertainment
and sporting energy.

SENERATBERNBETNHESR.
SRR AR I RBINES
BLEBIASBM-

Membership Club

S
Through their ownership of top-class y
thoroughbreds, and despite Hong Kong’s ZERHE

small horse population, our Members
make Hong Kong'’s racing success
globally possible.

BEEMHERATS B2HETE
SES|IATBREN SERES
BZBERER

Through our tax contribution,
charitable donations and proactive
community engagement, we work to
improve Hong Kong’s quality of life.

BIFBEBHAR BERAREERA
HERY BAREEBTRN
EEER

Responsible
Sports Wagering
& Lottery
BEHHIREEERES
Through our responsible and best-in-class
sports wagering and lottery services,

we help meet public demand, channelling
it away from illegal operators.
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

REBE

/ Amounts Bet by Customers

o\ FEEps
/
HKS$ billion
HEBET

HK$ billion
+EET

Amounts wagered
by local customers
iRER
REREE

114.8

Non-local bets
commingled with the
Club’s pools
EAFERMHN
FEAR M I EE
25.6

84% of the amounts bet locally
are returned as dividends,
rebates and lottery prizes
RIAERAREEH84%
BERIFREAYS
ERRESRE

/

Betting and
Lottery Revenue
BERESFEA

.| -4

Revenue
by Business

ESLTVON

HKS billion
TRBT

2.7

@ Horse Racing
%l%
Football Betting
EIKIER
Mark Six Lottery

o AT
=02

* Horse race betting revenue does
not include fees from commingling
partners and royalty income
BEEXBRATEBRESE LEEE
XTNERREFEYE



HKS$ billion
+EET

Revenue
Distribution
A 2 He

HK$ billion
+EBT

%

of the Club’s betting and lottery
revenue is returned to Hong Kong

SEEERRSBAPNT7REEESE

@ Betting Duty & Profits Tax to HKSAR
Government
A BRI TR BT A
BT R RS

@ Approved Donations to Charities Trust
MEASETESEMMNIBR
Lotteries Fund

@ Club Operations
FEREFR
Operating Surplus after

Donations to Charities Trust
BEZZETESENKCEAH

Club Contributions to Hong Kong
FEHEBNERM

Tax Contribution #i 5 = &

26.1

HKS$ billion
+EET

Horse Race Betting Duty
BEEEHR

Football Betting Duty
BIREEB

Lottery Duty
RESEEB

Profits Tax

MEH

Approved Donations B Z#{t B

Approved Donations to Community B &t ZZ185

6 6 Charities and community 292
L projects supported

> = y. =
HK$ billion ~ RORSERILEERA

TRBT

* HK$4.5 billion in regular donations and HK$2.1 billion
for pandemic-related initiatives and for HKSAR 25th
Anniversary community activities

ERRERRAEET  SRENEEIXSRBEREER
ERENEBISER L5 AFHLEED

Lotteries Fund Contribution #& % & & 5 &

0 - 9 HK$ billion

HEB T

Employment Created £l3E R £

Full-time and Part-time Jobs 2 & R {37

18,750

14.1

9.8

1.5

0.7
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Then. Now. Always.

This year Hong Kong marks twenty-five years since the establishment of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. Twenty-five years during which The Hong
Kong Jockey Club has become a world leader in the sport of horse racing and
substantially increased its contribution to the community. Today the Club is one of
Hong Kong’s most iconic and global brands.

SEREFBEBHITHEMRY 25 BF - BE 25 F » EBBEFEHHREALBES
BEHKT  AEERFE  BRFAEENEEENER - FE2SH > FEEHAR
REBZRD LR M2 — o

The Club marked the occasion at the 25th Anniversary Hong Kong Reunification Raceday
on 1 July, through the donation of HK$630 million to the Government to support over 60
community events, and through activities celebrating the Club’s contribution to Hong
Kong. A special highlight was the opening of the Hong Kong Palace Museum, its
construction made possible by the Club’s largest ever single donation. In the words of
our campaign theme Then. Now. Always. we are together with Hong Kong.
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25th Anniversary .4
HKJC Activities | @

EREREIENEE

FXL 25 B RYEED

25th Anniversary Hong Kong Reunification Raceday

EEAEDOE 25 BFEESH

Hong Kong

Palace Museum
BEANE XL BYE




Roadshow
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Mark Six Hong Kong
Reunification Snowball draw

ANEXLEEZE

25th Anniversary
HKJC Activities

BEEEREENHEE

B 25 BFERED

HKJC Series: Science in Art exhibition

[ERESEE2MARY ENEE|RE

"Drago Cavallo"
Art Showcase

["NEESS | ElifEm
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25th Anniversary
Community Events
AL 25 A
(Y4t & & B

Summer - Harbour
programme

[P 5 - #E7%

"Celebrations for All" gift packages Clansmen Culture exhibition
to 300,000 families in need [ BB
[HELDFRERE |58 @ 30 BEAE

p FERERBENE
e ; '

............

HKJC Series: The Big Eight - Dinosaur
Revelation exhibition
[BEEEFE2RMAY KX SHELEIRE

HKJC Series: The Road to the Baroque exhibition
[BEEERE2RMAY EECERR | RE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
F ERE

‘ This year marked twenty-five years since the establishment of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. We reached this
milestone having been hit, just months earlier, by the full force
of the pandemic. Yet, characteristically, Hong Kong showed

- its strength. The community rallied round and the Club stood

b together with them. We raced on, as we have done throughout
the pandemic, and in so doing returned a record HK$33.6
billion in tax, Lotteries Fund contributions and approved charity
donations. At HK$6.6 billion, our charities donations far exceeded
our regular donations in recent years. Perhaps more importantly,
racing provided a beacon of hope and a welcome source of
entertainment in difficult times.
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In a way this encapsulates what the Club has come to mean for
Hong Kong over the past twenty-five years and beyond. A steadfast
commitment, in good times and in bad, that horse racing will go on, and
that together we will build a stronger community for all.

Indeed, over that time the Club’s contribution has grown even stronger.
Most evidently the success of our world-class racing has brought not
only pride to Hong Kong but respect around the world. There is no
better measure of this than the election this year of our Chief Executive
Officer as Chair of the International Federation of Horseracing
Authorities, the highest body in world racing.

More importantly, world-class racing, and the global audience of millions
who watch and wager on it, has enabled the Club to significantly increase
its tax and charity contribution. Charity donations alone have more than
quadrupled over the last fifteen years, with the Club now amongst the top
ten charity donors in the world.

These donations have helped better the lives of millions of Hong

Kong people, not least through the community projects the Club has
launched together with its partners. They have also made possible
such landmarks as Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts and the
Hong Kong Palace Museum, funded by a HK$3.5 billion donation from the
Club, whose opening was one of the highlights of the 25th Anniversary.

The Club marked the occasion with the 25th Anniversary Hong Kong
Reunification Raceday on 1 July, a day we commemorate each year with
a special raceday. We also donated HK$630 million to the Government in
support of a wide range of 25th Anniversary community activities.

FIGHTING THE PANDEMIC
HER

None of this is to forget just how difficult the last two and a half years
have been for Hong Kong. We owe an enormous debt of gratitude to
health and social workers and to the many community organisations
who have reached out to help those in need.

The Club has provided its full support from the very beginning, rolling out
emergency measures to address immediate needs as well as initiatives
to build long-term resilience and to help the community adjust to the
new normal. In total, since February 2020 the Club’s Charities Trust has
approved over HK$2.9 billion in pandemic-related initiatives, with HK$1.4
billion approved this year. Cumulatively these have benefited more than
three million people to date. All of this is in addition to our regular charity
donations, where our support remains steadfast.

As | have said, this level of support is only possible because the Club
has kept going throughout the pandemic. Here | would like to thank
the HKSAR Government and Mainland authorities for their support.
Notably, with their help, the cross-boundary transport of horses to and
from Conghua Racecourse was quickly resumed following a month-long
suspension at the height of the fifth wave.
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But equally we must not lose sight of the Club’s achievement. Most
especially, having resumed something close to normal racing at the
beginning of the season, we responded immediately to the onset

of the fifth wave, reinstating and strengthening measures to protect
the community, our customers, and employees, and yet still keeping
racing going. This owed a great deal to our contingency planning and
also to the agility of our execution. Notably the international “racing
bubble” we established for the LONGINES Hong Kong International
Races was a triumph of organisation in very difficult circumstances
and enabled the Club to hold a most successful event.

This is testament not only to the resilience and resourcefulness of
the Club, but to a great deal of personal sacrifice. Horse owners who
continued to support racing, even though for an unprecedented 29
meetings they were unable to attend in person. Jockeys, trainers
and racing operations staff, who had to observe the most stringent
social distancing. And the 1,000-plus employees involved in racing
operations who daily submitted to rigorous testing.

The Club has done everything it can to alleviate the burden and to
compensate those who have sacrificed most. For example, we reduced
livery and transportation costs by 30% during the first four months

of 2022. We have also delayed the start of the new season until 11
September to give everyone a longer time to rest and recuperate.

To this | would like to add my personal thanks — from the heart - to
everyone in the racing community and to all our employees for their
support and understanding.

SEIZING OPPORTUNITIES
EEHME

Yet, whatever the challenges of the pandemic, the Club cannot and
should not let up. We must be proactive, we must make the most of
the challenges we face, and we must continue to plan, and act, for the
long term. In this regard the Club has seized every opportunity.

Last year | announced the Club’s new racing strategy, designed to
ensure a pipeline of world-class equine, riding and training talent for
Hong Kong. In line with this the Club has conducted a major review
of its prize money, which next season will rise 11.5% to HK$1.62
billion — the biggest single-season increase in the Club’s history.
Notably, to further nurture Hong Kong’s middle-distance talent, there
will be significant increases for middle-distance and staying races and
changes to the bonus structure for Privately Purchased Horses (PPs).

Also in line with this strategy, we took the opportunity of this year’s
50th anniversary of the Apprentice Jockeys’ School to announce the
formation of the Racing Talent Training Centre. Comprising both the
Apprentice Jockeys’ School and the Racing Talent School, the Centre
aims to significantly boost the quality of training provided to riding and
non-riding professionals in Hong Kong and the Mainland. To this end
it will draw on the resources of professional sports science and higher
education institutions, including The Education University of Hong
Kong.

/ Chairman’s Statement / EE$R% /
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The Club is also responding to changes in customer behaviour, not
least the way customers are increasingly choosing to interact with
the Club remotely via online and mobile channels — a trend which
has been accelerated by the pandemic. In fact the Club is already
well ahead of the trend, with 90% of wagering being via digital
channels and the Club now the largest Faster Payments System (FPS)
merchant in Hong Kong. As of the beginning of the season the entire
customer journey, from account opening, to funds transfer, data
analysis, wagering and customer service, venue booking and loyalty
engagement can be accessed online. All of this has enabled the
Club to maintain strong connectivity with its customers throughout
the pandemic.

Indeed, to strengthen our support for football customers, who contribute
a substantial proportion of wagering turnover, work has just been
completed on a new fixed odds wagering platform. This is just the latest
part of our new Customer Information and Wagering System, which will
provide the backbone of our technology support for customers going
forward.

This move online has also provided an opportunity to rethink the
Club’s retail offering. Selected Off-Course Betting Branches (OCBBs)
are being transformed from purely transaction-based betting shops
to experience-based venues, each one tailored to the needs of its
locality and demographic. The first two opened last year at Lohas
Park and North Point, the latter featuring a cha-chaan-teng style cafe.
This year saw the reopening of the Stanley Street branch, offering a
brand new food and beverage experience to match with its Central
location. More are to follow.

Above all, the Club has continued to develop the huge potential of
overseas markets that its world-class racing and technology have
opened up. Commingling, where the Club now has over 65 partners
in 25 countries and jurisdictions, generated 18.3% of racing turnover
for the season, in doing so earning substantial foreign revenue for
Hong Kong.

Through the World Pool, we are also fast-developing Hong Kong
into a hub for wagering on the best of world racing. With a total of
21 World Pool events, up from 12 last year, the Club’s World Pool
income was up 103.0%. Contributing to this were Hong Kong racing
fans, who thanks to the addition of further simulcast days, including
for the first time over the summer months, were able to enjoy more
of the world’s best racing.

This additional revenue, combined with the positive performance of
football betting and a recovery in the Mark Six lottery, saw overall
betting turnover for the year up 3.7% to HK$290.0 billion — a new
all-time record for the Club. In the context of very challenging
circumstances this was a highly creditable performance. All of this,
let us not forget, has enabled the Club to earn even more tax and
charity revenue for Hong Kong.
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BUILDING STRONGER
COMMUNITIES TOGETHER

ROEE

Where the Club truly seized the moment, however, was in its support
for the community, the Charities Trust approving HK$6.6 billion in
donations. This far exceeds the HK$4.5 billion it has donated in each
of the last two years. Though this required the Club to draw on its
reserves, in the context of the pandemic we felt this was entirely
justified.

As | have said, this included HK$1.4 billion to address the impact of the
pandemic, bringing the Club’s total contribution since its beginning to
over HK$2.9 billion.

In particular we responded rapidly and in scale to the fifth wave,
launching new initiatives as well as expanding existing ones. Among
them was an expansion of the Jockey Club Food Assistance
Programme, which to date has supplied over 9.3 million meals to
individuals economically impacted by the pandemic. Through a series
of COVID-19 rehabilitation and recovery programmes, we are helping
those suffering from long COVID, including through digitalised self-
management. And a mental health programme is helping students
cope with the stress of home learning and the overall impact of the
pandemic on their lives.

| should also mention the outstanding support provided by Club staff,
who at the height of the fifth wave manned hotlines at Tin Shui Wai
Telebet Centre in support of the Government’s anti-epidemic efforts.
Club volunteers also played their part, including to pack anti-epidemic
supplies and rapid antigen test kits for distribution to the community.

Equally important, however, was to ensure that our ongoing commitment
to the community was fully maintained. Most especially the four focus
areas of our refreshed charities strategy: Positive Ageing & Elderly

Care; Children & Youth Development; Healthy Community; and Talent &
Capacity Building.

Fundamental to this strategy are multi-year Trust-initiated Projects
(TIPS), initiated in collaboration with community partners. Fourteen are
currently in progress, each one designed to pilot new service models
and to bring fresh thinking to the social sector. Some are already
yielding positive results, helping to move the needle in vital areas of
community need.

/ Chairman’s Statement / EE$R% /
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For example, responding to Hong Kong’s rapidly ageing society,

the Jockey Club Age-friendly City Project has helped all 18 districts
develop action plans to promote age-friendliness, with Hong Kong
attaining higher scores on seven of the World Health Organization’s
eight domains of an age-friendly city. CoolThink@JC is helping

to develop the digital creativity of primary school children and to
mainstream computational thinking education in the school curriculum.
JC A-Connect: Jockey Club Autism Support Network, which has
pioneered a new model of school-based support for children with
Autism Spectrum Disorder, has been mainstreamed within the school
system as of the beginning of the 2021/22 school year. And the Jockey
Club End-of-Life Community Care Project is helping to pioneer a new
model of compassionate and personalised care for the terminally ill.

These are just four out of fourteen projects. To which we can add all
the other charity and community projects the Club has supported
over the past year, some 292 in all. On top of these the many
thousands we have supported over the decades. This, | hope, gives
some sense of the scale and depth of the Club’s commitment to the
betterment of our society.

It was to celebrate the achievements of our partners, but also to

instil some positive energy into the community, that we launched our
Building Stronger Communities Together campaign at the height of
the fifth wave. We wanted to honour the heroes who are fighting the
pandemic, but also to celebrate the unsung heroes who have worked
for years to build a better and stronger community. To us, this was the
most inspiring message of all.

MEMBERSHIP
SEEH

Understandably, the pandemic also continued to be a major concern
for our members this year. The Club has made every effort to protect
their health and safety, as well that of employees. Unfortunately this
necessitated the closure of Hong Kong clubhouses and non-raceday
dining venues at the height of the fifth wave, with the periodic closure
of individual facilities thereafter as necessary.

| sincerely hope members will understand the rationale behind these
closures, and also that protecting racing, and the vital support it provides
to our community, must come first. As a gesture of appreciation we
have provided spending vouchers to all members.

| should also stress that in the same spirit of progress and seizing
opportunities, the Club has continued to work hard on behalf of
members. We fully understand that members are the heart of the Club
and are essential to its world-class racing and community commitment.

With this in mind, we continue to invest in facilities and programmes
aimed at recruiting the members we need to carry forward our purpose.
Leading the way is Happy Valley New Clubhouse, which this year saw
the much-anticipated opening of its social hub, The Eighth. Meanwhile
at Happy Valley Old Clubhouse we were pleased to open the new
Hilltop Paddock and we look forward to the reopening of the Hilltop
Gym and the Hilltop Pool.
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/ Chairman’s Statement / EE$RE /

The Club also continues to invest in members’ facilities at both

racecourses as part of a rolling programme of racecourse revitalisation.
This season saw the reopening of the Topaz restaurant at Happy Valley
after extensive renovation. Next year we will unveil the new members’
arrival experience and car park at Sha Tin. The former will give a

totally new look to the members’ entrance, while the latter will provide
significant additional capacity.

MOVING FORWARD
BRI AT

While | believe we have every reason to be proud of the Club’s
achievement over the past year, | also believe it is prudent to be alert to
the wider challenges ahead. Most obviously the pandemic will continue
to bring uncertainty to our operating and business environment. Whilst
to date we have been highly successful in maintaining racing and
wagering operations, this has added to the Club’s costs, which we
must factor in. In common with other companies, the Club’s investment
portfolio has also been impacted by uncertainty in the macroeconomic
environment, not least due to geopolitical tensions.
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We must also face up to illegal gambling. The fact is that it has changed out
of all recognition over the last five years. Facilitated by online and mobile
technology, digital payment systems and cryptocurrencies, illegal operators
are siphoning huge amounts of money out of Hong Kong, earning profits

of at least HK$14 billion to HK$15 billion a year, and almost certainly much
more. A lot of this is on sports not currently legally available for betting

in Hong Kong. The Club is actively working to raise awareness at every
level. But the public must understand that illegal gambling is not the Club’s
problem alone, but affects everyone in our city. It undermines the rule of law,
fuels criminal activity, and encourages uncontrolled gambling. It also reduces
the tax return to the Government. Much more needs to be done to combat
it, and quickly.

| am so concerned about illegal gambling because there are so many
positives ahead for Hong Kong if the Club is permitted to thrive. As

| have mentioned we have only just begun to tap the rich potential

of global markets through commingling and the World Pool. As we
strengthen our world-class racing, wagering and technology, and
further develop our partnerships around the world, this can only grow
in size and significance.

Above all there is the opportunity of the Greater Bay Area, leveraging
our triangle of racecourses at Sha Tin, Happy Valley and Conghua to
further develop the Club’s racing brand while also contributing to the
development of a world-class equine industry.

The foundation for this is the Framework Cooperation Agreement
the Club signed with the Guangzhou Municipal Government in 2021
for the joint development of the Guangzhou-Hong Kong Racing
Economic Cluster. This will bring the Club’s world-class racing to
Conghua Racecourse on a regular basis within the next four years.
Planning is already underway to construct a grandstand and other
support facilities.

The benefits are multiple. In the immediate term, Hong Kong will be able
to further expand its racing programme across all three racecourses.
Longer term there is the prospect of developing a fully-fledged equine
industry and even of developing a breeding industry. All of this is only
possible because of the Greater Bay Area, which surely presents the
greatest opportunity for the Club in the modern era of racing.

This year, taking into consideration the bigger picture, | will be stepping
down from the Board of Stewards after sixteen years of service. It has
been a great privilege and a real pleasure to serve alongside my fellow
Stewards. | always remember that as “Stewards” we are just that —
individuals charged with taking good care of the Club on behalf of our
members and of the community we serve.

The last two years have undoubtedly been the most challenging. Yet
as | look at the Club today | am confident it has never been better
equipped to handle the challenges or to seize the opportunities that
lie ahead. Indeed not only is our fighting spirit undiminished, but it has
been burnished by the many challenges we have faced.
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I would like to thank all the Board Members | have worked with for
their support and encouragement. | would also like to extend my
sincere thanks to Mrs Margaret Leung, who retired from the Board in
June, to Dr Rosanna Wong Yick Ming, who will retire in August, and
to Mr Richard Tang Yat Sun, who is stepping down at the conclusion
of this year’s Annual General Meeting. | know | speak for all my fellow
Stewards in saying how much we have appreciated their wisdom
and wise counsel. It is also my pleasure to welcome The Honourable
Bernard Charnwut Chan, who joined the Board of Stewards in June.

| also owe a great debt to our management team so ably led by our
Chief Executive Officer, Mr Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges. Winfried
has done an extraordinary job. Amongst all his other achievements,
he has guided the Club through over two years of the pandemic while
still driving forward our business development and world-class racing.
My sincere thanks to him.

My sincere thanks also to the Club’s employees, whose pride in working
for the Club will always be one of my most pleasurable memories. The
Club is lucky indeed to have such dedicated staff.

| also appreciate greatly the support provided by both the HKSAR
Government and by Mainland authorities for the Club. The benefits

of this have been manifest throughout the pandemic, but our friends
and partners in Government have always been of huge assistance in
matters large and small. | have no doubt that this excellent relationship
will continue.

Likewise | am sure we will continue to enjoy fruitful relationships with
our many business partners in Hong Kong and overseas as we further
expand the Club’s global brand.

Finally, | would like to express my personal thanks to our members
for their support, our Voting Members for their guidance, and all our
employees for their outstanding effort on behalf of the Club and our
community.

Philip N L Chen
Chairman

27 July 2022
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communities

Chief Executive Officer
Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
TEAR B

Audit; Property; Security and Integrity;
Corporate Strategy and Business Planning
D WIS s RERHEEEE
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Executive Director, Charities and
Community

Leong Cheung
RERUESEHTHE RE

Charities

ZESHH

Executive Director, Corporate Affairs
Raymond C Y Tam
DAREBHITHE BER

Public Affairs (Racing, Wagering

Communications and Issue Management);

Public Affairs (Corporate and Charities
Communications); External Affairs; Mainland Affairs
DHERE (EEROIEHN - FEEE)
DAHEBFI (CERBSEN)  HHEHD
Rt =T ED

Executive Director, CRC and

Dual Precinct CAPEX Projects
Richard A K Tsiang
ARt ERIE B MITHE E=El

Conghua Racecourse; Corporate Programme
Management Office; Dual Precinct
Operations Development
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Acting Executive Director, Customer
and International Business
Development

Michael Fitzsimons

EEEF BRI TISHITHEE STHEX

Football Trading and Marketing; Lottery Marketing;
Customer Segments; Customer Digital Experience;
Betting Control and Customer Operations;
Mainland Co-operation (Sports Lottery, National
Fitness and Guangzhou HKJC Event Management
Company); Commingling Development;

Retail and Telebet Services
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Executive Director, Finance
David H Fan
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Finance; Investment Office; Treasury;
Strategic Procurement;

Commercial & Contract Management;
Logistics and Transport
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Executive Director, Information
Technology and Sustainability

Ramez Younan
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IT Enterprise Solutions; Information Security;

IT Operations, Systems Assurance & Shenzhen
Technology Centre; IT Digital & Channels Solutions;
IT Sports Wagering Solutions; IT Racing Wagering
& Lottery Solutions; IT Strategy and Governance;
Sustainability
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Executive Director, Legal and
Compliance

Shella S C Ng
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Legal Services; Corporate Secretariat; Compliance
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Executive Director, Membership,
Strategic Marketing and Branding
Anthorlx Ingham

BB mBRBERmEEEMTHE
BER

Hospitality Services & Operations; Membership
Services; Member Experience Marketing;
Member CRM & Intelligence;

Mainland Membership Development;

Hong Kong Membership Development;
Strategic Marketing and Branding;

MSMB Business Planning;

Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts
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Executive Director, People and
Organisational Development

Lake G W.
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Talent Acquisition; Reward and Operations;
Talent Management and Learning;

Business Facing; Organisational Design and
Analytics; Transformation Communications
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Executive Director, Racing
Andrew C Harding
ERERHTREEER

Dual Site Stables Operations & Owners

Services; Equestrian Affairs; Equine Welfare
Research Foundation; Farrier Services;
Handicapping, Race Planning & International
Racing; Programme Management Office, Racing;
Raceday Operations, Tracks and Racing Facilities;
International and Racing Regulation; Racing
Operations; Racing Product, Marketing and
Sponsorship; Broadcasting Operations; Racing
Control; Racing Development; Racing
Laboratory; Racing Registry; Veterinary
Regulation, Welfare & Biosecurity Policy;
Veterinary Clinical Services
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
THRERE

‘ This past year the Club and the community we serve
was challenged as never before by the pandemic.
Yet despite these challenges, the Club achieved
record results thanks to its resilient and agile
response.
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/ Chief Executive Officer’s Statement / {TEUAFIRE /

Overall wagering and lottery turnover for the racing season was a
record HK$290.1 billion. The Group’s total revenue for the season, at
HK$46.3 billion, was up 7.5% on 2020/21. This enabled the Club to
contribute a record HK$33.6 billion in tax, Lotteries Fund contributions
and approved charity donations. Charities donations, at HK$6.6 billion,
were the second highest in the Club’s history and included HK$1.4
billion to address the impact of the pandemic and HK$630 million to
support community events marking the 25th Anniversary of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR).
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TWENTY-FIVE YEARS OF WORLD-CLASS EXCELLENCE

WRREAR BRDA1T25H

The 25th Anniversary of the HKSAR was also an opportunity to reflect
on how far the Club and Hong Kong racing have come over the last
twenty-five years.

Twenty-five years ago Hong Kong had no international Group 1 races.
Now we have 12, eight of which featured in the latest LONGINES
World’s Top 100 Group/Grade 1 Races. Twenty-five years ago we had
no horses in the international rankings. Now they are a regular fixture,
with 15-25 on average each year in the LONGINES World’s Best
Racehorse Rankings. All of this has been achieved by a racehorse
population comprising just 0.7% of the global total.

Hong Kong also stages some of the world’s flagship racing events. The
LONGINES Hong Kong International Races are now widely recognised
as one of the turf championships of world racing, while the LONGINES
International Jockeys’ Championship is one of the world’s premier
jockey competitions. Meanwhile our newest international raceday, FWD
Champions Day, has a fast-expanding global profile.

The respect Hong Kong racing commands is nowhere better
demonstrated than in the senior roles Club officials now occupy on
international racing bodies. Notably the chairmanship of both the
International Federation of Horseracing Authorities (IFHA) and the Asian
Racing Federation (ARF) and the presidency of the International Horse
Sports Confederation. Club officials also serve as Executive Director of
the IFHA and Secretary General of the ARF.
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None of these achievements would have been possible without the
Club’s commitment to world-class racing, or without its significant
investment in people, racing product, racecourses, membership
facilities and technology.

To incentivise owners to invest in top thoroughbreds, the Club has
raised prize money by almost 90% over the last ten years. Today it
offers some of the most competitive prize money in world racing.

Next season prize money will rise by 11.5% to HK$1.62 billion, the
biggest increase in the Club’s history. The four LONGINES Hong Kong
International Races alone will offer HK$110 million, meaning that Hong
Kong will continue to stage the world’s richest Group 1 races on turf
over 1200m, 1400m, 1600m and 2000m.

Owners and trainers also have the benefit of world-class training and
horse care facilities, not least following the Club’s strategic investment
in Conghua Racecourse, which continues to deliver impressive results.
This season 134 horses training at Conghua immediately prior to racing
won a total of 174 races, a strike rate of 29%.

Hong Kong’s competitive racing has likewise attracted some of the
world’s top riding and training talent. This includes such leading
overseas jockeys as Zac Purton and Joao Moreira, but increasingly
also talent from within Hong Kong’s own ranks. This season’s
champion trainer, Frankie Lor, is a graduate of the Club’s Apprentice
Jockeys’ School, which this year celebrated its 50th anniversary. The
new Racing Talent Training Centre, launched this year, will further
support the development of riding and non-riding professionals.

Through a relentless focus on customer-centricity, including a HK$7.1
billion transformation of Sha Tin and Happy Valley racecourses, the
Club is providing a high-quality environment to match the world-class
quality of its racing. This coming November will see the completion of a
new members’ arrival experience at Sha Tin Racecourse together with
a 500-space car park. Members are also benefiting from a significant
investment in clubhouse facilities, the flagship being Happy Valley

New Clubhouse. Meanwhile, we have embarked on a transformation

of Off-Course Betting Branches, which will see selected branches
transformed from transaction to experience-based environments.

Fundamental to the Club’s customer-centricity is wagering technology,
where our online and mobile services provide unmatched connectivity,
convenience and data content. As of the beginning of this season,
every step of the customer journey has been digitalised, with over
90% of transactions now online. All of the Club’s wagering technology
has been developed in-house and now serves two million account
customers, processing up to 10,000 transactions per second.

Globally only the Club’s system can handle such volumes of wagering
transactions.
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/ Chief Executive Officer’s Statement / {TEUAFIRE /

Through our HK$4.2 billion Customer Information and Wagering
System the Club is now laying the foundation for future growth. The
new fixed odds wagering platform, launched just after the end of the
racing season, is the latest release to be rolled out.

These and other investments in the Club’s asset health have seen

the Club’s operating assets grow from HK$5.1 billion in 1997/98 to
HK$19.7 billion in 2021/22. Indeed they have not only enabled the
Club to sustain and grow its business and brand, but to more than
double its tax and charity contribution to the community, from HK$15.2
billion in 1997/98 to HK$33.6 billion in 2021/22. Charity donations have
quadrupled over the same period, from around HK$1 billion to HK$4.5
billion in the last few years. The Club now consistently ranks among the
top ten charity donors in the world.

This level of support reflects the Club’s strong commitment to its
purpose — the betterment of our society — and the unique integrated
business model which makes it possible. As a not-for-profit
organisation, the Club donates 90% or above of its operating surplus
after tax each year to its Charities Trust. These donations make the
work of the Charities Trust possible. This year alone, the Trust approved
HK$6.6 billion to help 292 charities and community projects, with
HK$1.4 billion specifically to address the impact of the pandemic.

With the help of these additional funds, the Club has been able to
maintain wide-ranging support for the community while at the same
time providing in-depth and proactive support for four key focus areas:
Positive Ageing & Elderly Care, Children & Youth Development, Health
Community, and Talent & Capacity Development.

They have also made possible the Club’s support for major landmark
projects. These include Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts, the
largest heritage conservation and revitalisation project ever undertaken
in Hong Kong; CUHK Medical Centre, Hong Kong’s first “smart
hospital”; and the Hong Kong Palace Museum, which opened in 2022
and is the Club’s largest single charity donation to date.
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HARVESTING THE RESULTS OF OUR GLOBAL RACING

BRAND
RRESMmEERRESR

Turning in detail to our business performance over the past year | want
not only to present the results in detail, but also to analyse what has
contributed to their success and will drive their further growth in the
years ahead.

Looking firstly at racing, turnover for the season was up 3.0% to
HK$140.5 billion. The Club returned a record HK$14.1 billion in racing
betting duty to the Government, up 2.8% on last season, with the
Club’s income after betting duty being HK$6.3 billion, up 4.7% on last
season.

With turnover from Hong Kong customers on Hong Kong racing down
1.4% due to the temporary closure of OCBBs during the fifth wave, the
main driver of growth was overseas customers commingling into the
Club’s pools. Total commingling turnover was up 11.1% to HK$25.7
billion, comprising 18.3% of total racing turnover and generating
income of HK$1.2 billion, up 18.1%. Once again this underlines the
huge benefits of the Club’s world-class racing strategy, which has
enabled the Club to open up and harvest new overseas markets for its
racing product.

Also contributing to this positive result was simulcasting, which has
been another success story thanks to the Government’s permission

to increase the number of simulcast days to 37 per year, and also to
permit simulcasts in the off-season. With Hong Kong fans able to enjoy
more of the world’s racing, simulcast turnover was up 47.9% to HK$9.4
billion, with income up 38.4% to HK$346 million.

Undoubtedly the brightest prospect for future growth is the World
Pool, where in just three years Hong Kong has become the global

hub for wagering on international racing events. Our technology and
pool liquidity have been essential to this innovation, which is now a
significant revenue stream. This year we offered 21 World Pool events,
up from 12 last year, including such major additions as Irish Champion
Stakes Day, the three days of York’s Ebor Festival and Oaks Day. Total
turnover was up 82% to HK$6.2 billion. Royal Ascot, where the World
Pool first began in 2019, saw turnover up 13% to HK$1.8 billion.

HREEMBE-FHEBRE  RERTEHF
MESREES  BE O HMEADIERE
RENRE - URFBAREEE - —ER
HIEZE -

BRARBBEY  SENEREFRITELT
3.0%E1,405B8 T - FERBFHMNNE
BEEBERLHEN 1418 T BEFEM
2.8% ; MEMHBREREHRHWARZE3EE
T BEFERATY

RS MBI RS IR B B SRR
REAEEBEEN A EEREETE1.4% ;
EERIENTEERHHRARIESE
EBRMHBINEE - FR - ESTMREER
ZBEAH11.1%E2557EB T hEBRTHEE
18.3% ' BESER12EBTHRA - EFH
18.1% B—XRRTEBHRAFNESSE
B R EENESERKIERENTTT
5 RMEVSEEMRER -

BEMAILEEN S — AR FERRH -
BREAMESSEE - FENRTEREER
BHEEMEI7TH » LHERNEZHEHNE
BRESINES  SENBFEREEBEMMA
BRE BEBRTRANEESZHEM
BE - FA - WFERRIBELI479%E
94fZB T - MESHIEREWARI L 38.4%
2 3{84,6008EB T

RREEBBENNEY  FRRESEI

BB - BE=FR  HECEERABER

EENE2RELEE - 2HRESTRRER

FEMN—REARR - MEMESHRHER

FMBEENERRMER T D ER - HM

RENEHRESHHBES R EF128EM

ESF210 - EPEENEZEAARESA
PINEMMESERERSA AR FRES
BI=RES  UREESHAER - £
RIRESFMNBIRIE LA 82% E62(88
7 B ERELABERROEEEIEMN13%

Z18/E8 T - WEMAFEN2019FMHE
RESFOWEEER -



/ Chief Executive Officer’s Statement / {TEUAFIRE /

Turning to football, betting turnover for the year was up 2.6% to
HK$143.8 billion. This generated HK$9.8 billion in income after
betting duty for the Club, up 6.5% on last year, with the same amount
being returned in betting duty to the Government. This very positive
performance, which exceeded last year’s record turnover, was a
result of well-managed trading operations supported by our artificial
intelligence (Al) algorithm. This substantial additional income has
enabled the Club to invest much more in its business development,
which leads ultimately to a higher return to the community.

The Mark Six lottery rebounded this year after its lengthy suspension
last year due to COVID-19 preventive measures, with turnover up
72.6% to HK$5.8 billion. This generated lottery duty and Lotteries
Fund contributions of HK$2.4 billion, with the Club’s net commission
being HK$351 million. Partly because of the pandemic many Mark
Six customers have migrated to digital channels, which are now
responsible for 63% of lottery turnover. This made it viable to offer the
Mark Six online only during the closure of OCBBs.

Income from membership catering operations was up 40% to HK$557
million, reflecting a recovery to 60% of normal business levels, up from
less than 41% in 2020/21. This helped to narrow the operating deficit
as food and beverage operations gradually recover from the impact of
the pandemic.

In terms of investment income, the Club’s portfolio performed resiliently
in the face of an extremely volatile global market. Nonetheless, with
both global equity and bond markets falling, the Club incurred an
investment loss of HK$725 million, while the Charities Trust lost

HK$1.2 billion, reflecting mark-to-market changes in the value of their
portfolios over the past year. This is the Club’s first negative result since
2015/16 and follows the record return of HK$8.8 billion for the Club
and HK$10.9 billion for the Trust in 2020/21. The Club takes a long-
term perspective on its investment strategy and has moved proactively
to reduce its risk exposure in the light of recent developments.
Nevertheless, as with all investment portfolios, the Club’s funds are
susceptible to market volatility and mark-to-market losses are to be
expected.

In total, the Club achieved a record EBITDA of HK$8.7 billion. The
Club’s operating surplus after tax, at HK$5.5 billion, was slightly down
on 2020/21 due to pandemic-related expenses.
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STRENGTHENING OUR RESILIENCE
RABEEN

The achievements of the past year did not come easily however.
Instead they were the result of the Club’s systematic management of its
racing and wagering operations throughout the pandemic, drawing on
the support of all 18,000 full-time and part-time employees and most
especially the racing community. Guiding our response have been the
core principles we adopted from the beginning of the pandemic — that
nothing we do should create a public health risk and nothing should
put the health and safety of customers, employees, licensed persons
or members at risk.

Responding to the resurgent fifth wave, the Club strengthened its
“racing bubble” and closed-loop protective measures. In particular we
instituted daily PCR testing for 1,000-plus jockeys, trainers, officials,
stables staff and other employees. Together with daily risk assessments
by our Business Continuity Committee, stringent social distancing
measures, rigorous tracking and tracing of potential contacts, and
immediate isolation of positive cases, this enabled the Club to maintain
a full racing programme. More importantly it did so at no risk to public
health in either Hong Kong or the Mainland.

Most especially, thanks to our “international racing bubble”, designed
using similar principles as for the 2022 Beijing Winter Olympics, we
were able to stage the LONGINES Hong Kong International Races and
LONGINES International Jockeys’ Championship in December, with
eight of the world’s best jockeys and 19 world-class horses coming

to Hong Kong to participate. This was a remarkable achievement,
executed by cross-divisional teams with a great “can-do” spirit and in
full compliance with health regulations.

| would like, once again, to express my deepest thanks to horse
owners, jockeys, trainers, front-line racing personnel and all of the
Club’s employees for their support in maintaining racing throughout
the year. Also my sincere appreciation to the HKSAR Government and
Mainland authorities for their trust in the Club and for their outstanding
support from the very beginning of the pandemic.
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/ Chief Executive Officer’s Statement / {TEUAFIRE /

The pandemic has also had a significant impact on our membership
services, leading, at the height of the fifth wave, to the closure of all
clubhouses and racecourse non-raceday restaurants. This was a very
difficult decision, but given the size of our operations, encompassing
48 restaurants and 2,200 staff, it was simply not possible to keep them
open at a time when Hong Kong was registering over 70,000 infections
per day. Indeed a significant infection cluster would have jeopardised
the Government exemption which enabled the Club to continue racing.
In the circumstances there was simply no other alternative.

As the Chairman has pointed out, however, the Club has continued

to work hard on behalf of members. Notably the opening of The

Eighth marked the completion of the last phase of Happy Valley New
Clubhouse. Work also progressed on the repair and replacement of
timber roofing at Happy Valley Old Clubhouse. This paved the way

for the opening of the Hilltop Paddock in January. The Club has also
taken the opportunity to upgrade the swimming pools and gym and

to refurbish the Six Furlong Express, which will be replaced by a new
poolview lounge and a teenager-friendly area — all scheduled to open in
November 2022.
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SUSTAINING OUR GLOBAL RACING BRAND FOR THE

BETTERMENT OF SOCIETY

ZERREFmE HHIEREXGFHS

Looking forward, it is clear that the pandemic will continue to challenge
the Club and that we must continue to plan accordingly. Nonetheless,
long term | remain highly confident about the Club’s future. The Club’s
world-class racing and wagering is strong and stable and provides a
solid base on which to further expand our footprint overseas through
commingling and the World Pool.

Above all there is the unique opportunity of the Greater Bay Area as
articulated in our Racing Vision 2030 outlined in my statement in last
year’s annual report. At the heart of this strategy is the Club’s triangle
of racecourses at Sha Tin, Happy Valley and Conghua. Our aim is to
leverage them not only to sustain and grow the Club’s world-class
racing brand but to develop a world-class equine industry, bringing
economic development and employment to the Greater Bay Area.
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The foundation for this is the National Equine Industry Development
Plan (2020-2025) jointly published by the Ministry of Agriculture and
Rural Affairs and the General Administration of Sport, which gives
prominent coverage to both equestrian sport and horse racing as

a sport. The Club’s plans for equine industry development within

the Greater Bay Area were further endorsed in the HKSAR Chief
Executive’s Policy Address in 2020. This led in May 2021 to the
signing of a Framework Cooperation Agreement between the Club
and the Guangzhou Municipal Government for the joint development
of the Guangzhou-Hong Kong Racing Economic Cluster. Among its
main provisions, the Club will host regular race meetings at Conghua
Racecourse from the 2025/26 season, construct a grandstand to
accommodate spectators, and expand stabling and training facilities.

Accordingly we have made excellent progress over the past year,
completing the design of the grandstand at Conghua, with sustainability
being the guiding principle. We are also making progress on expanding
the stable capacity to accommodate up to 1,000 horses, which will
further support Conghua’s training role. Everything is on track for racing
to begin at Conghua in 2025/26.

| should also mention that while the Greater Bay Area is the Club’s main
focus, we will continue to seek opportunities to support equine industry
development across the Mainland as a whole. For example through
assisting with professional and veterinary training.

Turning to Hong Kong, the expansion of Conghua provides the
opportunity for a much-needed upgrade of training and stables
facilities at Sha Tin. A HK$2.2 billion renovation programme will begin
in 2023. We will also continue to invest in the racecourses, including to
provide differentiated experiences for Gen Y and Gen Z customers.

To guide these investments and to provide a better, more tailored and
more individualised customer experience, we will strengthen the Club’s
customer-centricity culture and capability. To provide a more holistic
and integrated view of customers a new Customer Strategy, Insights
and Innovation Division will be created, while wagering products will be
anchored in a new Wagering Products Division.

HEERREENEEENTHERESA
REERHGN(EESEEERERE (2020-
2025)) ; BRI ARIRARSIESNES
EE - HEREITHREN2020F RS
E—SEETERERAEEEEERREYN
2 BRERESEEMNHBRFE2021F58
SRIEREIERZ  RAEEREEEEEE
KRB - HENEMREEEEE202526FE
RERICESEREREREES YEEE
hIEEBRES  UREREER IR

BMEBE—FIRERIFER - HPREN

BRFIUMFERREAEERA > WE5%
RERETITIE - RIS EETERBELIR
BN E, 000 F T » # —H F 3R
B TBER - STEAEIECDS L8E -
AT 2025/26 FEE R L RPES o

BB AEY  BATEURNBERRRE
o BEMNESEERAEMES B
HEEXERE  BRERUEREREES

NE o

ZERERLEH BEERCBEENER BY
BUBDPHENIIREEEREMREMENE
IR BEIREE222EE8T 512023
FET - AT SEHEREMESSNERRE
BB EEAYHR I R[ZHR | W EEKES
RENETRSITHIEEE o

S - HAE SRR BE [ UERAR K
ERESHBERBE KT - ETERYHERL

MREIRE - FNAETRAERE B/

DREACHERISEESR - BETHEBRIFF
2 BRI R ERE | UREEEEE
KERNIERSERE]  BREZEAR

BHEERERE



/ Chief Executive Officer’s Statement / {TEUAFIRE /

One vital area that requires more attention is climate change. As the
high temperatures this summer have underlined, this is an issue that
must be addressed with immediacy, both to mitigate the effects but
above all to reduce carbon emissions. The Club has already made
progress towards this goal. This year carbon emissions were down
4.3% on 2018/19 pre-pandemic levels and 10.4% down on our
baseline year of 2009/10, a significant achievement given our business
growth, including the opening of Conghua Racecourse.

Nonetheless, a great deal more needs to be done if Hong Kong is to
achieve the Government’s target of carbon neutrality by 2050. The
Club has already pledged its support as part of the Carbon Neutrality
Partnership. We have also embarked on several new initiatives to
further reduce our carbon and environmental footprint. These include a
significant expansion of solar energy use in Hong Kong and Conghua
and, in a first for the equine industry, a biochar plant to process the
Club’s largest waste stream of stables waste. Currently in a pilot phase
the aim is to scale up the plant to process all of the Club’s stable waste.
Meanwhile, at Happy Valley Racecourse the Club will shortly be using
a blend of municipal and harvested water for track irrigation. These

are just some of the initiatives in progress, which are fully detailed
elsewhere in this report.

As we come to the end of another demanding but highly productive
year, it is my great pleasure to thank our Board of Stewards. Under the
leadership of our Chairman Mr Philip Chen and Deputy Chairman Mr
Michael Lee they have provided outstanding guidance, support and
especially trust to steer the Club through one of the most challenging
times in its history. | would especially like to thank our Chairman,

who despite having to contend with the most difficult phase of the
pandemic has been a tireless advocate and cheerleader for the Club
and its employees over the past two years. On behalf of the Board of
Management and all our employees, my sincere and deepest thanks to
the Chairman and Stewards.
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I would also like to thank the Club’s members for their understanding
and support over the past year. Again | deeply regret the inconvenience
caused by the various closures. But | echo the Chairman in saying that
| hope every member will understand that the unique role the Club
plays in Hong Kong means that racing, and the vital support it provides
to the community, must always come first.

No less essential to the Club’s achievement has been the Board of
Management, whose members have shown exceptional agility in
maintaining the Club’s operations and high standard of service in the
most difficult of circumstances. Last, but absolutely not least, | would
like to thank our employees. Overcoming every challenge they have
worked with dedication, and with heart, truly living up to our spirit of
“One Club, One Team, One Vision”. With such an outstanding team

| have every confidence that the Club is more than ready for the
challenges and opportunities that lie ahead.

Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
Chief Executive Officer

27 July 2022
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Hong Kong raced on this season, overcoming the
challenges of the pandemic to deliver outstanding
sporting entertainment to fans in Hong Kong and around
the world. With a growing international profile, continued
investment in facilities, and some of the most attractive
prize money in world racing, the Club is strongly committed
to developing the world-class quality of racing in Hong Kong
and the Greater Bay Area as a whole.
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RACING ON

Despite the ongoing challenge of COVID-19, and especially its
resurgent fifth wave in the middle of the season, racing continued
uninterrupted, with not a single race lost due to the pandemic.

Once again it was the success of the Club’s “racing bubble” and
closed-loop protective measures which made this possible. Stringent
social distancing, controlled and limited access to racecourses,
frequent and rapid PCR testing of trainers, jockeys and racing
personnel, and rigorous tracking and tracing of potential contacts
was implemented. Each day more than 1,000 racing personnel were
tested, with same-day results provided. Facilitated by vaccination
stations at both racecourses, 100% of trainers, jockeys, officials
and frontline racing personnel were vaccinated. In support of social
distancing, special accommodation and meal arrangements were
put in place for a large part of the stables workforce.

No less important was the support of Hong Kong and Mainland
authorities for the continuation of racing. Notably the cross-
boundary movement of horses to and from Conghua Racecourse,
which was briefly suspended at the height of the fifth wave, was
quickly resumed with their assistance.

/ Operations Review Racing and Racecourse Entertainment / £ E i &5 & i8R 4%/
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The effectiveness of the “racing bubble” was highlighted by the
success of the 2021 LONGINES Hong Kong International Races,
with horses from Japan, Ireland, Great Britain and France competing
alongside Hong Kong’s finest. It was therefore unfortunate that the
tail-end of the fifth wave overlapped with FWD Champions Day,
which was consequently limited to Hong Kong horses only.

The Club would like to thank everyone, especially horse owners,

for their patience and understanding. Special thanks are due to
jockeys, trainers and everyone else involved in day-to-day racing
and racecourse operations, from the valets and starting gate team
to stable assistants and farriers. Without their wholehearted support
and personal sacrifice, the achievements of the season would not
have been possible.
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2021 | December 12 A
Hong Kong Cup

2021 | December 12 A
Hong Kong Mile

2021 | December 12 A
Hong Kong Sprint

2021 | December 12 A
Hong Kong Vase
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2022 | January 1 A 2022 | January 1 A 2022 | February 2 A 2022 | February 2 A
Stewards’ Cup Centenary Sprint Cup Hong Kong Gold Cup Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup
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HONG KONG GROUP 1 RACES IN
WORLD’S TOP 100

BEDRESRIBRAR—RE

Hong Kong’s success in maintaining a full racing programme during
the pandemic, and especially its continuing ability to attract top
overseas horses, was reflected in the 2021 LONGINES World’s

Top 100 Group/Grade 1 Races, where eight of its 12 elite contests
featured.

The top-rated Hong Kong race in 2021 was the FWD QEIl Cup, won
by Japan’s Loves Only You. Six races were in the top 50, including
the LONGINES Hong Kong Mile, Stewards’ Cup and Citi Hong Kong
Gold Cup, all won by Hong Kong’s champion horse, Golden Sixty.

The LONGINES Hong Kong Cup and LONGINES Hong Kong Vase
rounded out Hong Kong’s prominence in the top 50, highlighting
once again that Hong Kong is a major target for international owners,
trainers and jockeys.
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WORLD’S BEST RACEHORSE
RANKINGS

HABFTCFLHS

Golden Sixty’s inexorable advance saw him soar to an end-of-
year rating of 125 in 2021 to retain his position as the world’s joint
highest rated miler in the LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse
Rankings, sharing the honours with Baeed and Palace Pier.

Golden Sixty’s rating was based on an outstanding victory in
the 2021 LONGINES Hong Kong Mile, which capped a 16-race

unbeaten streak, including four Group 1s and one Group 2 in 2021.

Overall Golden Sixty ranked equal sixth in the world rankings,
alongside the likes of Prix de I’Arc de Triomphe winner Torquator
Tasso.

Golden Sixty was one of a 15-strong contingent of Hong Kong
horses in the world rankings, which included Exultant, More Than
This, Southern Legend and Waikuku.

Furore, Hot King Prawn, Ka Ying Star, Panfield, Sky Field and
Wellington also featured in the top echelon, as did Columbus
County, Glorious Dragon, Lucky Patch and Russian Emperor.
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LEADERSHIP IN INTERNATIONAL
RACING

REFREIE

The Club makes a significant contribution to global racing through
the International Federation of Horseracing Authorities (IFHA), the
Asian Racing Federation (ARF) and the International Horse Sports
Confederation (IHSC).

The Club was a significant contributor to the major restructuring of
the IFHA’s governance, completed in June 2021, which has seen the
IFHA transformed into a more globally-integrated federation with a
strong platform to meet the global challenges facing the industry.

In September, the Club’s CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges was
elected Chair of the IFHA, being only the second in its history

and the first from Asia. As such he hosted the 55th International
Conference of Horseracing Authorities in October and in his keynote
speech highlighted key aspects of the IFHA’s Strategic Plan for
2021-2024, including digitalisation and media, equine welfare, and
climate change and sustainability.

The Club’s Executive Director, Racing, Andrew Harding, was re-
elected IFHA Executive Director and now leads the new globally-
integrated Executive Office of the IFHA.

In a further mark of Hong Kong’s growing international profile, in
April the Club’s CEO was elected President of the International
Horse Sports Confederation (IHSC). Co-founded by the IFHA and
the Fédération Equestre Internationale (FEI), the IHSC’s key missions
are to encourage co-operation and the exchange of information on
all matters of mutual interest between the IFHA and the FEI, as well
as to represent the collective interests of the horse industry with the
World Organisation for Animal Health and other international bodies.

The Club continues to host the secretariats for both the ARF (which
the Club’s CEO chairs), and its Council on Anti-lllegal Betting and
Related Financial Crime. During the year, the ARF has significantly
enhanced its dialogue with members through the implementation

of a comprehensive engagement plan. The Council’'s most recent
publication The State of lllegal Betting, illustrates the current state of
illegal betting on horse racing and other sports.
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OWNERSHIP
EHERE

The Club works hard to support horse owners, providing them with
some of the best training facilities available anywhere as well as
some of the most attractive prize money in world racing, which next
season will see further increases.

Owners have access to world-class facilities at Sha Tin and
Conghua racecourses. Now in its fourth year of operation,
Conghua is firmly established, with 16 trainers currently maintaining
permanent stables there. Further upgrades and renovations at both
Sha Tin and Conghua are planned, and the number of dual-site
trainers will be progressively increased.

The Hong Kong International Sale provides owners with the
opportunity to purchase horses handpicked to race in Hong Kong
and sourced by the Club’s expert buying team from Europe, the
United Kingdom, Australia, New Zealand and elsewhere. This
season’s sale saw 17 lots go under the hammer, the highest price
being HK$7.8 million for a two-year-old Deep Field gelding.

Undoubtedly the most successful International Sale horse of recent
years is Romantic Warrior. Purchased for HK$4.8 million at the 2021
sale, he has since amassed almost HK$40 million in winnings. With
seven wins from eight starts, he is the first International Sale horse
to win the BMW Hong Kong Derby and the FWD QEIl Cup in the
same season and only the fifth horse ever to do so.
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/ Stanley Chan Ka Leung, owner of Golden Sixty, celebrates victory in the
FWD Champions Mile.
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PRIZE MONEY

To incentivise owners to invest in elite thoroughbreds and encourage
overseas connections to race in Hong Kong, the Club has long
offered some of the best prize money in world racing. Indeed the last
ten years has seen the prize pool increase by nearly 90%.

Next season will see the biggest single-season increase in the Club’s
history, with stakes rising 11.5% and a total of HK$1.62 billion on
offer. In doing so the Club is looking beyond the pandemic and
reaffirming its commitment to world-class racing in Hong Kong.

Notably, to further nurture Hong Kong’s middle-distance talent,
which boasts a rich history on the international stage and in Hong
Kong, prize money for Class 1, 2 and 3 races between 1600m and
2400m will increase by up to 21%. In addition, Class 1 contests
ranging from 1000m to 1400m will rise by 10%, while Class 4 and 5
races will increase by 3.8% and Giriffin races by 3.5%.

To further enhance the value proposition for owners, the Club

has introduced an all-new HK$1 million bonus for PPs (Privately
Purchased Horses) for their first win in Class 3 before reaching the
age of five, with an additional HK$1 million should they go on to
win a Class 2 or above when rated 80 or higher during the same
period of eligibility. Meanwhile, PPGs (Privately Purchased Griffins)
will continue to earn a HK$1 million bonus for a first win in Class 2
or above when rated 80 or higher before reaching the age of five. To
balance the chances of winning a bonus, different treatments will
apply to the eligibility of PPs and PPGs depending on whether a
horse is imported from the northern or southern hemisphere.
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At the elite level, the combined purse for the LONGINES Hong ZRERES  RERFBEKRESNIE—
Kong International Races will rise to a new high of HK$110 million, RENBRSEREF KIRIEHM1,0008 8
a boost of HK$10 million on last year’s figure. The LONGINES Hong 7T BIFTSE1E1,00088 T HHRER
Kong Mile will rise to HK$30 million, the LONGINES Hong Kong Cup & — 12§82 £ 518 F 300088 7T -

to HK$34 million and the LONGINES Hong Kong Vase to HK$22 MREXRBEBARREREBANESAS
million. RIS E3,40088 7T 2,20088 T
These and other increases for the Club’s 12 international Group LA A8 EE e o A0 LB E g1 28R — 4R
1 races mean that Hong Kong will continue to stage the world’s BEERRS  ARBBBEERENERES
richest Group 1 races on turf over 1200m, 1400m, 1600m and B&EHI12003K + 14002K » 1600>K & 20003K
2000m. Meanwhile Group 2 and Group 3 contests will see prize Bith—E o I ZRBR=ZRENRESE
money rise to HK$5 million and HK$3.9 million respectively. DRI ZE 5008 B TR 30EETT °

Prize Money for Group 1 Races, 2022/23 Season
2022/23 ZE—HKBERE

LONGINES Hong Kong Cup
REREER

Chairman’s Sprint Prize
HK$34,000,000 - HK$20,000,000
/ HKS ERIRR / HKs
LONGINES Hong Kong Mile

RERTEB-EHE

Stewards’ Cup

/' HK$30,000,000 e

/ HK$12,000,000

LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup

/ HK$24,000,000 / HK$12,000,000

RERBBEZRE TEERITEEER
LONGINES Hong Kong Vase Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup
HK$22 ! X HK$12,000,000
REREEM / HK$22,000,000 LERBREE 'S
FWD Champions Mile Standard Chartered Champions
) HK$20,000,000
EARREE— 2R /B & Chater Cup /' HK$12,000,000
B EEERETR
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Prize Money for Class 1 to 3 Handicap Races 1600m-2400m, 2022/23 Season
2022/23 ZEE—Z = 1600 3KE 2400 3K (EE) £

gisﬁs; / HK$3,800,000
;a_s;EZ / HK$2,900,000
;JiS}; 3 / HK$1,900,000

Prize Money for Class-Level Handicap Races (all classes), 2022/23 Season
2022/23 ZERBEIIAEE (FE) £

;Ja_sﬂs£ 1 g / HK$3,465,000
;Ia:sﬂsI 2 / HK$2,640,000
;;s;ﬁ* / HK$1,725,000
gﬁls;; / HK$1,080,000
;Iaﬁs;: /  HK$810,000
;rg; /  HK$880,000

* For 1000m to 1400m races
* 1000 KZE 1400 KRES

LONGINES
HONG KONG CUP



APPRENTICE JOCKEYS’ SCHOOL
CELEBRATES 50 YEARS

REBREER 50 BFL=

This season marked the 50th anniversary of the Hong Kong Jockey
Club Apprentice Jockeys’ School and a significant milestone in

the development of Hong Kong racing. Since opening in 1972,

the school has produced a steady stream of talent. Among its

first graduates were current trainers Tony Cruz and Ricky Yiu. The
occasion was celebrated at the Apprentice Jockeys’ School 50th
Anniversary Race Day on 5 June.

The School is just one part of the Club’s vocational training
programme for racing personnel, which has progressively advanced
over the past 50 years. A notable milestone was the creation of

the Racing Development Board in 2005 and the establishment of
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications accredited courses, encompassing riding stables,
stipendiary stewards and farriers, with new courses being added.

Looking forward to the future needs of Hong Kong racing, and

also to support equine industry development in the Mainland, the
Racing Development Board has been rebranded as the Racing
Talent Training Centre, responsible for both the Apprentice Jockeys’
School and the Racing Talent School. The former will continue to
provide riding training, while the latter will provide skill-specific
training for non-riding professionals.
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To further support the development of trainees, both as athletes

and academically, the Racing Talent Training Centre will collaborate
with institutions in Hong Kong and the Mainland. The Hong Kong
Association of Sports Medicine and Sports Science will help boost
performance and training efficiency through the application of
sports science. The Education University of Hong Kong will provide
two to three places each year on its Bachelor of Health Education
programme for jockeys seeking to pursue a dual-track career. And in
the Mainland, the Guangdong Vocational Institute of Sports will work
alongside the Racing Talent Training Centre to recruit and develop
riders, facilitating both the Club’s development and equine industry
development in the Mainland. Memoranda of Understanding were
signed with all three institutions at the Apprentice Jockeys’ School
50th Anniversary Race Day.

This season, graduates from Hong Kong'’s racing development
programme continued to impress. Vincent Ho capped another
season of excellence with his second LONGINES Hong Kong
Mile success aboard Golden Sixty and a second FWD Champions
Mile aboard the same horse. For a brief period he also topped the
LONGINES World’s Best Jockey rankings.

Meanwhile Matthew Chadwick, Derek Leung, and Matthew Poon
achieved personal bests, with respectively 55, 48 and 34 wins. Jerry
Chau graduated to the jockey ranks with 70 wins, including his first
Group 2 success in the BOCHK Private Banking Jockey Club Sprint.
And in a hard-fought contest with Vincent Ho, Matthew Chadwick
prevailed as winner of the Tony Cruz Award for leading homegrown
rider.
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
DRBEERE
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The 2021 LONGINES Hong Kong
International Races once again showcased the
city’s world-class sport and “can-do” spirit in
the face of the pandemic.

2021 F » RERFBEBRESEERETBERT
BEBNHAREEHMON [FHMER | RS-

Total prize money

HK$1 OOmiIIion

R
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GROUP RACES — HIGHLIGHTS
DRESHE

In all, 20 international Group 1 winners from five countries and
jurisdictions competed in the four Group 1 contests, widely
regarded as the “Turf World Championships”. Meanwhile, leading
jockeys from Australia, Great Britain, France, New Zealand, South
Africa and Japan took on Hong Kong’s best in the 2021 LONGINES
International Jockeys’ Championship.

Making this possible was the Club’s closed-loop “racing bubble”,
with enhanced health measures providing even higher levels of
protection. For overseas personnel and visiting jockeys these
included multiple COVID-19 tests before and after arrival, special
accommodation and transport arrangements, and strict segregation
from Hong Kong personnel.

While it was not possible to welcome overseas fans and guests,
the Club once again made a special effort to reach out to its

global audience via a strong online and social media presence.
Key meetings of the Asian Racing Federation and of International
Federation of Horseracing Authorities committees also went ahead
as normal, albeit conducted virtually.

GINES HONG KONG CU

N F
M @ B R f & o

o

Nothing however could detract from the races themselves, where
thanks to the success of Government’s pandemic management and
the Club’s special measures, it was possible to welcome many more
Hong Kong fans on-course.

The 2021 LONGINES International Jockeys’ Championship at
Happy Valley saw a world-class line-up, with Hong Kong’s best up
against the likes of Ryan Moore, Mickael Barzalona, Hollie Doyle,
Tom Marquand, Yuga Kawada and more. Hong Kong superstar
Zac Purton defied them all to capture his second consecutive and
record-equalling third crown.

All eyes however were on Sunday’s HK$100 million LONGINES
Hong Kong International Races, with the ten-race programme
achieving a record HK$1.73 billion in turnover.

REXRBBEMRESWES HREMBERE]

WEIREAEERREEN 20 TEE—HRBEBVEE
BN BREINIE— AR B MR BB « HE AR - 4E

B FIER BANBREN  THREBFFRSHRE
A% 2021 FREXREFGRNREETETEE -

2021 FREXRFBERESBRAIENET BES
2N [ E S EE | EEEE KEARAEE.

E—SREMRKT - BEEREESIIBEEAER
SRR EBRRIIRETZAN SRS AR B

RS BIEBMB L HE - LUK BRI EE & 8
EEINSES T

BARARBTBINERNETRERRRESBERS
%‘%%EIZE/M’F&%E |25 BB ERBEMERE
B a2RERBEMESHMEN LI
/J 1EFHENERESAARERS
ENEESHTUM L MEEEIT -

U:mm B, e G, D ke 0

BEAHESRE 1Exﬁilﬁ/ﬁ§§%§,§@|[@‘§$ﬂ’]£
71 - BRRBUFH R B E TERISERC I EEE
FerERI e TR ERESEE

2021 FRERBEIRGRMIFEERIESE )8 &8
MBI T FRIBRE - BB T ERMBER
KERER BXS HEMR - -BER)IBSHESSE
RGERRFLEE=ERHT -

ERANERRENARTHRERSTBENES
MigSEE BB MEXTSESNR EHER
WERLEE ZE17E 3,000 BB e



/ Operations Review Racing and Racecourse Entertainment / 23§ EIfE BEE N Si51R4% /

Glory Vase and Joao Moreira repeated their win in the 2019 G1
LONGINES Hong Kong Vase (2400m) with another runaway effort
for Japan. Pyledriver was a brave second for Great Britain in a
strong renewal of the HK$20 million contest.

The G1 LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint (1200m) was retained by
Hong Kong, with Sky Field and Blake Shinn victorious in the HK$24
million event. Placings were filled by Resistencia for Japan and
Courier Wonder for Hong Kong.

Loves Only You capped another remarkable day for Japanese racing
with a thrilling win in the HK$30 million G1 LONGINES Hong Kong
Cup (2000m) for jockey Yuga Kawada and trainer Yoshito Yahagi. In

—REBEREBREBN (2400 K) MEE£H 2,000 B8
T BERSISKESTESE - [BR] HEEH#
2019 FRE L ER BEER ARRERZER U

MEBENAEK BB 8] 92K BEEE-

S—BEREXRFBERRIR (1200 K) AFBRE
BR- [BUE| FERETEENIRRSE 24008
BN —RBE MAFMRERATHTIREBRKRE
EFE | 2RSIE-—RE=-

ZRREREBE (2000 K) 48 &3Z 3,000 BBt e

SR [WBER] NERIE REDE [FEHEL
FIHEE] - BEED) BN REMRAETARET—

what was the final race of a glittering career, she also became the
fifth horse to complete the QEIl Cup (2000m) and Hong Kong Cup
double in the same year, leading home Hishi Iguazu and Russian
Emperor.

Undoubtedly the most memorable moment was Golden Sixty’s
brilliant performance in the HK$26 million G1 LONGINES Hong
Kong Mile. Jockey Vincent Ho and trainer Francis Lui celebrated
their superstar’s 16th consecutive win and record 19th triumph in
Hong Kong with the successful defence of his Hong Kong Mile
crown. The victory capped an extraordinary year for Golden Sixty
which saw him rated joint-top miler and ranked joint sixth overall in
the 2021 LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse Rankings.
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GROUP RACES — HIGHLIGHTS
DRESHE

Hong Kong
Sprint
REXRBBERBE

Winner: Sky Field BHEET : [ELE
Owner : Kwan Shiu Man, BEx . BHAX - BsEH

Jessica Kwan Mun Hang & &R

Jeffrey Kwan Chun Ming HEE - HEA
Trainer : Caspar Fownes AR ER
Jockey : Blake Shinn

Hong Kong &=
Mile ——
pExEE—EpE

=

Winner : Golden Sixty BHEIT : [£88/51 ]

Owner : Stanley Chan Ka Leung 5 @ R
Trainer : Francis Lui RERD © BREE
Jockey : Vincent Ho AR {ESE
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=" Hong Kong
Cup
REREER

Winner : Loves Only You BFHEETT : [EHER]

Owner : DMMDreamClub Coltd &% : DMM Dream Club Co Ltd
Trainer :  Yoshito Yahagi mERD - RIEEFA
Jockey :  Yuga Kawada FRED o JIIEASH

Hong Kong ,
Vase
REREBBM

Winner : Glory Vase  BSH BT : [k ]

Owner : Silk Racing Co Ltd BF* : SikRacing Co Ltd
Trainer : Tomohito Ozeki HEEN 0 REAA
Jockey : Joao Moreira REm  BEEH
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
DRESHE

"
=4

" Stewards’ Cup A
5%

" Winner : Waikuku BEHET: [EE% ]
Owner : Jocelyn SiuYang HinTing Sx @ #REE 4 i
Trainer : John Size B . BAOW B
Jockey : Zac Purton B BE

Fans of Golden Sixty had a rude awakening as Waikuku
swept to victory in the Stewards’ Cup, denying Hong
Kong’s champion miler his seventeenth consecutive win. A
masterful steer from Zac Purton ensured a second success -
for Waikuku in the race after prevailing in 2020. It was also ~4
a seventh Stewards’ Cup for trainer John Size. Russian . ™
Emperor finished just over a length behind in third.

[ERRISHRAHE  BETVE  SHBR
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Douglas Whyte saw his move to the trainer ranks
thoroughly vindicated as Stronger delivered him
his first Group 1 prize in the Centenary Sprint Cup.
Producing one of the most epic finishes in the race’s
history, Stronger rallied to get the better of Sky Field
as the pair of chestnuts finished within a head of one
another. The victory gave jockey Vincent Ho his first win in
the race and second Group 1 for the season. The evergreen
Hot King Prawn closed stoutly for third.

EXGTE I BEEARELSRAR  AEELRRKLUIREE
—REQLE  TORBMEMENKNAKEEND - [EHRE ]
ﬁyﬁféjﬁuxégﬁmﬁ%é EFREHZ . BRIERE
T IU—ESEBENHBESRT - A%%%%%HE% R H It
\’%E@*W“—E—%g%& —BERRNES [ FERE | Al
BEHERREEZE

Centenary
Sprint Cup
BBRELIEER

Winner : Stronger BHET: [EX1KGE ]
Owner : Cheung Hon Kit, BE @ RELE - REREEEREFTK
A Joanna Cheung Wai Sze & #REH : EiE
" Jonathan Cheung Yu Shing B&ff  : {IiZE%

Trainer : Douglas Whyte
Jockey : Vincent Ho

REE/
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Citi Hong Kong
Gold Cup
EERITEEER

T

Owner : Mike Cheung Shun Ching Bx
Trainer : Douglas Whyte AN
Jockey : Blake Shinn ESEm

T M
i)
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Wellington banished the travails of the earlier part of
the season with a supreme return to form in the Queen’s
Silver Jubilee Cup. The classy sprinter reprised his best with
a devastating display to eclipse Ka Ying Star and Waikuku.
Kicking clear, Wellington’s trademark brilliance saw him handle
the sodden conditions at Sha Tin with relative ease.

[fBik | R IhEHEER  REEE » BHLZERELSE -
ELERENSHOERERE IR ZRZE IRIEER W
7T o BMEE Y HERENEIE HEE - [BR IFEERIEE
ATRBEHEREESN -

Queen’s Silver

Jubilee Cup
ZERELZER

Winner : Wellington BB [{Ei ]
Owner : Mr & Mrs Michael Cheng BE 1 BKREERXA
Wing On and Jeffrey Cheng g =]
Man Cheong HEED - SEH
Trainer : Richard Gibson B - BE

Jockey : Alexis Badel
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
DRESHE

BMW Hong /
Kong Derby
BEEEBTWAE

Winner : Romantic Warrior BHET: REBEL

Owner : Peter Lau Pak Fai Bx  2EE
Trainer : Danny Shum REEN C NEMK
Jockey : Karis Teetan BAET . HER
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Romantic Warrior made history as the first Hong Kong REBET |REFES » KARBE
International Sale horse to taste victory in the BMW Hong BRELHESE TR T EEEB8IT
Kong Derby. Purchased for HK$4.8 million in June 2021, it HAESENER - [REBEL IR
was his sixth win from just seven starts. For trainer Danny 202156 B LA480B B TR -

Shum and jockey Karis Teetan it was their first success in HEEEEEBITHAE LEELR
Hong Kong’s most sought-after prize. California Spangle BT ARGEE - SEMLERK

placed second, while Money Catcher rolled into third RETHRZRERMBEABHES
ahead of Senor Toba. SEESRENTHAE - [MME

RIMWEDE - ML M2
B4 JAlp B FIE=MEMN -

| L= S B R

HESHRIM




GROUP RACES — HIGHLIGHTS
DRESHE

FWD Champions Day
EfRREEESH

Despite the absence of overseas horses, FWD
Champions Day did not lack for atmosphere as
horse owners and their guests returned to Sha Tin
for the first time in over three months. And a day

of champions it was as Golden Sixty showed off

his world-class form in the FWD Champions Mile,
Wellington reaffirmed his dominance in the sprint,
and Romantic Warrior cemented his place in racing
history with a stunning victory in the FWD QEIIl Cup.

BRI ERRERESE B
EERBREEESHHNRSKA
BE - BEXERETEEEMERE=
BEZREERYHESHEE

B —REEENEZAMEEE

He[ERAT | EEFRBREE
—BERRUEREFEEL  [ER]
RIZERBEREMON - ™
[REELT | EEERKBZERR
BES—N > BTFEAERMN -
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FWD QEII Cup
EEHRRLSE

Winner : Romantic Warrior BHET: [JREBEL

Owner : Peter Lau Pak Fai BEx  2B/E

Trainer : Danny Shum HRERD ¢ LR

Jockey : Karis Teetan BED . BERR
Romantic Warrior capped one of the most remarkable DREEL |# - BHESEBI
first seasons in Hong Kong racing as he backed up his MtREE - ﬁ,p,{ﬁﬁgaﬁxm-a
BMW Hong Kong Derby victory with another full-blooded BRELZER  EEBEELLE
performance in the FWD QEIl Cup. The feat, which placed T#H—8 o r, ,x;ﬁ;j:b&*ﬁ%ﬁﬂz_ ,
him alongside such distinguished winners as Werther, EF10ABBEENNES  £S5F4
Designs On Rome, Ambitious Dragon and Vengeance Of B8 —RE 28 5 H I' BBATF
Rain, set the seal on a campaign which took Romantic Bl -TEEE] [H#HOEEIRIT
Warrior from Class 4 company in October to Group 1 EEMIEEMEL > ER—FZH
success in April for a season-high of HK$40 million in HEEBITWAEMLZER - [REE

earnings. With Tourbillon Diamond coming home second, T INEEREIZEL,0008E T >

trainer Danny Shum had the added pleasure of a one-two FERLHE o RIS TREEIE | M

victory, while Panfield roared into third. B SHREEMLEREHILE
‘T CDE M BEeE U= -




GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
DRESHE

FWD Champions Mile
EfFRREE-—EE

Winner : Golden Sixty BHE: [£851]
Owner : Stanley Chan Ka Leung BEx I BB
Trainer :  Francis Lui BRESET . BRE
Jockey :  Vincent Ho BRED : fESE

Having finally recaptured his winning groove in early April, [€i T 4B ERFE, - £
Golden Sixty set yet another record by becoming the EEFARREE—EEBT—H &
highest prize money earner in Hong Kong history following ETERBRGERTY » KAEEB
a faultless display in the FWD Champions Mile. The victory, BEYF FFREREESESHEE

his sixth Group 1 win, took Golden Sixty’s winnings to [ERAT IBREMAETHEEARS R
a record HK$113.4 million. California Spangle came in BHEE > RitRSRES1E81,3408%8
second while Excellent Proposal placed third. TC o RIFETAREE o [ I 2R | K [ 3 |

DRISIE=FE=

Chairman’s Sprint Prize
FEERR

Winner : Wellington BHEIT: {82 | Wellington cemented his spot as
Hong Kong’s leading sprinter with
Owner : Mr & Mrs Michael Cheng BE | EKZEERRA  adominant win in the Chairman’s
Wing On and Jeffrey Cheng el vy =] Sprint Prize. The race was a repeat
Man Cheong HESED . SEE of 2021, the powerful gelding once
Trainer : Richard Gibson B - BE again leading home Computer
Jockey : Alexis Badel Patch and Sky Field. The win,

his tenth from 16 starts, took
Wellington’s all-time earnings to
more than HK$40 million.

[18i% | LA B R Re IR I fEIE iR

% BB BEEBENMNMAL - 5
[E=H & )XEE2021 F4E 25
BEIR[BELE DR ETERS
B BZEEM [BRIHEES
EVS 1681085 E4E - ZBEREHEB
4,000E8 T °
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Standard Chartered

Champions & Chater Cup
BITEBEBEREITER

Winner : Russian Emperor BSHEUC: [ E |

Owner : Mike Cheung Shun Ching BEX . EIEE

Trainer : Douglas Whyte MEED . BEiE

Jockey : Blake Shinn B EE
The final Group 1 race of the season wrapped up Russian B BEBRRATNRE 15—
Emperor’s standing as Hong Kong’s premier stayer as he ME[BEIBEEE  BH—R
went from last-to-first to seal his second top-level crown HFEER  BErEHBFBRIFREIM
after the Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup in February. The win iz o WAtBIHEE |42 BIEiERITE
was the third Group 1 win this season for jockey Blake BB E_EEE-—RERE
Shinn and trainer Douglas Whyte. G ARMERNREMEZENTH

SEF-IH-REREF -

B E BT 2022

Standard Chartered C_ampions & Chater Cup

TRUWERCE

Ad
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A YEAR OF CHAMPIONS
BEAGELF

Hong Kong champion Golden Sixty made global
headlines with another record-setting season to claim
a second Horse of the Year crown and a second
Champion Miler title. With 21 wins from 24 starts

he is the city’s most prolific winner, with a record
HK$113.4 million to his credit. Affectionately labelled
the “Pride of Hong Kong”, there was never much
doubt that he would also be the Most Popular Horse
of the Year.

One strong contender for the people’s choice award
was Romantic Warrior, who in his very first campaign
captured seven wins from eight starts. The first
graduate from the Hong Kong International Sale to
win the BMW Hong Kong Derby, his subsequent
victory in the FWD QEIl Cup made him just the

fifth horse to complete the double. Unsurprisingly

he swooped the awards for Champion Four-Year-
Old, Champion Middle-Distance Horse and Most
Improved Horse.

Russian Emperor emerged as the kingpin of Hong
Kong’s distance events this season, his victories

in the Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup and Standard
Chartered Champions & Chater Cup and third place
in the LONGINES Hong Kong Cup earning him a
well-deserved title as Champion Stayer.

Among the bright young stars this season was Lucky
Sweynesse, whose four wins took him from Class 4
to Class 2, along the way collecting 46 points to end
the season on a rating of 98. A worthy winner of the
Champion Griffin award, he will surely be an exciting
runner heading towards the new racing season.

The season’s Champion Sprinter title, always a hotly
contested category, went to Wellington. With victory
in the Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup, and a successful
defence of his Chairman’s Sprint Prize crown, he
closed the season with a hat-trick of Group 1 wins
split by a superb success in the Group 2 Sprint Cup.

CHAMPION AWARDS

BEAEE

Horse of the Year
BREE

Champion Middle-Distance Horse
RETBES
Champion Miler
RE—ES

Champion Sprinter
BREERS

Champion Stayer
BERES

Champion Four-Year-Old
REMRES

Champion Griffin
REHS

Most Improved Horse
BRRNESFET
Champion Trainer

BE R AD

Champion Jockey
B R Am

Tony Cruz Award
EREHR

Most Popular Horse of the Year*
REBLET

Most Popular Jockey of the Year*
REZ BB

* Public Vote AARIRZEH

Golden Sixty
R T
Romantic Warrior
RBEL

Golden Sixty
2Rt
Wellington

B

Russian Emperor
&E

Romantic Warrior
RBEL

Lucky Sweynesse
SHEEA
Romantic Warrior
REBEL

Frankie Lor
BER

Zac Purton

ELE

Matthew Chadwick
A

Golden Sixty

K -valn

Zac Purton

ETE ;ﬂﬁﬁ?
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Zac Purton sealed a fifth Champion Jockey title after a lengthy
duel with great rival Joao Moreira. Closing out the season with 136
wins, Purton’s campaign included one of the greatest upsets in
Hong Kong racing history, his victory on Waikuku in the Stewards’
Cup bringing Golden Sixty’s winning streak to a dramatic, albeit
temporary, halt. His fifth title also earned him the Most Popular
Jockey of the Year award.

There was one final moment to savour as Frankie Lor fulfilled his

lifelong dream by lifting his first Champion Trainer title with 90 wins.

Meanwhile, Matthew Chadwick sealed the Tony Cruz Award as the
leading homegrown rider with 55 wins, capping a year in which the
Club overcame all obstacles to maintain a full racing programme.

Champion Trainer Frankie Lor and Chg
Purton celebrate their success.
BERTMHESEREEHMERE

RBEYGHERN —WH 2 FE - FEE
TEBE[EERMIKE - BEEAHE
513655 E - BEBHIERRINTES
B RIET SRR IFERBEE - LA
FHEEBBEFL AR 5T ARIIBING
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HONG KONG-TRAINED HORSES THAT ACHIEVED AN
INTERNATIONAL RATING OF 115 OR ABOVE IN 2021/22

2021/22 FEEZEREFTED 115 28 LS BERN
116

125

GOLDEN SIXTY
? St
KW Lui
=)z

Stanley Chan Ka Leung
PBRRAR

118

MORE THAN THIS
Q RSN

C S Shum

ERK

Huang Kai Wen
&=EUX

118

ROMANTIC WARRIOR
'j REET

C S Shum

MK

Peter Lau Pak Fai
2iEE

18

WAIKUKU
’j SHR
J Size

Jocelyn Siu Yang Hin Ting
wmERE

117

ﬂ KA YING STAR
REEZE
A S Cruz
EFHRE

Leung Shek Kong

117
RUSSIAN EMPEROR
? s
D J Whyte
BiE

Mike Cheung Shun Ching

RIEF

7
WELLINGTON
9 Eipd
R Gibson
ESEEED

Mr & Mrs Michael Cheng Wing

On and Jeffrey Cheng Man
Cheong
BRK L EER RAHRETE

116
9 SKY FIELD
HONE
C Fownes

FEH

Kwan Shiu Man,

Jessica Kwan Mun Hang &
Jeffrey Kwan Chun Ming
BAX - BsiEEERHA

2

SOUTHERN LEGEND
NI g

C Fownes

HEM

Boniface Ho Ka Kui
(EE:]

16

?

TOURBILLON DIAMOND
HEm PO FE

C S Shum

B

Shum Mak Ling, Jimmy Tang,
Bennie Lau Yuk Lung &

William Shum Wai Lam

RE - BEH - 21 REEEREM

15

?

LUCKY PATCH
B2 R

KW Lui

=)z

Patch Syndicate
frgpd =

15

2

STRONGER

EXRE

D J Whyte

BE

Cheung Hon Kit,

Joanna Cheung Wai Sze &

Jonathan Cheung Yu Shing
ROELE - REMBERFTR
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NATIONAL DAY
BEZESH

SEMREH

SEASON OPENING

B ¥ & 2021

NATIONAL DAY CUP

SA SA LADIES’ PURSE DAY

B IEIIRRA

RACECOURSE ENTERTAINMENT

5 R4

Racing fans had a great deal to celebrate at the start of the season,
with over 16,000 on-course to witness the traditional banging of the
gong. Though still a long way short of a normal raceday, hopes were
high that Hong Kong racing was at last getting back into its stride
after 18 difficult months of the pandemic. And indeed, there was

a positively festive atmosphere for December’s LONGINES Hong
Kong International Races, which saw top overseas horses compete
alongside Hong Kong’s finest.

With the onset of the fifth wave in late January, however, it was
once again necessary to implement strict access controls, with the
racecourses recording zero attendance for 29 straight meetings.
Only in April, happily coinciding with FWD Champions Day, was

it possible to gradually readmit fans once more, and the season
ended, as it had begun, on a hopeful note.

None of this, however, halted the Club’s ongoing Racecourse Master
Plan to upgrade and create new venues for Hong Kong racegoers.
With Phase 3 almost complete, and HK$7.1 billion invested to date,
preparations are underway for the beginning of Phase 4, which will
extend over the next six years.

SEEZRIBAMSIE16,0008 5 X5
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CHINESE NEW YEAR
BENTESEH
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- LUCKY START JANUARY 1
HE1A1

New venues opening this season included Keiba, a brand-

new restaurant for public racegoers at Happy Valley, serving up
Japanese-style western cuisine. The Topaz members’ restaurant,
also at Happy Valley, reopened after an extensive renovation, its
decor inspired by Chinese astronomy. Meanwhile, at Sha Tin the
popular Digital Zone was expanded, with more seating and new
facilities added.

Next season will see the opening of the new multi-storey car park
at Sha Tin with direct footbridge access to members’ areas at the
grandstand. The 6/F Owners Box (Section 3) will also reopen after
renovation, featuring three new private rooms for owners. And there
will be a new eSports zone, Backstage, for racegoers to experience
the excitement of race riding and other training games.

Topaz

(B2E] “‘..m_, L ) 8

Digital Zone
HIFEE

n

BEXMHA

ZIHREN A FRERS - AhefiESit
BERRNRATMROZH B XALRAREEE
BEE[H ] AUREStSSNEaEE
[BEE | CBE2EEHERITCENER  H
REEIEIMAPBREGA N KB EHETE
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BR - MR E S U AR R R ©
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This year the Club strove hard to provide the service excellence expected by its members
while adapting operations to meet the rapidly changing pandemic situation. None of this,
however, stopped the Club forging on with the new membership experience, highlights
being the opening of The Eighth and the Hilltop Paddock at The Hilltop in the Valley.

FR EEBHIASERUBORENEURYE  FAREESERSCNREETRAEREES
N —YZRVBESTSASEFEZTIRE - 2 The Hilltop in the Valley Er#iBEEH [\
Bl R (885 | AERMMTE -
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NEW MEMBERSHIP EXPERIENCE
g EEER

The new membership experience aims not only to provide
exceptional culinary, recreational and lifestyle experiences but to
build the fellowship of the Club, bringing like-minded members
together to share their passions and interests.

Not the least of these are horse racing and philanthropy, which are
at the heart of the Club’s identity and purpose. Through providing
more opportunities to engage with both, including through horse
ownership, the Club wants members to experience the unique
pleasures and benefits of the Club.

It is likewise to sustain the Club for generations to come that it is
seeking to attract and engage younger members as well as to serve
the multi-generational families who are the cornerstone of the Club.

The new membership experience is being realised in multiple ways,
through new facilities, new initiatives and new programmes. Some
have been implemented already and some have been rolled out this
year. More is yet to come.

FHMNEERRTELRBERENR KERE
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MANAGING THROUGH THE
PANDEMIC

SRR B R E

The utmost priority for the Club this year, however, was the health
and safety of members and employees as the pandemic continued
to challenge Hong Kong.

The Club did everything it could to maintain operations. It was
therefore deeply regrettable that at the height of the fifth wave

it became necessary to close clubhouses as well as to shut all
racecourse restaurants on non-racedays. This decision was not
taken lightly, but being the largest membership club in Hong
Kong the Club was very aware that it had a significantly higher
risk exposure than other private clubs. Indeed the Club was very
mindful of the need to protect racing and thereby its tax and charity
support for the community. Thankfully, as the fifth wave receded
it was possible to gradually reopen facilities in compliance with
Government requirements.
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The Club nonetheless worked hard to stay connected with members
and to maintain its high standards of excellence throughout the
closure period. Food and beverage takeaway menus and special
offers were made available for Chinese New Year, while The Club

at Home service enabled members to enjoy their favourite Club
dishes from the comfort and safety of home. Members were also
able to pursue their recreational interests through virtual classes and
workshops.

The Club greatly appreciates the support and understanding of
members during this difficult time. As a gesture of appreciation,
spending vouchers were offered to all members.

It was also heartening to see the Members’ CARE@hkjc team

fully embrace the Club’s caring ethos. In light of social-distancing
measures, the team organised online learning sessions focusing
on caring for the elderly and children with special education needs,
online play therapy workshops, and webinars on such subjects as
guide dog volunteering and caring for the frail.

Membership staff likewise pitched in, establishing a volunteer team
to pack and distribute care kits to employee households impacted
by the pandemic, and offering support through care calls.
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NEW CLUBHOUSE FACILITIES
NS FTERIE

While the pandemic has understandably been the major focus, this
has not stopped the Club from launching new venues.

The Eighth at Happy Valley New Clubhouse saw its much-
anticipated opening in July. A sophisticated social hub, where
members can relax, drink, dine and have fun with family and friends,
it has already received very positive feedback.

Features include the 360 Bar, which serves artisanal cocktails and
has the largest collection of champagnes in the world, and Pinnacle,
offering a taste of authentic Latin-American flavours. The Chef’s
Table and three other private dining rooms provide members with a
cosy setting to host guests, while in the Private Reserve members
can enjoy cigars and fine spirits from around the world made
available exclusively to the Club.
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The Eighth especially appeals to the sports-minded. At the Happy
Bar, and at Happy Circle | and Il, screens broadcast live horse racing
as well as real-time football matches and other sports. There are
also dedicated spaces for members to enjoy bowling, pool, snooker,
table tennis and darts. Golf, horse racing and Formula 1 simulators
also make for a vibrant venue.

Meanwhile, January saw the opening of the Hilltop Paddock on
the fourth floor of Happy Valley Old Clubhouse, providing a relaxed
dining option for families. Developed with members’ feedback top
of mind, more than half of the former Food Plaza’s popular dishes
are featured. During the refurbishment members were able to enjoy
some of their favourite dishes at the Six Furlong Express, which
temporarily relocated to The Millions at Happy Valley Racecourse.

As part of the re-imagining of the fourth floor as a space for multiple
generations to enjoy there will soon be an outdoor children’s play
area and a dedicated space for teenagers. The popular Hilltop Gym
and Hilltop Pool will also soon reopen.

Meanwhile, the refreshed and updated Fortune Room, also at
Happy Valley Old Clubhouse, served up new cuisine alongside old
favourites in bright new surroundings.
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CULINARY EXCELLENCE
(EXEES:

The Club has long enjoyed a reputation for exceptional culinary
experiences, which it aims to strengthen as part of the new
membership experience.

These include the premium facilities available at Happy Valley
Racecourse, which members are increasingly enjoying on non-
racedays. Among them the Moon Koon, The Racing Club, The
Chalk, and the Provincial. From next season the latter will open six
days a week.

Meanwhile at Happy Valley New Clubhouse, Trio’s opening hours
have been extended from five to six days a week, while members
are now able to secure a table at The Parade on a walk-in basis.

Members continue to be served by some of the best talent in the
food and beverage industry. Seven Club chefs working at the
clubhouses and racecourses won medals in the prestigious annual
Hong Kong International Culinary Classic awards, while two bar
captains earned recognition for their signature cocktails.
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LIFESTYLE OPPORTUNITIES
BISETRIER

Through world-class lifestyle programming, the Club aims to provide
members with more opportunities to engage with the Club, whether
it be through culinary experiences, wellness and recreation, the

thrill of racing, or becoming involved with the Club’s charity and
community mission.

With activities as varied as wellness retreats, racing-themed events,
Tai Kwun arts preview tours and lifestyle experiences with partner
organisations, the new programming emphasises the Club as an
outstanding lifestyle destination and will be rolled out in phases in
the year ahead.

Following the same suite of experiences was the Club-wide Summer
Reimagined programme, launched in June to inspire members of all
ages to make the most of the summer months.
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Once again the strength of the Club’s digital technology enabled it to maintain wagering
and information services despite the impact of the pandemic. Indeed, thanks to additional
simulcasts, racing fans were able to enjoy even more of the world’s best racing over the
summer. The Club also continued to reap the benefits of its world-class racing through
commingling and through a further expansion of World Pool events.
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COMMITTED TO OUR CUSTOMERS
E RN

After the difficulties of the pandemic in 2020/21, the first six months
of the year saw a recovery in wagering activity, with racing fans
responding enthusiastically to the introduction of simulcast racing
over the summer and to the beginning of the new racing season.
The LONGINES Hong Kong International races in December and the
Lucky Start race meeting on 1 January both enjoyed record turnover.

However, with the arrival of the fifth wave of the pandemic in late
January, and in order to protect the health and safety of customers
and staff, it was decided to close all Off-Course Betting Branches
and Telebet operator services. Only from the end of April did these
services gradually resume, with full operations recommencing on

1 June. The Club implemented access control and strict hygiene
measures in full compliance with Government regulations to reduce
the risk of spreading coronavirus at its facilities.

Nonetheless, thanks to its online and mobile technology, the Club
was able to maintain wagering and information services throughout
the fifth wave, with some 90% of turnover being via digital channels.
Overall wagering and Mark Six turnover was up 3.7% on 2020/21 to
HK$290 billion, a new record for the Club.

Racing, which continued uninterrupted thanks to the strengthening
of the Club’s “racing bubble”, saw turnover up 3.1% for the year to
HK$140.4 billion and for the racing season up 3.0% to HK$140.5
billion. Once again overseas commingling made an important
contribution.

Football betting turnover was up 2.6% to HK$143.8 billion. Here the
Club benefited from the later stages of the postponed Euro 2020
and the rescheduling of the Africa Cup of Nations and other regional
tournaments into the current financial year.

Most encouraging was the performance of the Mark Six. Despite the
pandemic it was possible to hold more draws than last year and in
consequence turnover was up 72.6% to HK$5.8 billion. A special
highlight was the Snowball draw to mark the 25th Anniversary of the
establishment of the HKSAR. It should be noted, however, that Mark
Six turnover continues to be impacted by the lack of significant
change in the game format.
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SIMULCASTING
MFERES

The Government’s decision last year to increase the number

of simulcast race days from 23 to 37 per year, and to permit
simulcasting in the summer months, was warmly welcomed by
racing fans. It also addressed a significant loophole exploited by
illegal operators to target Hong Kong bettors during the summer
break between racing seasons.

Over the summer, fans were able to enjoy some of the best racing
from the United Kingdom, France and South Africa, including such
renowned carnivals as Glorious Goodwood and York’s Ebor Festival.
Simulcast wagering turnover for the racing season increased
accordingly, up 47.9% to HK$9.4 billion.
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COMMINGLING
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The international popularity of Hong Kong racing continues to be
reflected in the strong performance of commingling, with turnover
for the racing season up 11.1% to a record HK$25.7 billion,
representing 18.3% of total racing turnover for the season. The Club
has more than 65 partners in 25 countries and jurisdictions across
the globe.

World Pool events, which offer global wagering pools on the best
of world racing, also saw strong growth, with the Club’s World Pool
income for the racing season up 103.0%. A total of 21 World Pool
events were offered, up from 12 last year. Notable additions were
Irish Champion Stakes Day, the three days of York’s Ebor Festival,
Met Day and Champions Cup Day from South Africa, the first three
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OVER 65 COMMINGLING PARTNERS IN

25 COUNTRIES AND JURISDICTIONS

{7 25 BEIR RS EHIBIE
RIS 2

6518

Isle of Man - Unlted Kingdom
ERE I

United States
ZE —s

Canada I * I

IreIandI I
M

BeIgiumI I
i[53

FranceI I
SEEl

Gibraltar
B i

Switzerland
It

South Africa NN
i >—

days of Glorious Goodwood, and Oaks Day. With Forecast and
Treble bet types available on UK race meetings in the latter part of
the season, the Derby Stakes at Epsom set a new turnover record
for a single simulcast and World Pool race at HK$73.3 million. There
were further records at Royal Ascot a few weeks later, including a
new simulcast and a World Pool meeting record of HK$383.6 million
on Commonwealth Cup Day. Total turnover was up by 13% across
the five days of the Royal Ascot meeting.
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SMART PLATFORM STRATEGY
[ e P& ] kG

Under the Smart Platform 2.0 Strategy, the Club is digitally FEEBHERE[FeTal2.0%K RIERE
integrating the customer journey across all three wagering channels, T=EBEERIRBETEHLCES MAL
with artificial intelligence and big data being key enablers. As of the BRERKEIETE P RBIRERA (A6

beginning of this season, all seven steps of the customer journey B BEAKAR LR ABFEERR2ELE
can be accessed via online and mobile channels, providing greater BERIRE ZZEAEERESEARZE
convenience and a more personalised customer experience. RS-

Key components include secure online account opening, the Faster BENRBEEERZARALREPO -ZEH
Payment System (FPS) in support of online funds transfer, and the FEERRMY [BEEIR | RIS UK [BEESS
HKJC eWallet, which facilitates cashless betting and funds transfer ETHE| BEERESIMIIEEZEES

in Off-Course Betting Branches (OCBBSs). This is in addition to the FOEMBBARER kb 7h - BEE TR Al 3% 48 [Racing
wagering, information and customer support available via Racing Touch| AR [HKJC TV] (BERK
Touch, HKJC TV, the HKJC Customer eCentre, and the new GoalX BIRIAE) HKIC BLEFHOREZFHH
football app. Further enhancements this year included a “Find My [GoalX] RIREAR  BVSEY - EFRE
Account” function to help customers reset their account online BXERE N SEHELENRBEES
and a “Find My Horse” function which enables them to follow their SHFEO] EARHIEN SRENFO
selected horses on the HKJC TV app. Ihee HEERAIMAE EER O UK [HKJIC
. . B _ TV #5889 [Find My Horse] Zhag » REER
The digital transformation has.been VD positively received by [HKJC TV FEAEt F 8E B Eas aTasss
customers, not least at the height of fifth wave when OCBB and B i iR EE UL Ay BYRE
Telebet operator services were unavailable. Notably the Club is
now the largest FPS merchant in Hong Kong, with over one million SEETWEREREERZETERD L
customers and more than 400,000 daily transactions on weekend HESERARRESEEHE SIMDIERE
racedays. RRTEEREEE  c EETKAREEE
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RETAIL TRANSFORMATION
SZIME R TR

The Club has embarked on a transformation journey at its Off-
Course Betting Branches (OCBBs), introducing innovative and
experience-driven formats aimed at delivering a more immersive
wagering experience, with opportunities to socialise and enjoy
racing, football and other leisure activities.

The first two new-concept OCBBs opened last year at Electric Road,

North Point and LOHAS Park. Adopting a retro look, the North Point
branch features a 1970’s cha-chaan-teng style, while the LOHAS
branch has a more contemporary look and feel, with a stronger
digital element being featured.

This year, the third of the uniquely designed OCBBs opened on
Stanley Street, Central, catering to the needs of a diverse customer
profile. Collaborating with a renowned New York dessert brand, the
branch is offering a brand new food and beverage experience to
match with Central’s eclectic dining options.
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Stanley Street OCBB in Central.
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RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING
B

Under Hong Kong’s system of responsible gambling, the Club is authorised by the
Government to provide horse race and football betting services and to operate the Mark
Six lottery. In doing so, the Club provides a regulated channel to meet gambling demand
and works with the Government to advocate responsible gambling and to protect the
public from the dangers of credit betting, illegal gambling and associated crimes. It also
ensures that any proceeds benefit the community as a whole, whether in the form of tax
and duty to the Government or through the Club’s own charitable donations.

RESBRITHAEHHELIE  SSRBFREEHES - EREXRAASERERTK
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RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING POLICY
BEIHIERBR

The Club’s support for responsible gambling is implemented
through a wide range of measures under its Responsible Gambling
Policy. These include underage access controls, the dissemination
of responsible gambling messages, and training for all front-line
betting staff. These measures are constantly refined and developed.
This year, for example, the Club’s OCBB Counselling Outreach
Programme was enhanced and expanded to cover all Off-Course
Betting Branches as a regular programme.

The Club’s efforts and achievements are widely recognised. Notably,
in 2021, the Club was again awarded the highest level accreditation
under the Responsible Gaming Framework of the World Lottery
Association (WLA). The Club is the first operator in Asia to receive
this recognition four times in succession since 2011.

The WLA commended the Club for its efforts to protect players
through its Voluntary Account Betting Self-exclusion service and via
its extended treatment referral programme. Also commended was
the expansion of the Club’s player and public education strategy

to include vulnerable groups in the community, the fast roll-out of
online employee education initiatives during the pandemic, and the
Club’s well thought-out stakeholder management system.
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RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING
ADVOCACY AND EDUCATION

BEIIERERNRAE

Though the percentage of problem gamblers in Hong Kong is
relatively small, the Club is fully committed to supporting the Ping
Wo Fund, a Government-managed fund which supports research,
education and professional services addressing gambling related
social issues. By the end of 2022, the Club’s total contributions to
the Fund will exceed HK$495 million.

The Club also supports and initiates projects to raise awareness of
responsible gambling within the wider community and in particular
among young people. The Youth Education Programme, launched
in partnership with the Vocational Training Council and Hong Kong
Children and Youth Services, and now in its third year, encourages
young people to embrace positive and healthy lifestyles. To date
over 18,000 adolescents have participated, with a further 80,000
reached via an online platform during the pandemic.

In a further initiative targeting adolescents during the summer break,

the Club partnered with Hong Kong Children and Youth Services
to launch 2021 Summer Musication, the first-ever responsible

gambling thematic music show. Attended by over 1,300 participants,

the programme website has accumulated over 68,000 views.
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ILLEGAL GAMBLING - A THREAT TO
THE COMMUNITY

FEREERELS

The Club has long warned of the dangers of illegal gambling.
Proceeds from illegal gambling fund drug smuggling, loan sharking,
extortion, money laundering and bribery. Underage gambling and
the provision of credit encourages excessive and pathological
gambling. Every dollar gambled illegally is also a loss to Government
tax revenue and to the charity support provided by the Club. Indeed
it is estimated that operators earn profits of between HK$14 billion
and HK$15 billion a year from illegal gambling in Hong Kong.

The Club is making every effort to tackle and raise awareness of the
problem, working alongside the Hong Kong Police and international
law enforcement. It also plays a leading role in the Asian Racing
Federation’s Council on Anti-illegal Betting and Related Financial
Crime, which monitors and provides regular updates on illegal
gambling and its impact on society and stakeholders across the
globe.

What has become clear is that illegal gambling is a global and
transnational problem, facilitated by online and mobile technology,
digital payment systems and cryptocurrencies. These facts were
highlighted by the United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime in its
Global Report on Corruption in Sport, published in December 2021,
which also pointed out that illegal betting on sport has become a
global problem, a major driver of corruption in sport and a major
channel for money-laundering, including by organised crime groups.

Reports by the Asian Racing Federation’s Council on Anti-illegal Betting
and Related Financial Crime have also highlighted the growth of illegal
gambling during the pandemic. This includes the increasing use of
blockchain technology and cryptocurrencies to disguise transactions
and move money across borders and the launch of a major crackdown
on illegal gambling in the Mainland, targeting both domestic and
overseas operators. Its most recent report, The State of lllegal Betting,
underlined just how expansive the problem is, with almost two-thirds of
online betting operators effectively illegal in most jurisdictions.

It is also clear that the impact of COVID-19 has exacerbated the
growth of illegal betting in Hong Kong, and that this will not be
temporary in nature because of the many competitive advantages
the illegal market has in terms of price (better odds), more products
and the aggressive marketing tactics used to attract bettors.

So while illegal gambling is by no means a new phenomenon, in
terms of scale and all-pervasiveness it is now a major threat to
communities everywhere.
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CHARITIES AND COIVIM‘UNITY
ZERTLE

The Club stood strong together with the community this year, approving HK$6.6 billion

in donations, the second-highest in its history. This included HK$1.4 billion to fight the
pandemic. Mobilising its resources, the Club intensified its support for the most vulnerable
and for those working on the frontline. At the same time it maintained its full support for a
wide range of social causes. With these needs in mind, and also to recognise the efforts
of community partners, the Club launched its Building Stronger Communities Together
campaign to bring positive energy and hope to Hong Kong.
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The Club’s support is made possible by its unique integrated business
model through which racing and wagering generate tax revenue and
charity donations. The Club donated 90% of its operating surplus

in 2021/22 to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, through
which it carries out most of its philanthropic work.

The Trust’s approved donations included HK$4.5 billion in regular
donations, HK$1.4 billion in pandemic-related initiatives, and
HK$630 million to the Government to support activities marking the
25th anniversary of the establishment of the HKSAR. Full details can
be found on pages 102 to 120 of the Financial Report.

APPROVED DONATIONS
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For construction of the Hong Kong Palace Museum
SHEEEBNE U EYE
For pandemic-related initiatives and to support HKSAR 25th Anniversary community activities
TEMAESEURERIFRNERENEBRBER L 25 AFWHEZE
of the Club’s annual operating The Charities Trust’s total charities and community
surplus donated to its approved donations in projects approved in
Charities Trust in 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22
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OUR APPROACH AND AREAS OF
SUPPORT

HERBEN SIS

The Charities Trust believes that the best way to advance societal
welfare and address social needs is collaboratively, proactively and
innovatively.

The Trust’s partners include the social service sector, policymakers,
academia, and business. Through combining their expertise with
its resources, the Trust aims to achieve better results and scalable
solutions.

Conscious of the rapidly changing needs of society, and that some
of these needs may be unmet, the Trust seeks to proactively identify
issues and to develop and implement solutions. To amplify the
impact of its efforts, it supports capacity building — empowering
grantees and beneficiaries with improved knowledge and
organisational strength.

Four Focus Areas

VA % 2= SR S S

Children & Youth Development
REREFER

o  Creating an engaging environment for the next
generation, supporting them to bridge the development
divide and unleash their potential for a hopeful future
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Positive Ageing & Elderly Care
EREFREERY

o] Enhancing the quality of life for people as they age in an
inclusive and enabling environment

o EBIEEHTRROABNERS RATRNEFER
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Innovative solutions, often using technology, support the efficiency AR BB R AT RSN RR R &

and effectiveness of services delivered to the community. The SHRHEFEEE RIBBETHIEIRE
Trust encourages their use among its grantees and through its own EAME - RIEHE BRMYERSEIEGR
initiatives. Indeed, the pandemic has highlighted the potential for HIREHSE  BRRESRENES -
digital technologies to augment learning as well as health and social

EESMBYEERE T ESE B REETE

BFENEE BREEMULRRE - HAE
The Trust provides support across ten principal areas of social need: I -RERK -HKERE BIHRE RERS -
arts, culture and heritage; education and training; elderly services; BEEGLE EERE BERENZERETF
emergency and poverty relief; environmental protection; family BRo

services; medical and health; rehabilitation services; sports and RN . v s
recreation; and children and youth development. ’%f' %’H’q*ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂgﬁm”: ﬁjﬁm’i’gmﬁ’ﬁ‘
MR WE B ST E R ENFE - BAE

care.

Responding to the changing needs of the community, and also TEPRHRERNEOA KRS [28E
seeking to maximise the impact of its own resources, the Trust RRERB | [ RERTFERE | [RELE]
regularly reevaluates its strategy. It is currently focusing on four R BEBAARBAHERNKE] -

strategic focus areas: Positive Ageing & Elderly Care; Children &
Youth Development; Healthy Community; and Talent & Capacity
Building.

|

Healthy Community
REtE

o Promoting physical and mental well-being for a
healthier community

o RADTRAZHNEURE REMERE

V Talent & Capacity Building
BBEATRBRARTKF

o] Nurturing talent and advancing expertise in
support of social progress

o BEATRBESHIABNRKE EBHIRRE
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STANDING STRONG AGAINST THE
PANDEMIC

MEHBRIAT TR

Throughout the pandemic, the Club has taken speedy, targeted
and innovative action, with a particular focus on helping the most
vulnerable and building community resilience.

Since February 2020, the Charities Trust has approved over HK$2.9
billion in COVID-19 relief initiatives and worked with over 2,300

community organisations, care homes and educational institutions.
These efforts have cumulatively benefited over three million people.

Since the onset of the pandemic, the Charities Trust has:
BRIEREZES EEZEZETESCERTYEE:

/ Approved over
in pandemic-relief initiatives
EHEB
EEEEEERR

/ /

® O
N ¢ Helped over

BEERBHEARE MR- 5] NWRAEE
HEFR WFHIEHEIFEALE 8R4
BRED -

B 2020 F2 AR EEREETEREE
#8290 BB T EMSEHHERER
15 - I EA3E 2,300 B EHAE xR A #
BEE RatIRIEA XA 300 & -

Supported over

EF community
ﬁ organisations, care homes,
schools and kindergartens

S 2,500 MA B -
/ PN B

people cumulatively

/

Responding to the urgent needs of the first wave of the pandemic,
the Club sourced and supplied face masks and provided essential
hygiene supplies. It launched the COVID-19 Emergency Fund to
provide fast-track grants to NGOs and helped sustain the social
and arts sectors in the face of pandemic restrictions and funding
challenges.

In the third and fourth waves, the Club focused on helping the
community adapt to the new normal and navigate the prolonged
impact of the pandemic. Initiatives included a food assistance
programme and a talent development initiative for first-time

job seekers. A facilities enhancement scheme was launched to
strengthen the pandemic preparedness of residential care homes.

With the resurgent fifth wave stretching public services to the limit in
the early months of 2022, the Club responded rapidly and in scale.
It also continued to launch initiatives to strengthen community
resilience.

100

RETRBAXER
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B=RENREERRE SEEFRHERE
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1st Wave

F—IRER

Meet urgent needs of the HK$2.9
disadvantaged with agility, billion

empowerment and creativity approved
DAEEE BT 3B S5 2 AL B S EHLIBER

ST R BT Fieid

Preserve diversity, innovation
and sustainability in the social,
sports and arts sectors
RIBH R RS - 888 RBMANEZ T
BIFT R AT R

3rd and 4th Wave
F=RENKEEE

Support the community in coping
with the prolonged impact
of COVID-19

XEABREHERSRBNFESE

4

Urgent support in response to the Omicron variant
outbreak and to strengthen community resilience

RHZSRB AL Omicron# B RS &IE KRt &8
MFEEN
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RESPONDING TO THE FIFTH WAVE
Y ERRER

From the end of December to early May, Hong Kong was hit by
the full force of the pandemic. With infections and fatalities rising,
the community rallied round and the Club stepped up its support,
with new initiatives launched and existing ones expanded. At the
same time, the Club continued to invest in measures to strengthen
community resilience long-term.

SUPPORTING HEALTH CARE
X R B B R G RS

As infections rose, particularly among the elderly, the Trust
expanded the Jockey Club Facilities Enhancement Scheme for
Preparedness at Residential Care Homes, supplying additional high-
efficiency air purifiers and HEPA filters to residential care homes

for the elderly and the disabled and also to nursing homes with
preliminary or confirmed COVID-19 cases.

As the outbreak worsened, many Hospital Authority General Out-
patient Clinics were converted to designated COVID-19 clinics or
had to suspend services. To fill the gap, the Trust launched the
Jockey Club Affordable Outpatient Services Subsidy Scheme,
subsidising care for the underprivileged at non-profit and private
clinics.

Meanwhile, to meet increased demand for pharmaceutical care, the
Trust offered support to NGOs to run the Jockey Club Community
Pharmacy Support Network.

To alleviate pressure on the healthcare system, CUHK Medical
Centre opened a designated isolation ward, with negative pressure
rooms and isolation facilities, to treat COVID-19 patients referred
from public hospitals. Enhancement work for the ward was
supported by the Trust. Officially opened in September 2021, CUHK
Medical Centre is a non-profit private teaching hospital constructed
with a HK$1.3 billion Trust donation.

To support individuals recovering from COVID-19, especially

the elderly and other vulnerable groups, the Trust launched the
COVID-19 Rehabilitation and Recovery Programmes. Services
include digitalised self-management of long COVID symptoms,
community-based health support, and assistance to manage long
COVID cases at residential care homes.
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SUPPORTING SOCIAL CARE
RS IRE

To facilitate use of the Government’s mandatory LeaveHomeSafe
app, the Trust funded the supply of 20,000 smartphones and mobile
SIM cards to the underprivileged elderly along with training in their
use.

With NGOs facing a rising demand for their services, the Trust
injected an extra HK$100 million into its COVID-19 Emergency Fund,
providing fast-track grants to 213 NGOs. The Trust also supported
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service to provide more than one
million COVID-19 rapid antigen test kits to NGOs.

Mindful of the needs of elderly singletons and doubletons,
particularly amid tightened social-distancing measures, the Trust
extended the Jockey Club Support Project for the Elderly under
COVID-19. It also expanded the scope to include persons with
disabilities living with ageing parents. The project offers home visits,
the delivery of daily necessities, outpatient escort services and other
health-related services.

Complementing this was a meal delivery programme for the
home-bound, frail, and other vulnerable elderly persons, while the
previously launched Jockey Club Food Assistance Programme was
expanded. To date the latter has provided over 9.3 million meals to
86,000 people and is expected to distribute a total of 23.6 million
meals to over 166,000 people.

The Trust also scaled up the JC PROcruit C programme to support
DSE graduates and to help first-time jobseekers in 16 caring
professions.

For students’ overall wellness, a mental health programme
supported by Trust-supported projects was put in place to bridge
service gaps and to strengthen school-community bonds.

RAEHRERABAFETH [ZOHT] R
EREN SeAEETESERERERE
24 20,000 BPEREF B A {HET - LW
PREEEEECR

Lo AT REFEBRFHEBRBNERS
7. SEAEETESONEM L RSENE
SRRIMER 1 BT WA 213 BERAF
HBTEFIER RN ERESEBES
HE RGBS EIEBUTHBRAERB 1008
DI ERESRETFERBESE

HRIEEERN SR BEREERERZ
BE-Eit ESERESE [(TURET] RE
&8 WERARBHELUAZEFRR
FEENRAEAL FHEIRNABE LRS-
FEAREELTER TR LHED RSN
FERRAS

BN EEBTETE FEEINRER
HERRERS MEAETH B2
BETEVWENE LERR E5EM
86,000 AJKESHEE 930 BMER - 512178
RS 2,360 BRER BEREBR 168
6,000 A°

EENCER [BESEEXARRTE] 5
BCRBA LR B EERER RO - 518

BINZE 16 MUABRNEETIE  WHEN
e, (DSE) EEASEMRE

AREHBAEEENSLEE ESHET 1AL
BEREXESS ORFESLEMREETF B
IR ISR A B BB A B EE
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SUPPORTING LEARNING
X REHE

With the resurgence of COVID-19, in-person classes were again
suspended. Recognising that the disruption of education can have
a lasting impact on child development and on society, the Trust
provided support for continued learning and for student well-being.

Learning kits with fun educational activities, which were first
distributed in previous waves, were disseminated to a further
145,000 kindergarten and primary school students.

To keep students engaged, the Trust also supported the development
of a blended learning online platform, which will continue even after
the pandemic subsides.

BUILDING STRONGER
COMMUNITIES TOGETHER

oo N
RNEE
In response to the unprecedented challenge of the pandemic, and
with the aim of bringing positive energy to the community, the Club
launched its Building Stronger Communities Together multi-media
campaign in March.

Through showcasing personal stories of resilience, inspiration and
hope, as well as the work of the Club’s charity and community
partners, the campaign sought to inspire everyone with the can-do
spirit of Hong Kong.

In sharing these stories the Club also sought to raise awareness of
the social issues and development needs facing our community,
whether it be supporting the elderly, promoting the development
of children and young people, building a healthier community, or
nurturing the talent of our best and brightest.

The Building Stronger Communities Together stories can be
accessed via a microsite: https://HKJC.com/together/en and via
social media: https://m.facebook.com/HKJCCharitiesTrust/ and
https://instagram.com/hkjc_community.
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Tai Kwun —
Centre for Heritage

and Arts
KEE— HENRESTEE

Tai Kwun is one of the largest heritage conservation and revitalisation projects ever
undertaken in Hong Kong, encompassing three declared monuments — the former Central
Police Station, Central Magistracy and Victoria Prison. It is operated by The Jockey Club
CPS Lid. (JCCPS), a not-for-profit company established under the Club’s Charities Trust.
Since opening in May 2018, it has hosted a wide variety of performances, events and
exhibitions showcasing the very best of local and international arts and culture.

REREBEREAENETERERECIER 2—  H=EEZELEARN @ BRETEE
F  PRBHARNERASHER - KERFEREETETRUNFELF T —EFS
NYRBEBERABIEE  B2018 5 ARTFEUNR  —HERSEIENRE - EBHRRE
2 R K BIFR TR AR AV AL EAMTTRE o
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million
visitors since opening
/ BB AR BEAIR
In the second half of 2021, Tai Kwun hosted a number of well- 2021 FT¥5F - REEM T ZEHEZEHN
received events. These included the heritage exhibition Serendipity BB BEREEUERE A EEN [HA
in the Street, the trust & confusion exhibition, the annual BOOKED: R RE . [EE&XE] RE - FER
Hong Kong Art Book Fair, and Circus Plays, which offered a diverse #tH) [BOOKED: HEBEMER | Kk [InE
range of events for all ages to share. REFEHE]  ATRAFRENTRZRE

_ _ » ESRMILEAEHE o
Christmas was celebrated with a 12-metre tall Giving Tree decorated

with the Club’s “Gifting for Good” Christmas ornaments. Ten o BEREFERAFENAERE R
thousand were available for purchase. All proceeds, along with a SE 12 RNEREOE  UHEES (&
matching donation from the Club, went to The Community Chest of BZE ] EEMNERLER > EmRABER
Hong Kong. 8 o [EERE | HEHEH 10,000 #4E
. o AEMETRIER  FMESERMLEEN
The outbreak of the fifth wave of the pandemic in early 2022, WETHISH » 2 HBHEEBARES o
however, led to the temporary closure of venues in February.
Although visitor numbers fell, Tai Kwun continued to attract and A BRRFRBREDRE » BIEKER
engage with local and international audiences through an extensive 2AEERERMN - AFTEAEEME I
programme of online exhibitions, guided tours, performances, T BERENAERBEEBRTERENEL
workshops and talks. Highlights included On Stage Online, which RE -EBEE -  RE  T{EHREE R
offered audiences an opportunity to view previous performances, At REMNBRSER RN - EHETEEIE
and Tai Kwun Conversations, a new series of cross-disciplinary talks [REEZER] » BERERBARLEL
on heritage conservation. LR —38 [ REEETHK ] RIERE > BEE

REBEE L —RIIBEHR

/

0.0
== /
mEEmm
11 programmes and events
since opening
BEARLAR 2Rk 1"
/ HE R
heritage tours since opening
EBAR LA S &
/ AEENE
At the end of April, with the easing of pandemic restrictions, Tai HZE 4 AR BRERNE  KREZRIWIE
Kwun hosted two new exhibitions: Double Vision and emo gym. THRE — 25 R [BHELE] -5 AE
Coinciding with Tai Kwun’s fourth anniversary in May was the BEAERENAT XZAREEN[EXR
second edition of the popular outdoor flower market “In Bloom”. 881 FOMEEMETHBER R -

106



/ Operations Review Charities and Community / £ [EfE ZERHE /

INTERNATIONAL RECOGNITION
Eilb37 S

Adding to the over 30 accolades Tai Kwun has received since
opening was the RIBA (Royal Institute of British Architects)
International Award for Excellence. It was one of 16 projects to
receive the prize in 2021 and the only one from Hong Kong.

FURTHER RESTORATION WORK
ARREZIRE

Of the 16 historic buildings at Tai Kwun, 15 have been fully restored.

Block 4, the Married Inspectors’ Quarters, is the only historic
building yet to be restored. During the year discussions on its
recovery continued, with public safety being the top priority.

The Club remains committed to the conservation of Tai Kwun and
will work closely with the Government on the way forward.

BREES KECHKERB 30 HRK F
NERRABEFEEMBSER =M 5K

52021 F£2R 16 ERRER 2 — HEE—
ERNEHBIRE -

REEHB 16 EELZE - Eh 15 BRETHK
BEIR BE—HTEENEENECEER
BE TR BIESRNBENRITERET
YURREZEREEEEBEE

RERR FEHBEINERRENREE
LT Y EHEBUFRISERSE-




TRUST-INITIATED PROJECTS
HEeFEBIR

Through Trust-initiated projects, the Charities Trust seeks to pilot new service models and bring fresh thinking to
the social sector. Targeting both current and emerging needs, the Trust works with partners to develop and fund
projects that are scalable and potentially with long-lasting impact. In 2021/22, 14 Trust-Initiated Projects were in
progress. Despite the challenges of COVID-19, the projects continued to achieve positive results. Indeed, many
adapted their service models to address urgent needs arising from the pandemic.

EeZ=EtEcERESTERR FOETAFREES ALERSEFRE - ESHSEBHERTERRTALS
m%%ﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁnﬁhﬁé% DEEAEERNNRBENEE 72 2021/22 FE - CHTHESTEEERA S 4 @ -TY
BIEE WEEEPESENSRE BT RS2 EENREEX BEEFAR UESHSERB THSEE

To enable older adults to participate fully in society, and to live SELECTESHARMNEE BYFRKR
independently and securely, the Trust is working with its partners %iﬁirn T EFREFALBBSELEER
to build an age-friendly city. Based on the principles of dignity and DURESHBILZENAETT N ESUER
respect for all, the Trust is also seeking to enhance the delivery and LBRNEEEERRE BORAZERBEN
quality of end-of-life care. X

w
©» +

R \
ab
=

IceccO

Jockey Club End-of-Life Community Care Project

ERSRIGHD

Jockey Club Age-friendly City
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Jockey Club Community eHealth
Care Project

BEE e B4 | BEFREEES

This territory-wide project integrates community care, professional
expertise and digital technology to support chronic disease
management and the healthy ageing of older people. Elderly centres
are being developed as the first point of contact to detect and
address healthcare needs. The digital solutions employed have
helped raise health awareness among older people and empowered
them with better self-management capabilities.

Following its pilot implementation last year, a digital portal
complemented by a web app was expanded to more centres to
facilitate tracking of health conditions by the elderly and centre
workers. In response to the fifth wave of the pandemic, the Home
Blood Pressure Measurement Scheme was relaunched. Readings
are uploaded for follow-up care, supported by other initiatives such
as well-being check-up calls and online health programmes.

/
100

elderly centres are
participating in the project
100 BREP LS EGE /

'ﬁ"
/

" 1,530

A

® centre staff trained (ATTLS

IR R 1,590 B '
B TR |

g

{? Approved donation
g EERIBR

(=S
o

2 million BT

[EEE [e Y] ETRETEENS LS
HERER FEXERBIBCREEERMN
SEENRREEREREREEF -SRI
REPOREEDAZ  UPFEMEEREN
REEETE TEIRARIMEIR LR HE
RAREBHEENEINEREEEENRE
Ao

SRR EFRARETRRLRRLETYS
SEEHARNAZERARERN Y FEER
EEZREPL BPRERPOETHEMN
EHAFPHRERR - ARETRERE [E
RERM BT | BEHT A L&MER
B8 UEREXE FTETRAESFERBR
A ERREH SRR

27,500"

elderly participants empowered
with better health knowledge and
self-management capabilities

A 27,500 BEREWFTEIPIRERE
H# - AR RABREERESD
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In partnership with four gerontology research institutes, together
with District Councils, the Government, NGOs, the business sector
and other community stakeholders, the Jockey Club Age-friendly
City Project seeks to build an age-friendly city capable of supporting
all age groups. It also recommends areas for improvement to
support senior citizens’ well-being and encourages community
participation to enhance age-friendliness.

Since the project started in 2015, over 140 district-based
programmes have been organised in addition to public education
programmes. Hong Kong has attained higher age-friendliness
scores in seven out of the eight domains of an age-friendly city
identified by the World Health Organization. The only domain that
has slightly dropped is Social Participation, due to pandemic
restrictions. According to a territory-wide survey, the project has
successfully raised public awareness of age-friendliness. Through
the Jockey Club Age-friendly City Partnership Scheme over 180
companies and organisations have adopted age-friendly practices.

&

Approved donation
EFEHBER

million BE&& T
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/
¥ 2 3 5 0 0 ’
° / 1 8 Districts have joined w Age-friendly City

Ambassadors trained
the World Health Organization’s Global Network / 2 EHIE 2,500 {x

[ ) (]
"ﬂ a for Age-friendly Cities and Communities and [ERVERRE
° o developed district action plans

[ )

/ 28 1 BOCMAERTEEAS

[ZRRERFRAEHHTREERS] I / 4
3,912,000

accumulated public viewership and
|I||I engagement through publicity and
public education initiatives
/ R ABRBETAEANSHER
KB EEE 3,912,000 AR

Eight domains of an age-friendly city

RERFRREWH)\ K&K

Outdoor spaces and
buildings
BN EEMEE
Transportation
i@

Housing

EE

Social participation
He26R

Respect and
social inclusion
EENHEER
Civic participation and
employment
NERSHENFE

Communication and
information
FEEXR

Community support and
health services

B B2 B AR A
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Jockey Club End-of-Life Community
Care Project

[EESRER ] 5T

This multi-disciplinary collaborative project, bridging the social and
medical sectors, promotes dignified and holistic end-of-life care.
Through enhanced training and development, health and social care
professionals, frontline practitioners and volunteers are empowered
to provide more compassionate and personalised care to terminally
ill elderly patients in residential care homes and in the community.
This year the project entered its third phase, with total approved
funding reaching HK$519 million.

Over the past six years, the project has provided physical,
psychosocial and spiritual care and practical support to 11,650
patients and their family members. Hong Kong has risen from 22nd
in the global Quality of Death and Dying Index, prior to the start of
the project, to 9th in 2021.

Responding to the fifth wave of the pandemic, the project held a six-
day webinar series to share bereavement care, end-of-life care and
self-care advice with the public.

/ ~30%

of all subvented or contract

residential care homes for

the elderly have joined the project
28 30% ZHHEY

ZEREE S ML E /
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g Approved donation
g 2EHHER
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2 million & &%t
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R stEABRERUEREEAE FIGE
I UARETRMEEI ZEUAERZER S
RENRIFEEREREEHONZER
B oEISERANEZRER ©E 1B
E 551,900 EETe

BENE FEIA 11,650 BFEERFBIR
HIH 1B WAENRERE URER
TEFTEFRREA BER (AT EEREE
HEEREBMUINE 22- F 2021 EHERAZE
IR

RRETRAE  SHESRT B RNE L
& BARRHEREES EANEED
-

/ 221,900

®
participants have joined
I end-of-life care public education

programmes
i 221,900 AZEERRER
BN ARBEES

’ 30,100+

health and social care
professionals and frontline
practitioners trained
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CHILDREN & YOUTH
DEVELOPMENT

RENTFER

To help children and young people from different backgrounds HEeFBHTER EETRXULERENRE
thrive, and also to equip them with the skills to succeed in the 21st RES  HEtMEE 21 2 rEReE Eo
century, the Trust has initiated projects to enrich early childhood Rz EEFTEEEREYRBBEER
development, support primary and secondary education, and EBRPNBEHERFESHR UREESHFE
facilitate young people’s career development. BEBR -

D BEE a\— Q
zisox [ 598 . &
inese@Jc ‘!l — y

1R X {31 3T 86 B

Joyfil Learning for Inclusive @ommunity l.'
- iy seennsia
) KeySteps@lC

m RE—I\& #tE—AL Bridging from the start
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EECEEEMYE

JOCKEY CLUB AUTISM
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KeySteps@JC Ny
O
g/\\‘ = EJL:FI-I_ J é" BEIAR
2\ 813
9
3
90 million BEETT
KeySteps@JC provides support to children from disadvantaged [BEEgERE] AEBRERERNAE
backgrounds in their formative years. A pilot project covering 32 PEERRISIE o WIH R BT BIEEHE « BERT
kindergartens in two districts, it brings together the education, BREEGE sEAMER 32 E4HHEIRM
medical and welfare sectors with the aim of providing holistic EHNHEZE AHERIERTEER UK
support, with a particular focus on strengthening parent-child TEEERE FHEIEREENE  RRREM
relationships and enriching the learning environment. Overall the PR EEMER S EFENBIEEIEKEER

project has had a positive impact on participating children, parents E— SRR RBEIFIEBUR -
and teachers, with data helping to further research and inform policy N - N
RIEHR AR RERRRER BRI

— B M LR AR E R R
During the pandemic, the project has taken extra steps to support E FERNSTERENS REERREY
schools and families, including through online teaching and the ERERERBTEERENATER
distribution of learning packs to families. It also held two press

conferences highlighting findings on the adverse effects of the

pandemic on children’s health and parent-child relationships.

/ 960/ of children showed / o
0 an increase o
in the “school readiness” subscale score of teachers coached used more
of the Hong Kong Early Child Development early education developmental
Scale, facilitating their better transition to a techniques and activities

“ fRllyseh oo ing 96% & MRS R AE BN LD

BRPN A\BEE | BRI BBEMNE
FMuMREE BRI S/ NE TR

/ 98%

of parents and caregivers participating in
the parent and child interactive programme
improved their knowledge of early childhood
development

ZHEFE N YRE2HUBRRIRARE N
RRNBEET 8% RTEHRAEEN
weme e P
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MBS EEAEREE
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&
COOIThInk@JC ‘? Approved donation
TR B 2= SERBR
[EEREN B ANE | £ peen
i\l 923
)
2 million B&#ET
CoolThink@JC encourages students’ digital creativity and proactive [BESSEERERA | TasmE L)

use of technology for social good. In doing so it is helping to bridge HRBEHISAIE BRERRE ALEE
the digital divide from a young age and to mainstream computational  HEE - st EBB TEASSNESEM (858

thinking education in the school curriculum. CoolThink@JC also BB A INEBERBAREFSIAE
offers teachers professional development programmes, quality HEHEHRA TR B AT IR MEEITIIE
teaching materials and a learning platform. To date, more than B EEEMREBTA -ZSEHEHE 58,100
58,100 students have participated. Most significantly, its curriculum BELZHGE - BEEEIENR HEREHE
materials and pedagogy have been adopted by the Education NEHMEERRRETRATENRE
Bureau for the professional development of primary school teachers. T R#HE% -

During the school closure period starting in March, CoolThink@JC 2HEERAST 3 AEFEERENRE &
and Fun to Move@JC co-hosted a series of free online workshops FEEHREHEITEHE [ EEERRES
for primary students. The total viewership was over 200,000. Videos Bt 61 BN BERB-RIIREBRA L
were also created for schools to facilitate blended and remote T B2 A NBE 20 B8R AE
learning, with virtual workshops provided to parents. REMEFHRUKEEERNBERELERZE F

RARRIEEA L TES-

/
ﬁ Reached >85o/0 / Adopted by1 31

E E of all aided primary schools network schools, with 14 hours
in Hong Kong

of formal computational thinking
lessons annually

SHEIEBERBES%E/NE

131 BPERERRATE SFET
/ 14 /NSERBEBHRE
84% _—
of students are satisfied with their %’J@ﬁ?ﬁﬂ%@ 2021
CoolThink@JC learning experience a
BNPLHNHNPERRBENE o 3 Q f




C-for-Chinese@JC
[EEeABERY | 5TE|

Utilising a home-school-community model, C-for-Chinese@JC
seeks to improve the Chinese proficiency of ethnic minority (EM)
kindergarten students, support their transition to primary education
and enhance their sense of belonging. Fundamental to its approach
are three principles: a culturally responsive learning environment,
effective teaching, and pleasurable and meaningful learning. To date
the project has supported over 1,890 children.

Since 2018, the project’s training programme for educators has
been recognised by the Education Bureau as a professional
development course to support non-Chinese speaking students.
This year, the Trust launched Phase 2 of the project to support 42,000
kindergarten students, including 5,100 non-Chinese speaking EM
students and their families.

96%

of EM student participants showed

Approved donation

SERBR

[BEESRBERY | FHEIFEBAI [X -
BB IEES BE LB HHEEEER
SHREE S PR R B
BER ENSEZEZEN=AERR A
XALEIENEZIRE B RHE Lx&r‘rkﬁﬁ
BRENEBERE Z2SCERE 1,800 &2
o

SRR AT EE R R RTEE 2018 FieE
HERMAZEBIEZBENAARE S
F o EeRECTESHRE MRS &
542,000 BHHEESLERBTE BPEE
5100 BV EIGBFHEBEERER A

/ >9T%

)
== ? of educators trained showed

A improved Chinese language scores R — improved knowledge of pedagogy
— BB B, and pr?ctlces in teaching EM children
/ %ffg?ggiggﬁ;ﬁ; SR BETHEED HiBIT%
’ / RIBBRIBIHREFRENE DM

7 >98%

of parents trained feel more confident
supporting their child’s learning and
transition to primary education
SHEEIINRRF  B98%RREEEL
B FEE b PIER G E N BRE

HEBEBBENARBFRA

A - 39%

. of social practitioners trained
- feel better able to support
children’s learning
/ BEIEY|HH Toh - 95% FRE
BB EEE
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JC A-Connect: Jockey Club Autism
Support Network

BESEHRTTETE

Since its launch in 2015, this pioneering project has provided holistic
support to over 33,000 students with Autism Spectrum Disorder
(ASD) in 510 primary and secondary schools. This includes school-
based support and training as well as assistance for parents and
families via 18 centres throughout the city. It is also strengthening
the expertise of teachers and service providers and helping to raise
public awareness of ASD.

Based on the positive results achieved, the programme was
mainstreamed by the Education Bureau as of the 2021/22 school
year to support even more children with ASD. Trust support for the
project has been extended for a further two years to provide more
systematic caregiver training for families in need. This year an online
learning platform was launched for parents and professionals. To
promote social inclusion a new mascot, “Bling Bling”, and a new
storybook, were also introduced.

&

Approved donation
SEHIER

411

million B&87T

Ou(af\on (v arg Y

WIEEEHEIR 2015 FHEZES B4 510
B/ 238 33,000 A EEER A RME S
T BERAZEREIN URIRES 18
BREHLAIRNREREHEEXE 512
IR BI RGN & BRASAE IR E A AR
RETRARYEEENRE -

ERFTEESRRE HAERR 2021/22 BF
B EEXIBEREEZBEIRER UERE
ZEMEEE - ERREETESTERTE
AEMTE AEABEERERBEERAEN
BEEEIEN - S& FTEELAE 2B FEH
SRREEALER MEBSHY PR
NREUEMEE SHHSHBME-

of schools in HK are participating

-~ 5/ 0 /

%
Benefiting 60 o

2B 450%B RSB HEqTE ..
of ASD students in mainstream schools

/ )
2
HEB60%REERERN
/ BB AR i
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CLAP@JC
BEEERE AlriEsrEl

This cross-sectoral platform supports the career and life
development (CLD) of young people, helping them explore their
potential and the multiple pathways to success. It has developed a
world-class CLD framework to support network schools and CLD
interventions at over 100 youth services units. In partnership with
the education, community and business sectors, it has successfully
engaged over 30,000 young people and trained over 9,000 teachers
and social workers.

CLAP@JC’s online learning system has been adopted by the
Education Bureau as part of its Life Planning website, which
provides CLD teaching materials to secondary school teachers. This
year the Home Affairs Bureau invited the project to provide CLD
training to 24 NGOs under the Bureau’s Funding Scheme for Youth
Life Planning Activities. During school suspension periods during
the fifth wave of the pandemic, virtual internships and project-based
workplace learning were offered to senior secondary students.

118
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Approved donation
2EMBR
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million B& BT
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BEFE XEBOFNBEMEERE 51
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7 90%

" 92%

of teachers have integrated
related knowledge into their work

92% 241 & B Th 2 48 B8 1 35 FE
BRI

7 90%

A

g

/

of youth participants in pre-
employment training feel
they are more job ready

90% S ST EIBABE I E F
RTIAEREEBRABS

/

&

of participating at-risk youth went
back to school, joined training
programmes or joined the workforce

0% B SR FIRIBIES -
SEIEHINIR BB

100°

youth services units have adopted
S the project’s intervention model

to enhance their career and life

development programmes

8110018 & F ARFFEE{L SR AR &
RN ARR - BURE BN £
ERRIRE
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HEALTHY COMMUNITY
R ER

Recognising the vital importance of physical and mental well-being
for people of all ages, the Trust is supporting initiatives to advance
preventative community healthcare, slow down the progression

of frailty for at-risk elderly, and support the mental health of

young people. These have proven particularly valuable during the
pandemic, with new initiatives launched to promote health and build
resilience.

SERECETESRATRARNI VREE
ERER ARXFIEERE EHBERE
PR T RIS RRENRIERE LUK
BT FRANBHER EHRRE ELI1EH
BERERERN MESTE— DT
g EEREREEREA AR
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BEG Tef@R EFRREEHE

Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project

LevelMindeJC BEF & FiT OGS

=
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l .3 Holistic Support Project

/W for Elderly Mental Wellness
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JC JoyAge: Jockey Club Holistic
Support Project for Elderly Mental
Wellness

B RS RRETETE

JC JoyAge provides a community-based support network for senior
citizens facing the challenges of ageing. Its stepped-care service
model offers prevention and intervention services to older adults

at risk of, or living with, depression. It also provides mental health
training to social service professionals and recruits young-olds as
ambassadors and peer supporters.

Since January 2022, an additional 22 Integrated Community Centres
for Mental Wellness (ICCMWs) and District Elderly Community
Centres (DECCs) have joined the project, bringing the total to 47, or
72% of such service units in Hong Kong. The project also held an
international symposium to raise public awareness of elderly mental
wellness. In response to the pandemic, the project team updated its
tele-screening protocol, developed a mental health resource toolkit
and maintained regular contact with at-risk or depressed elderly via
phone and video calls.

. ’5,120"

A depressed elderly served
BB BE5,120 8 B MBE
/ 1S E R MRS

400"

peer supporters trained
RIS 4008
/ Erd

%4y

@ Approved donation
g" BEMIBR
9
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2 million & &%t
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B 2022 F1 B SHESIRBE-— SRR
2ERE HE 22 BEBERGESHE O
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at-risk elderly served
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LevelMind@JC
EESYT 02

LevelMind@JC aims to boost young people’s cognitive resources,
personal strengths and overall mental wellness. Its eight hubs
provide a stigma-free environment for young people aged 12 to 24
to relax, heal, connect and seek help. Utilising a three-tier service
model it identifies and provides early intervention to those in need,
with referral consultation services available for follow-up support.
A diverse range of educational outreach activities provides further
assistance. The project’s first international conference was held
online in April, with over 3,300 attending.

In a survey conducted this year, over 90% of participants reported
feeling more supported after joining the hubs, with a majority saying
they had a better knowledge of the support channels and resources
available. Youth workers reported that training enhanced their
confidence and competencies in supporting youth mental wellness.

/8

operating youth-specific and youth-
friendly services in 8 districts
EE2HB 8 ERL 8 B

/ B R [FA7 0

/
o0
LA

/5,100 /
)
young people using the
project’s services to enhance
their mental wellness
;/ HiES 1008 F D FE AT EIN
RIS AR AU IR R R
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FU nto M Ove@J C ‘,? Approved donation
ESQSREEDH A Y

il 98

e

90 million BEB T
Through fun activities, embracing both school and home, Fun [BEEEXRESHE ] ZRZTHERMLEN
to Move@JC is helping primary students in 35 pilot schools and EE BRRREE B 35 BEENEYW
their families become more physically active while boosting their BERRASSEEROTE  RIK{EEMMS
enthusiasm for sport. In this way it seeks to instil positive lifelong HRFESHNEB-HIASEOT —RUEHE
physical activity attitudes and habits in the next generation and BATERATESNEAEENEE It
the community at large. Wrist-worn fitness trackers help monitor ShEEREESFS BRENSELENED
progress and provide useful big data for analytics. 2 WRHAREIBEINZA -
The project’s online events and videos of home-based exercises and ~ SF5HEIFTRNA L REEBZ A NE
games have been popular this year, engaging children and parents BEOARZEL  FORREZEERIEHEZ
during the pandemic. Online development workshops were also BEEHA o BN FEITERBATERR LR
organised for teachers. THedhe

/ T
&’ 60,000

fitness trackers handed out
rEIE R
/ ##3860,0001E B F %

/202,000

w views of online classes during the
special school holiday this year

#838202,000 A JRIESEE
/ R4S RIR IR R S
BN MBS
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TALENT & CAPACITY BUILDING
BB AT RIRFTEFKF

In support of Hong Kong’s long-term development and social EERECTHESRESEER UEIASN
progress, the Trust is investing in projects to build human capital and &R - WA A REBHEIFEED  5E
develop the innovative capabilities of individuals and organisations. BNRERRRERELSES - HEBEBERE

These include projects to nurture teachers and social workers, to REHAM R THEERRE - EARNEREA
leverage technology in support of more effective service delivery, R URZEEFEARABEELENE
and to foster young people as the caring leaders of tomorrow. #ho

}
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JC InnoPower Fellowship for
Teachers and Social Workers

ESSHEE IR NS

This talent development programme seeks to inspire teachers and
social workers and to enhance their innovation capabilities. Through
local and overseas training, and a collaborative learning platform,
Fellows can share knowledge and broaden their cross-sectoral
exposure.

The pandemic has not stopped their learning. Indeed, Fellows
have continued to earn accolades and to share their experiences
and ideas with the wider community. During the fifth wave of the
pandemic, some also received grants from the Club’s COVID-19
Emergency Fund to implement projects.

119

innovative projects incubated

/
G

LEIB AT BRI SR A Rt T3RE
RIFR A URETH B R AR o 5t
SR AR BINEIERE R T IHIERE
FE  BAB AT AR URIEEE
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AEERERRE SERERFEFEE T
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sotirs 13909

students and users, including

1,900~

= HECHRE119E .
/ Bl%IEE social workers

BERI7T509BBEFAS
BIE1,900 HET ML T

Two Teacher Fellows won the Innovative

Teacher Award 2021 organised by

HKEdCity

MR 2SR B R B HMEE [l

— EfidE 2021

. Two Teacher Fellows won the International
" Outstanding E-learning Awards 2021
organised by HKU E-learning Laboratory

MR BMEEREBABETEERRE
R AN [ ERR I E T 2R 2021

A
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Jockey Club SMART Family-Link
Project

RS ERETE

Leveraging advanced information and communications technology
(ICT) and data analytics, this project seeks to improve the
preventative, supportive and early remedial services provided to
families by all 26 NGO-operated Integrated Family Service Centres
(IFSCs) and Integrated Services Centres (ISCs). More than 440
family service workers are benefiting from an online platform, i-TLS,
for capacity building, co-creation and co-learning. The project

also organises public education programmes to strengthen family
relationships.

This year more NGO-operated IFSCs and ISCs have adopted the
i-Connect system, the first integrated service management platform
customised for the family service sector in Hong Kong. i-Connect
not only improves the quality of services provided by frontline

staff but also generates big data for further analysis and planning.
The platform supports the e-submission of statistical reports from
NGOs to the Social Welfare Department, advancing the digital
transformation of the sector.

The pandemic has further accelerated adoption of the project’s
online applications, NGOs using them to stay in touch with hard-to-
reach groups and to provide a variety of online programmes.

' 1,616

intervention programmes

HEIEBR1,616(
/ ANER

Benefiting

126,500"........

FHEIE R #i8126,500 & R A&
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82%

of family service workers reported
increased use of ICT during the
pandemic, with the majority likely to
continue post-pandemic
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Scholarships

BEERSRES

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarships, first established in 1998,
support outstanding students through their studies with the ultimate
aim of nurturing them as caring leaders of society. JC Scholars

are selected for their intellect, character, leadership qualities and
commitment to service. They include local, Mainland and special
educational needs undergraduates, vocational education students,
postgraduate students at the University of Oxford and Harvard
University, and NGO leaders in the Chicago Booth Executive MBA
Programme.

With last year’s presentation ceremony held online for pandemic
reasons, this year’s ceremony returned to a live format at Tai Kwun,
with new scholarships granted to 45 students and congratulations
offered to 54 recent graduates. Meanwhile, the Talent Development
Secretariat, established in 2015 to provide additional opportunities
for learning and social service, continues to support the personal
development of JC Scholars.

scholarships awarded
to date

*  sazsems
/ 890IHRES

. Jockey Club Scholars
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@ g Approved donation
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CHARITIES TRUST HIGHLIGHTS
ZERETESENIER

Apart from Trust-Initiated Projects, The Trust supports a wide range of community needs
across ten areas. The following are selected highlights for the year.

BRYESTEEBIN  EEREETESHNBEIRERETEHE - B RELS S LEN
FE  UTRFAETHIDERIERE -

128



/ Operations Review Charities and Community / £ [EfE ZERHE /

REVAMPING POPULAR SPORTS E‘gg
FACILITIES B=
TEZEUIRE BRI aports ?nd

To improve community sports facilities, the Trust donated over
HK$170 million to the South China Athletic Association (SCAA) to
redevelop its multi-purpose stadium and refurbish its golf driving
range in Causeway Bay. The SCAA - Jockey Club Stadium and
the SCAA - Jockey Club Golf Driving Range officially opened in
November. Among the improvements is an international-standard
artificial turf pitch. The new facilities will benefit both the public and
professional athletes.

AREHEEERE FSEEEETESEIEE 1/E 7,000 88T i5E
%E@%‘ BEMABENZARGSES SR SAARKSS 55
RETEA HEETY — FEREEERE | K FERETY — EFS
mﬁiﬁﬁ’sﬁj R 2021 F 11 BERFER KRENESSEH SR
HEEBREENHEERS FREER—REEEHEREATR

# = CULTIVATING INNOVATIVE THINKING
&R E A
Education and
Training In support of universal access to quality STEM education, the

Trust has established the CUHK Jockey Club Al for the Future
Project to mainstream artificial intelligence education. This year
it approved a further donation of HK$98 million to support the
development of additional learning materials and experiences.
The project’s Teaching and Learning Pack has been recognised
by the Government and will be adapted for the secondary school
curriculum.

FELEETESHET [PRXERE [E] HRFeHM ] BATEEAA
IREE UEREBEN STEM A A -5t 2ISFEBESFAL R 9,800
BEL RBELEE-SEVHEERRENSERBEE ST ETEERA
BE HHEBERESMAZRBHERE
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CARING FOR DEMENTIA PATIENTS
PRI R(LIEA T

Following the success of phase one of the Jockey Club Discharge
Support and Rehabilitation Programme, the Jockey Club Centre
for Positive Ageing received further support from the Trust this year
for phase two. The programme helps individuals with dementia
rehabilitate and adapt to home life after hospitalisation. It also
provides training for their carers. Approximately 350 older people
with dementia and 700 caregivers are set to benefit from the
programme.

Elderly
Services

BRE [OR% | #RERADNE—RENEHEZERE ESREETE
SSEBRE—SRIESSEERETE R - sTEIHEIKE(LEAL
EHREEARREERBEIELSTE THBANRESEHIG KERY
350 AEEMBILENRER 700 BEREE -

};&é ADDRESSING NEIGHBOURHOOQOD
NEEDS

y == dh
Emergency and El )ﬁ ?‘:I: ]':'E_“ iFEE=S
Poverty Relief

Following a pilot initiative to support the well-being of people living
in subdivided units in Western District, the Jockey Club Healthy
Neighbourhood Kitchen Project was launched in October to build
a support network in other districts on Hong Kong Island over three
years. Through providing communal spaces and cooking equipment,
the project seeks to promote healthy eating and to address issues
of isolation and resource inaccessibility. In the coming year, the Trust
will expand support to people living in subdivided units in Sham
Shiu Po, Yau Tsim Mong, Kowloon City, Kwai Tsing and Eastern
districts.

AERA-AXEAREEFNERTE SH=FN REE [ZHME
FERER] ItBEItERR | 1 2021 10 BEXBR  EERBEHEME
BUXERE TARIEEREHAZTZARERRE  KTHEERA
FPERHEREMEERENNRTIEIN  EriHEbIARALERER
HEERER - RF EEREERETKBERYEEFNXEEZEINAMRE
U - D BIRRAKIS R B - B R RE
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PROMOTING POSITIVE =
BEHAVIOURAL CHANGE =

Eﬁ E}] j( %Eﬂﬁ I,%’T% Environmgntal
Protection

In November the Tzu Chi Environmental Action Center opened to
the public. Its fixtures and exhibition setup were funded as part of
an HK$18.1 million approved donation to the Buddhist Compassion
Relief Tzu Chi Foundation Hong Kong Limited to implement the
Jockey Club “Begin in the Heart” Environmental Collective
Action Programme. The programme promotes public awareness of
environmental protection and encourages behavioural change as a
way to tackle climate change.

FEEZEETESRI0BE T XEHBBEESET B SHET
[BREROMEIBRETHE | ETEEARERRBITERERE
RAEEARERE - FRTERCTABR IR WN2021511 BESMER - tbst
FEARSARNRARR THBTREAFEEIERRRTR BPF
BRIRE -

| 1'. JJT'\:',E ENHANCING FAMILY RESILIENCE
e 1B R EIT
=5, Family

¥ Services Stressful events, including the COVID-19 outbreak, can negatively

1 affect family mental health. To promote positive coping strategies
and to cultivate a supportive family environment, the Trust this year
approved a HK$38.8 million donation for the three-year Jockey
Club Promoting Family Resilience Project. The project includes
online educational programmes and family activities, community-
based intervention programmes, as well as capacity-building
workshops for professionals.

HEFTRERREBIEMH  IEFHRETAESZIARTE - B
BREZV EENESREEEAXENZERFEHT S  SERER
AESFRAFMBNI,B0EB T  HETRH=FHN [BRFRYER [R]
BB - STERRE EERRERREREY - FREUEERAFNN AR
B REFERERKFHIES o
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PROMOTING CHILDREN’S EZ,.
ORAL HEALTH =

_.I' g E_E ERan '&_EE Medical and

Health

The Faculty of Dentistry of the University of Hong Kong has been
implementing the four-and-a-half-year Jockey Club Children Oral
Health Project since the 2019/2020 academic year, providing dental
outreach services to participating kindergartens. All kindergarten
children in Hong Kong are eligible to join. Through free dental
check-ups and silver diamine fluoride solution treatment, as well as
oral health education for parents and teachers, the project aims to
control existing cavities, prevent further decay and improve the well-
being of preschool children.

BBARBITEERMN 2019/2020 2FMKG  HITHAPNFEN [ RREHE
Eﬁ*‘l‘i‘ll ASHEYGHEREMRINRE  2BOREZEIFESER
SHEGHERHEBTINRERER BCERBDBEE  TAXRREME
BARMRERE - S EBER R EESE T R TR (L FEMFIR
f2EE-

?gﬁ CREATING A DIVERSIFIED AND
INCLUSIVE COMMUNITY

Rehabilitation S Z T =

Services

The Jockey Club Collaborative Project for Inclusive Employment
has been bridging and creating more job possibilities for the
differently-abled. Through a variety of activities, this three-year
project aims to raise awareness of inclusive employment and to
provide more opportunities for the differently-abled. More than 60
organisations are now working to provide a more diversified and
inclusive workplace since the project was launched in December
2020.

[EEEILR o MITHE | BTREIALTSRRAEESHERS 512
RP=F EEBBRETHEMARHRARMENTE LA TERE
ATRBEE SHE - TTEIE 2020 F 12 ARBALR  ERINEERE 60 B
K BFEEE S T HBNTHRE
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ENCOURAGING =
INTERGENERATIONAL WELL-BEING =

1}%%@ E’%’f’% ;i\ Eﬂ Arts, Culture and

Heritage Conservation

The Jockey Club Yat Po ‘Happy A-ge-cappella’ is a three-year
a cappella choral and life enrichment programme for seniors.
Organised by Yat Po Singers, the first professional a cappella choral
theatre company in Hong Kong, the programme recruits younger
teachers to share the art of a cappella with older adults. Apart from
encouraging retirees to stay active and connected, the programme’s
public performances help to bring this musical art form to the wider
' community.

REE [EFRE—H| REREENARSIBEEALE HEBEREXE
HREERE—HEEEN RU=F HEBREFEEMAPEFEE D
FEREFRSBNEE RTHBRAA LB EER  EERARE
HEHREREMHREIGHZTREN -

== PROVIDING REAL-TIME SUPPORT

=&
= & (H B gt < 52
RHERNTE
Children and
Youth This year the Trust approved a further donation of HK$95.3 million
Development for phase two of the Jockey Club Online Youth Emotional

Support “Open Up”. This 24-hour, seven-day-a-week online crisis
support service is the city’s first text-based, online counselling and
crisis intervention service for people aged 11 to 35. Its innovative
service model features a continuous learning platform to help
evaluate and improve effectiveness and impact. The new phase will
increase youth engagement via more data-informed services and
an expanded paraprofessional network. The programme is already
having an impact, with over 3,000 crisis or high-risk individuals
showing lower risk levels after intervention.
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Though the pandemic has continued to impact the Club’s community activities, this

has in no way diminished its support for equestrian sport and community football, or
the enthusiasm of its employee volunteer team. Club-supported riders competed at the
Tokyo Olympic and Paralympic Games, young footballers continued to benefit from the
Best Foot Forward programme, and Club staff joined hands to help those hard hit by the
pandemic.
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EQUESTRIAN SPORT
SHITEE)

A record number of Hong Kong equestrian athletes qualified for the
Tokyo Olympic Games and Paralympic Games in the summer of
2021, all of them members of the HKJC Equestrian Team. Thomas
Ho made history as the first Hong Kong athlete to qualify for and
compete in the eventing competition, while two-time Paralympian
Natasha Tse competed alongside Fleur Schrader in the para
dressage. Supporting their efforts was a specialist team provided
by the Club, including a performance manager, coaches, grooms,
veterinarians, farriers and physiotherapists.

The successful participation of the Hong Kong team is the product
of the Club’s long-standing support for equestrian sport, both
through its public riding schools and through the HKJC Equestrian
Team, established following the Beijing 2008 Olympics. Equestrian
and para equestrian riders benefit from high-level coaching and

professional support, while the HKJC Youth Equestrian Development

Programme provides a pipeline of future talent.
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COMMUNITY FOOTBALL
B R ER

This year marked ten years since the Club first joined hands with
Manchester United to launch its Best Foot Forward programme, the
aim being to inspire young people to develop physically, mentally
and socially through the medium of football. To mark the occasion
the Club’s Chief Executive Officer Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
held an online dialogue with legendary former manager, Sir Alex
Ferguson, which was greatly appreciated by the Club’s employees.
The partnership was further celebrated with a first-of-its-kind
webinar on coaching female players, which was joined by over 250
coaches and teachers.

Although the pandemic has proved challenging, Best Foot

Forward has continued to progress. The JC School Football
Development Scheme, which provides advanced football coaching
to schoolteachers and coaches, expanded its reach from 13 to

32 partner schools. New elements were introduced such as joint
training sessions and friendly games between participating schools
in Kowloon, Island, NT East and NT West. Partner schools also
received equipment to enhance the effectiveness of their training.

UN

BEE BFEM
INSPIRING GREATNESS

TOGETHER

‘0

EEFANNIVERSARY

| g Tezos

For the first time, the HKJC Junior Sports Reporters Programme,
which seeks to develop sports media talent, joined forces with

the Hong Kong Football Association and the Premier League’s
broadcaster on.cc to identify and name the U22 Player of the Match
in second round games of the Sapling Cup. Unfortunately the
tournament was cut short by the fifth wave of the pandemic.
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COMMUNITY RELATIONS
BRI

True to the Club’s purpose — the betterment of our society — Club
employees have long reached out to the community as members
of the CARE@hkjc volunteer team. Working alongside community
partners they support district-based programmes serving a wide
range of groups, including the elderly, young people, people with
intellectual disabilities, and ethnic minorities. In recent years, animal
welfare has also become a service highlight.

This commitment has continued throughout the pandemic, including
during the fifth wave. Through the CALL 2 CARE scheme, volunteers
made twice-monthly phone calls to the elderly in Sham Shui Po,
monitoring their needs and bringing much-needed companionship.
To help local and ethnic minority students with their Chinese and
Cantonese studies during the pandemic-triggered early summer
holidays, volunteers provided online Chinese tutoring and produced
Cantonese story videos.

In collaboration with District Offices and NGOs, the volunteer
team joined with members of management to pack anti-epidemic

supplies and rapid antigen test kits for distribution to the community.

They also helped man hotlines of the Hong Kong Community Anti-
Coronavirus Link, and together with the Hong Kong Guide Dog

Association distributed dog food to underprivileged guide dog users.
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The Club is proud of the way its employees have responded to the unprecedented
challenges of the past year and of the support they provided to business operations,
customers and the community. Throughout, the Club invested in and cared for its
employees, launching initiatives to support their well-being and to promote personal
development. It has also continued to recruit and engage the employees it needs for its
ongoing growth.

BE—F FSEETEBERUNMARENRE  BTEUIEXRKEE BENEAHE
FSEALRRAER B RMU-—BEHSTIXRRELT @ HTZETE - EAMEMNS O
BEREREARE FETEHERWAT  HETROHHIZEEBIFERE -

SUPPORTING EMPLOYEES
THROUGH THE PANDEMIC

Y IEETREHERS

Since the beginning of the pandemic the Club has been guided by BRIEREUSR EECHIEZE/FREL A
a set of core principles, namely that none of its activities should BT BB T BREMAREER
create a public health risk and none should put the health and safety  # LU REMSEESIETELEER -FEHE
of its customers, members or employees at risk. On this basis it ITHRERTZ -ES—EREFRA FES
has continued to implement precautionary and safety measures HESIE RN Z 2 EEAREE T  ERREKLT
to protect employees and to minimise the risk of community BB

transmission.




In response to the fifth wave, the Club introduced work-from-
home arrangements for employees where operationally possible.
Employees were also encouraged and required to adhere to the
Government’s vaccine requirements. To facilitate this, the Club
expanded its Employee Vaccination Support Programme, offering
paid vaccination leave, transportation support, pre-vaccination
medical consultations and additional medical and life insurance
protection. On-site vaccination stations were established, with
some 2,382 employees and their household members taking the
opportunity to get vaccinated. As at year-end 95% of full-time staff
had been fully vaccinated.

With the fifth wave placing a particular strain on employees and
their families, the Club established a dedicated COVID-19 Response
Team and a 24-hour hotline to provide medical and professional
counselling services. Anti-pandemic care packs, including rapid
antigen test kits, were also provided to affected employees and their
families.

Additionally, the Club provided financial support to part-time staff
whose incomes were affected by a decrease in roster duties due to
reduced operating hours or the temporary closure of facilities.
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EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT AND
CULTURE TRANSFORMATION

TSR R EH

The Club continued the culture transformation journey that it initiated ~ FEIEEE 2019 FHITHSE L E T
in 2019, focusing on collaboration, accountability and respect. B MR HIE  HEREESHNHIERE
EHHEEEMNTIERE

Besides Club-level activities, all divisions implemented action

plans to support the transformation roadmap. Change stories from MRTARIBENIEN SESHETERITE

different teams were shared across divisions to enhance awareness STEILUEE L E T WEB A ZETRE B

of these efforts. EHHE MM EE LT HERITENT
i o
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Additionally, as part of the action plan resulting from the employee
engagement survey, leadership dialogue opportunities were ramped
up, including online management briefings.

To strengthen and facilitate information flow, the Club’s employee
communications app JC Net was enhanced, with a faster and more
secure login and easier access to popular content.

50 BEERBEETERAEERETEE
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ATTRACTING TALENT
BEWAT

Though the pandemic has heightened competition to hire and retain
skilled employees, the Club remains an employer of choice given its
values, culture and community focus.

All of this was central to divisional recruitment marketing campaigns
during the year, with regularly refreshed content on external job
boards, LinkedIn and other social media platforms. Indeed the Club’s
LinkedIn followers increased by 63% over the year, with a wide
variety of demographic and talent segments applying for positions at
the Club.

The revamp of Golden Opportunities, an online platform for
employees to explore internal job opportunities, along with a Club-
wide employee referral programme, also boosted the volume of job
applicants.

During the year, over 1,270 full-time employees and 2,600 part-time
employees joined the Club.

/
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part-time employees joined the Club
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NEW INITIATIVES TO STRENGTHEN
WELL-BEING AND RETAIN TALENT

EHETEEES DRERREAT

Several policies and initiatives were introduced in the past year to
boost employee well-being and to help employees integrate work
and life commitments during the pandemic.

Flexible working, including remote workdays and work schedules,
was introduced, and leave and accommodation arrangements
updated to support family reunions, personal overseas trips and
urgent travel scenarios. A new Work From Overseas policy was also
implemented.

Several other key programmes were enhanced to strengthen employee
retention. These included improving the provident fund scheme,
increasing annual leave entitlement, and extending comprehensive
medical coverage for over 5,500 eligible dependents. Collectively these
initiatives have benefited over 6,500 employees.

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND
CONTINUED LEARNING

ETZRRRIFEEES

The Club is dedicated to people development, providing a wide
range of resources to support employee learning and development
needs. Likewise, it cultivates leadership skills and capabilities to
help employees build their careers.

To provide a clearer path to more senior leadership roles, the Club
has now aligned the competency model for senior staff grade
employees with the leadership competency model.

enhanced well-being initiatives
benefited over

HHS O RENRESEERE

N,
/

employees
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In addition, the new Executive 360 Feedback tool, which was
designed around the leadership competency model, will be
expanded to all eligible executives to augment leadership
capabilities.

Several complementary initiatives were also launched during the
year. These included the Leadership Development 2.0 programme for
high-potential employees, and the People Management Excellence
Programme, which aims to strengthen the people management skills
of supervisors in senior staff grades.

Meanwhile, the Leadership Excellence Programme continued to
provide an interactive learning experience for current and new
executives, with strong participation throughout the year.

All of this is in addition to the wide range of development
opportunities available through the Club’s digital platform, Learning
ePassport, where there have been over 3,600 enrolments for training
programmes since its launch in May 2021.
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This year the Club launched two initiatives to reduce its environmental footprint: solar
energy and an innovative solution to avoid landfill waste. A thorough review of carbon
emissions is also underway as the Club pursues its commitment to a greener future.

SE . BEEWTMERRBADEREEY - B ABGERERERAFBIREHERYE -

o BEREZEEREBRERIER - SHEREGE -

MANAGING OUR HOOFPRINT
BEEIRIFIAY [ BHEN

During the year the Club continued to invest in energy-efficient
systems, IT solutions and electric vehicles. Retrofitting, efficient
design, digital transformation and waste reduction remain central to
the Club’s sustainability strategy.

The Club has embarked on a significant expansion of solar energy,
with 89 Club locations in Hong Kong identified. Once operational
they will generate about 5 million kWh of electricity per year.

To process stable waste, the Club’s largest waste stream, the Club
has begun a small-scale trial to recycle waste into biochar, which
has several beneficial uses. A first of its kind in the equine industry, it
will be expanded once the recycling process has been refined.

In support of electric vehicle popularisation, the Club has converted
almost all of its passenger fleet to fully electric or hybrid vehicles and
plans to operate a fully electric fleet in due course.

Meanwhile, the Club is developing a climate roadmap aimed at
significantly reducing carbon emissions in alignment with Hong
Kong and Mainland government plans to tackle climate change.
This includes addressing operational energy consumption, Scope
3 emissions and climate risks and implementing potential carbon
offset strategies and behavioural changes.

Planning and construction of phase-two developments at Conghua
Racecourse is in progress, paying due regard to the environmental
impact. Likewise a new IT Operations Building is under construction
at Sha Tin and has been designed to meet Tier 3 (second highest)
standard for data centres.
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A key initiative next year is to explore how the Club can leverage
the Internet of Things (loT) to achieve a smarter and more energy-
efficient workplace. Small-scale projects will be adopted with a view
to rolling out the technology in more Club buildings in future.

Engaging Club employees is vital to maintaining high standards of
operational sustainability. To increase awareness the Club provides
environmental training across all divisions. This year special training
sessions focused on waste and water compliance and sustainable
procurement.

ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE

v alaxiaxihy
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The Club’s Sustainability Committee in Hong Kong, which meets
every two months, reports to the Board of Management and
oversees environmental policies and practices.

At Conghua Racecourse (CRC) environmental management based on
ISO 14001 is overseen by the CRC Environmental Committee. This
year CRC continued with its comprehensive environmental monitoring
programme covering the four key aspects of air, noise, water and waste
to ensure that local environmental requirements are met.

In this reporting period the Club received one compliance notice in
the Mainland. The issue has since been rectified. Meanwhile, several
opportunities were identified internally to improve environmental
standards.
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HKJC ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITMENTS

SENRREE

Educating, training and motivating

Integrating environmental considerations

employees to carry out tasks in an
environmentally responsible and
proactive manner.
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Complying with applicable legal
requirements and other environmental
requirements to which HKJC facilities

subscribe.
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into the delivery of our services and the

planning, design, construction, operation

and maintenance of our facilities.
EEEEERBEURBRWEE - 25T
& BENEETE  BMARRKITE

Encouraging the same level of
environmental performance among our

business partners, suppliers, contractors

and sub-contractors.
SEERBY  HED APRERoHE
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Preventing pollution, minimising waste

through source reduction and recycling,

and conserving natural resources.
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Supporting community-based
environmental education, conservation
and programmes.
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CARBON EMISSIONS
fix BERR

Carbon emissions for Hong Kong operations rose 6.6% year on
year, reflecting the resumption of business operations in the second
half of 2021 as the fourth wave of the pandemic receded. This offset
partial closures at various times in the first part of 2022 due to the
fifth wave. Emissions were 15.9% below pre-pandemic 2018/19
levels, mainly due to the pandemic and reduced carbon intensity by
the Club’s electricity suppliers.

In the Mainland, Conghua Racecourse (CRC) contributed 12,970
tonnes of CO,-e in 2021/22 and 12,686 tonnes in 2020/21,

reflecting increased operations and workforce expansion. Conghua
was responsible for 12% of the Club’s overall carbon footprint in
2021/22, with carbon emissions increasing 2.2% year on year.
Carbon emissions at Beijing Clubhouse and the Club’s IT operations
in Shenzhen fell by 3.6% year on year.

Despite growth in the Club’s operations, total carbon emissions
(Hong Kong and the Mainland combined) remain lower than in
2018/19. The pandemic and electricity suppliers’ reductions in
carbon intensity in Hong Kong were the main factors.
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112,579
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Electricity consumption in Hong Kong rose by approximately 1.9%
year on year. Use of diesel (including B5 biodiesel), which fuels the
Club’s horse transporters, tracks vehicles and other medium goods
vehicles, was up 1.2% year on year. The use of Towngas in Hong
Kong fell marginally by 1.1% compared with the previous year and
was 8.3% down on pre-pandemic 2018/19 levels. In the Mainland,
electricity use increased by 0.6% year on year.

The Club committed to a significant investment in renewable energy
in the past year after identifying locations in Hong Kong and sites at
CRC for installation of solar photovoltaic (PV) panels. Installations

at 89 locations in Hong Kong are planned with a targeted total
capacity of about 5 million kWh of electricity a year, to be completed
by June 2025. At CRC, the Club has incorporated 1,500kW of

solar PV panels to date in the planning and design of phase-two
construction, scheduled to be completed in 2024/25.

By participating in the Government’s Feed-in Tariff programme the
solar PV projects will contribute to Hong Kong’s renewable energy
development. Projects expected to become operational in 2023
include Happy Valley Racecourse, Beas River Country Club, Beas
River Equestrian Centre and Tuen Mun Public Riding School.

To reduce electricity consumption the floodlighting systems at both
Hong Kong racecourses will be upgraded from metal halide to LED,
with the aim of being operational by September 2022 in Happy
Valley and at the end of 2023 in Sha Tin. The new systems aim to
cut floodlight electricity use by 36% at Happy Valley Racecourse
and 25% at Sha Tin Racecourse. They will also reduce light
pollution in neighbourhoods surrounding the tracks. To reduce
waste, existing light masts, foundations and the majority of existing
electrical infrastructure will be retained.

Following the opening of Happy Valley New Clubhouse, which is
BEAM Plus Gold certified, the Club is implementing a five-year
roadmap to reduce energy intensity at its three other Hong Kong
clubhouses. The aim is reduce energy intensity by 10% against pre-
pandemic 2018/19 levels.
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R FELERAFTHHE A5EH=H
UREBNEMROEREAE  BESMAL
2018/19 FEBATHKFEE 10% EHS -

Solar photovoltaic panels at Beas
River Country Club.
A ZOAEAN B TR AR BELRAR
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION

BB FER
2009/10
2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 Baseline
EEERE

HONG KONG OPERATIONS
Electricity (kWh)
EH (TRE)
Towngas (units)
HR(E)
Biodiesel (B5) (litres)
B5E ¥ 5m (R F)
Diesel (litres)
S5¢m (A7)
Petrol (litres)
AR (AF)
MAINLAND OPERATIONS
P 3t 3E 75
Conghua Racecourse
R 55
Electricity (kWh)
B (TEE)

LCZRYAVRNVE 161,578,621 159,605,795 174,006,240 174,835,923

800,853 810,257 785,185 873,354 798,673

170,618 179,848 201,965 217,691 =

294,175 279,324 269,850 273,910 420,343

37,695 42,073 50,367 53,228 77,833

PREZERLI 23,211,150 21,554,070 - -

Natural gas (m?3)

RRE (ST FHK) 41,737 39,919 30,702 _ _
gé?;?g“;;?S) 105,455 112,346 101,452 = _
;efgilfgi;?) 7,062 7,066 8,384 - -
;§;§$5?2§2+> 315 593 433 - -

Beijing Clubhouse and Shenzhen
office operations
EREMRFRINPLE
Electricity (kWh)
EN (TRE)
Natural gas (m?3)
AARR (LFXK)

7,582,295 7,839,753 7,212,484 7,965,973 9,383,904

169,085 188,263 178,782 228,808 230,748
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ENERGY USE (Hong Kong and Mainland Operations)

BEREABR (BB R AMER)

Telebet Centres
BFEBREPD Off-Course

1% Betting Branches
IS IMRE R /
8% STRC
WHES
ENERGY USE 38%
Offices, ITSZ (Gigajoules)
WAE 53 1
SRYIBHE B Re/T
A (FRER)

GREEN MOBILITY
R

The Club operates some 240 vehicles in Hong Kong, including pool
cars, delivery vans, horse transporters and off-road vehicles for work
such as track maintenance. The Club fully supports the transition to
electric vehicles (EVs) and is looking to improve its infrastructure to
support EV usage. As of June 2022, the Club operated 60 electric
or hybrid passenger vehicles, representing 96.7% of its fleet. Two
additional vehicles will be replaced in the near future to meet the
target of 100%. As more EV models become available on the
market, the Club will phase out hybrid vehicles and switch to 100%
EVs. The Club is currently studying the feasibility of expanding the
EV charging network at its parking facilities to support the wider
transition to EVs.

SEAEEBREN 240 HAE BELALR
B B -EEERFREEESHENER
BAE FERHIXFERAEDE FIEEHR
REEEREATEEAEEE - EE 2022
F6 7 FEHE60 REFNRERTE
HENEREATERK 96.7% SR T MBMIIRE
B LEREYEAERRRENER-
LR E AR R E R E R EH
e BERERSHARKE THERES
B -SEREMEEAFESREREDERE
RIEH AT X EAIEEAEE S -
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Conghua Racecourse was designed and built to accommodate EVs LB ERARBEERCEEXEEHHER

and has 135 EV chargers installed in the main parking areas, while B IEFHESREHL 1B EASHERS
Beijing Clubhouse has a mandate to provide charging support for B MtmEFRTEAEMEES 10% BH
10% of parked vehicles. BRMBFERM

THE CLUB'S VEHICLE FLEET TRANSITION STATUS 2021/22 (HONG KONG)
2021/22 FEFSERERRERERLR (F8)

Passenger vehicles ;
ey o 96.7%)

JEEBE

Goods vehicles

Euro V standard or above (100%)

REER BRER T HA S At B
Special purpose vehicles
Bk ARER
0 20 40 60 80 100 120

Number of vehicles

EHHAE

WATER MANAGEMENT
KEFERE

Municipal water usage in Hong Kong decreased marginally by 0.6% EBERRBETHEKRENEKEMEL
compared with 2020/21. To reduce the reliance on municipal water 2020721 FEREEk 0.6% o B EE M B ith B 12 %t
at Happy Valley Racecourse while also ensuring the quality of the Ak BERRERENES Ee

turf track, work has commenced on an underground pump house, s s
water tanks and supporting infrastructure which will blend municipal BEFEITTRE AL RAABERN LT

and harvested water. This follows a multi-year study which identified 1= ' SMERFERARES HHERRIREGHH
a safe blending ratio of 3:1 (municipal water: harvested water). The KERWAKER - EE AW ETZFHR
harvested water will meet up to 25% of the track’s irrigation needs. 3 BEEE 31 R AEEHAKRIK
Construction work is expected to be completed by December 2022. EEBRNKERESHER EHRRESBKHK
BRI T M R MIE 25% WEREE -85
TEEBFERTN 2022 £ 12 BAT5E/K °
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At Conghua Racecourse (CRC), municipal water withdrawal was
down 13% year on year. Water recycling remains robust, meeting
25% of total water use, compared to 27% the previous year. Water
use is highly dependent on temperature and rainfall so trends are
difficult to predict. With phase-two construction of CRC underway,
total water needs are anticipated to increase in the coming years.

" Water recycled at Conghua Racecourse and Beijing Clubhouse from 2019/20, including rain and grey water.
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WATER WITHDRAWAL BY SOURCE
BARE D I FKE

HONG KONG OPERATIONS
Water — from municipal source (m?3)
REBHHAKRGAKX (ZFK)

MAINLAND OPERATIONS
ARE S

Conghua Racecourse
RILFS

Water — from municipal source (m?®)

REHBHHAKREAK (LK)

Water - recycled (m?)

BERBAK (ZFK)O

Beijing Clubhouse and Shenzhen office

operations
ERERRFIBAE

Water — from municipal source (mq)

REE T HARRGERK (LK)

Water - recycled (m?3) @

BERBAK (ZLFK)O

AL BB AR BIRE T X 13% » FEFHKE
REBEBRISTR (LEEAKE 25% ML
—FERR 27% FIKEREMBENER

=
E/%\ ,§

~

18RS - L ATRRT KBS - Rt

EESREETE_MNTRE SR REH

FHEBAKEES L

2021/22 2020/21

IRYZNAEY 1,933,500

412,968 EECYERTAIS

RN 177,635

80,071

28,652

H2019/20 FER LB SRIEREMERBRBAK (BERARTK) °

2013/14
2019/20 2018/19 Baseline
HEEE

1,878,293 2,017,023 1,738,946

366,793 = =

184,269 = =

83,206 100,712 97,117

6,825 = =
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WASTE MANAGEMENT AND
AVOIDANCE

BEYEE R E

The Club’s first priority is to avoid waste at source. Otherwise
reduction, reuse and recycling practices are followed. The Club is
actively searching for solutions to its three major waste streams of
stable, food and paper, as well as to other forms of waste.

In a world first for the equine industry, in January a pilot biochar
plant commenced operation in Yuen Long. Designed to significantly
reduce the quantity of stable waste sent to landfill, it has already
shown its potential by achieving a 66% reduction, by weight, of
stable waste. The resulting char product is undergoing certification
for local use as a soil conditioner. The ongoing feasibility study

will refine the recycling process and explore the scalability of the
technology as well as potential local uses for char products.

With respect to food waste, the Club has been sending all waste
from Hong Kong clubhouse and racecourse dining outlets to the
Government’s O - PARK1 since its opening in mid-2018. Averaging
1,000 tonnes a year prior to the pandemic, and 391 tonnes in
2021/22, the food is composted for local use, with electricity also
generated for internal use as part of the process.

Thanks to a greater adoption of paperless processes, the Club has
already met its June 2025 target of reducing office paper use by
20%. This was particularly noticeable in procurement activities,
where processes continued to be digitalised.

Before and after: Stable waste is converted into biochar.

RRBEANR: SERERNERBERENRK

BELURERESEERA WA BTHM
HEE - ERARBERBEREE FEN=IREE
BENAEERERY  BirRER BASSIE
BB R ER D =R H A& AV
Yo

SEUETHNENREARRERSF 1A
BRABE MAZHREEXNERILERE-
ZHAENBERAKBREXTHEEERNSE
Y& MBERZEEFERIIED 66% 7
RUCERMTHE D - SEERREARANE
VIR ER R A FE LR R B - [ -
FERER AT IR RDTEET - FEREBRE
ERIBE R ERRITRENTEE URE
VIR E RN BT R -

ZREH BAFETHERERRWHOE—
A 2018 EPEAAR  EE—ESEESH
*ESERRRNMERGRETZRE R
1EAIEEEE SR ETI B S E 1,000 AW M
2021/22 £8)E 391 AN - )t ZEFepEE1 L
BfERHAMER mMELBRHREELS
AR PERZER FEAE A o

AR EE MR BAAIER IR ATE K
1 2025 F 6 AR IAZE A 20% BB
B oEEIENR BREBEREFENAE
B AR RENEELBEEE -
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The Club has continued to seek alternatives to single-use plastics
since introducing an Avoiding Single-use Plastic Policy in 2018. In
2021/22, over one million fewer plastic items were purchased than
in the previous 12 months. This was achieved by switching from
plastic takeaway bags to paper, from plastic takeaway containers to
bagasse materials, and by eliminating all plastic utensils.

SINGLE-USE PLASTIC PURCHASED
BREBREE

-

HONG KONG OPERATIONS

Total number of single-use plastic items purchased”
RIBWENZEEBY REE

Compared to 2018/19 baseline
fALb2018/19 B EFE

* Excluding items for medical and pandemic use

TEEBREREEEERRY R

/

PAPER PURCHASED
MREBE

/ 2021/22

HONG KONG OPERATIONS
BERXK
BET SLIPS (Thousand sheets)
ZE (TH)
FSC paper
AMEEEZEB S (FSC)REFRRALR
BET RECEIPTS (Thousand paper rolls)
REWE (%)
OFFICE COPY PAPER (boxes)
WAEITENE (5)

180,319

100%

76
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BEMN 2018 Fi#1T R F AR ERBIK
RO BH—EMERENEERER HE
ZHIHY 12 {8 BABEL - 2021/22 £ E B2 fTiE
ENEBERRDE 100 B4 LERES
BHEBRUBER HNEEBESNATRE
WHEES UREAMBEEBER-

2018/19

2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 Baseline

HEEE

ERlYd 1,955,658 2,092,750 2,012,060

-57% - 3% 4% =

2009/10

2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 Baseline

HEEE

94,382 242,968 435,081 647,294

100% 100% 100% 18.6%

264

33 122 199 (2011/12)

4,983 5,589 6,335 9,714
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“ SOURCE SEPARATION, DONATIONS AND RECYCLING
’ BESE - BERERER

L ' 2009/10

/ 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 Baseline
BEEE

6,113 2,435 9,460 9,501 =

KIAMIGRY 523,540 870,564 1,051,662 =

HONG KONG OPERATIONS
DONATIONS, FOOD (kg)
BRERW (AF)
RECYCLING
= 4z

Food waste (kg)
BFeR (A )
Paper (kg)

BEAE (A )

Glass bottles (kg)
WREE (AFT)
Plastic (kg)
BRB(AT)

Metal (kg)
TBm(AT)
Used cooking oil (litres)
Em (A F)
e-waste (units)

ETEY (£F)

KRNyl 274,444 313,303 576,923 385,967

63,654 50,975 74,004 121,319 21,059

57,069 72,852 65,147 91,967 4,367

9,773 22,381 33,753 17,465 857

21,536 19,384 20,910 22,394 =

7,150 1,776 3,298 5,137
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OTHER OPERATIONS
Hfth 575

Due to the temporary closure of Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course
(KSC) during the fifth wave of the pandemic, electricity consumption
was down 6.8%, while water consumption was down 5.5% and fuel
for ferries decreased by 4.3% year on year. The drop in water use
was mainly due to the reduced consumption of potable water during
the closure period. Some fluorescent lighting was replaced with

LED lamps, which will save approximately 61,000kWh of electricity
annually. In May, KSC was recertified as an Audubon Cooperative
Sanctuary for Wildlife for a further three years, recognising its
continued commitment to the environment.

Of the three public riding schools, Lei Yue Mun has been closed
since early 2020 following the requisition of Lei Yue Mun Park and
Holiday Village for quarantine facilities. The Tuen Mun and Pokfulam
schools were closed during the fifth wave. Overall electricity

use at the schools was nevertheless up 14% year on year due

to maintenance and renovation work and increased usage of air
conditioners during the hotter weather. Water use also increased
39%. At Tuen Mun Public Riding School, construction of a new
stable block with a solar PV roof is underway.

Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts saw a reduction in electricity
consumption during the fifth wave, which was down 3.0% year on
year. Water consumption however increased 9.5% due to a 17%
rise in the number of events and to the introduction of 170 potted
plants of various species and sizes around Lower E Hall to create a
green environment for visitors. To safeguard the health of the iconic
mango tree in the Parade Ground, an inverse root spread system
was installed to supply more air to the roots. Under the principle of
reduce, reuse and recycle, 67 old computers were donated to the
Caritas Computer Workshop. In another waste avoidance initiative,
food waste from Tai Kwun’s restaurants was collected and sent to
the O - PARK1 for recycling.

HARNERMNARSRARSEREIREIFH
BERRER EAERIRF TR 6.8%  mH
KEREEWBRFEAZ D BHIRERD 5.5%
& 4.3% FIKETREERHENS I EEE
BRUAACHFEE D c B Zih o 52K
RBA LED & TS FAIEi&E 4 61,000
EE EAMNARSEAIEN 5 AEXE
BREI=FN [BEHESEH LB EYRE
[& (Audubon Cooperative Sanctuary for
Wildlife) ] B3 » RIFHSRHRERIEIFEN
HIBh e

ERFE=MORRMER  BREBFEMAE
AN AERERNEL EREERE AL
FERMZBRA 2020 F ¥R ; FBFISEHAM
NREMBRANEE TR E BRI - R
i BTSRRI ERAEERF LA 14% It
THRFRETHEERBHTTE MAXRE
BRBEHSREAE LA B AKER
L7 39% o P AR ES TR ARIR IE HiZ—1{E
2HER BETREAGRBEERS -

REE — HEREMERE LR FHENA
EEAMTR BFETEK3.0% ERAKEANL
7t 9.5% LSRR R A TEEN B B0
17% AR BB EERRHEBRE MR
E REERE 170 RTRERER APHRR
Fis e REERBHES L ARRMENTRBIR
KRFREBRES ERAMRREER
REBFITHEE ERRBEREENRA K6
#% 67 HEEMIBE TAZTEM TS - WHEAT
SRR BEANERWERS RRE
ERHEEREW T 0FE— ERRBEZ A
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ENERGY USE
RETRE AR
2013/14
2021/22  2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 Baseline
HEEFE

Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course
BREMNAR SRS

Electricity (kWh)

g1 (FRE)

Diesel (litres)

sl ()

Petrol (litres)

AR (AF)
Public Riding Schools
DNBEMER

Electricity (kWh)

&5 (FRE)

Biodiesel (B5) (litres)

B5AEY S5 (R F)
Tai Kwun - Centre for Heritage and Arts
KEE — HERENME

Electricity (kWh)

EN(TRE)

Diesel (litres)

S (R F)

el 5,110,745 5,235,530 5,269,113 5,075,433

ARl 535,808 575,610 655,013 =

21,414 25,262 27,699 28,346 =

oamelels) 755,893 1,046,668 992,384 780,391

2,890 2,611 3,131 3,884 =

SRl 5,574,981 6,610,741 6,412,017 =

584 393 637 483 =

/

WATER CONSUMPTION

MKE
WA
/ Water - from municipal source (m3) g
- . o, o 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 B li
FAKE — REABH KRS (LK) .
- 152

Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course
ERMARSEARNS

Public Riding Schools
NREMER

Tai Kwun

KEE

32,873 33,857 37,947 55,163

9,545 15,072 9,353 9,944

19,808 20,411 18,492 =
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ENGAGEMENT
ThSH

Environmental education is provided to all full-time employees and,
where appropriate, part-time staff. A total of 1,355 staff in Hong
Kong received environmental training in 2021/22, including sessions
on waste and water compliance.

The Club also organised sustainable procurement training to
increase awareness of the wider aspects of sustainable procurement,
including labour issues, supply chain risks and environmental risks.

Community Engagement

BB E

The Club addresses community environmental needs through

its Charities Trust and partnerships with NGOs in areas such as
energy efficiency, water management, waste handling, sustainable
consumption and biodiversity.

It also works with many cross-industry organisations such as the
Business Environment Council. It is represented on the Board of
Directors of the Hong Kong Institute of Qualified Environmental
Professionals and is an Executive Committee member of the Drink
Without Waste initiative, which focuses on facilitating strategies
and actions to significantly reduce, recover and recycle waste from
beverage consumption.

With the aim of inspiring and informing the next generation, the Club
also sponsors tertiary students to attend environmental seminars
and workshops.

For more information about the Club’s environmental commitments
and progress, please see its Environmental Reports, which are
available on the Club’s website.
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BEEAMEERE T RHERREAERRE IE
BRZ I FRERE T o148 2021/22 & - #H 1,355
ZEBETISHRREN BEENIBKE
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FHERBBER T ESENRE BESTH
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BUSINESS REVIEW
£ T

ERURAREFHE  SBRESS(HE)HNLER
EEFUE UBEBESHAREERESRE -2
SEf BFHSBEEERRS  UREERUMESR
BHGESEERN  AHEBRIEKERESEE-

EEHENBAR (GBI £EE]) 2E2ERAE—HF
HiE > 2021/ 22 F EFTABRREH261ERBT - EEE
BEAEERRECTES ([EREL))  EHREER
BANBHEBENEERMEER - EEESEE N
FI 2+ REZSHEHEE > H2021/22FENEFilt
B Ae6EET ER202EZERHEIER

SEZRE
FER-—ZEEBHINERBRAR  BBA2E
BHAWMBAREEESBEHEYARLA  BEES
RREBRERABDNEBEFERSERAT  BEHE
FEBREENEEEFTEY  EHREENAGER
FHER - Z-TEMBLABESTEEEHKERD
A HEEEEEESENBERERLRE -

ERESR—AAHEEES  FEXRABNES
RitB@IEE -

The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) is a world-class racing club that acts continuously
for the betterment of our society. Through its integrated business model of world-class
racing and racecourse entertainment, a membership club, responsible sports wagering and
lottery, and charity and community contribution, the Club generates economic and social
value for the community.

The Club, together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), is Hong Kong’s largest
single taxpayer, contributing HK$26.1 billion in 2021/22. The Club allocates its surplus
funds to charitable and community projects via The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
(the “Trust”), which is one of the world’s top ten providers of charity funding. In 2021/22,
the Trust approved HK$6.6 billion in donations to 292 charitable and community projects.

APPROVED DONATIONS FROM THE HKJC GROUP TO

THE HKJC CHARITIES TRUST (HK$M)

APPROVED DONATIONS MADE BY THE HKJC CHARITIES TRUST (HK$M)
EERFERENFEAESCRAESEHNER (BEETR)
EEEFEAECHESEERNBER(EBET)

/ / / /

21/22 / 4,952

4,538

/
20/21 5,101

4,510

19/20 / / /

18/19

17/18 /

0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Approved donations from The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Group to the Trust

EEEFERERSEESHHNBR

4,525

/
4,300
4,?77

4,400
4,234

4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000
Approved donations from the Trust for
pandemic-related initiatives and for HKSAR

25th Anniversary community activities

SRS mEEAREE RGBT
BE R M 25 B F 4t BE Bt HH B
Approved donations from the Trust
to charitable organisations and
community projects

ERESAASHIBRALERB # ISR

GROUP STRUCTURE

The Club is a Hong Kong incorporated company with liability limited by guarantee. Through
its wholly owned subsidiaries, HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited, HKJC Football Betting
Limited and HKJC Lotteries Limited, the Club holds the sole licences for the operation
and management of Hong Kong’s horse race betting, football betting and Mark Six lottery.
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, another principal subsidiary,
manages members’ social and recreational facilities.

The Trust is a public charity and is primarily engaged in supporting charitable and
community projects in Hong Kong.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The Club has no shareholders and is governed by an elected Board of Stewards whose
members possess a wide cross-section of business and community experience and serve
without remuneration.

In line with the Government’s policy of meeting public demand for gambling through a
regulated and responsible channel, the Club provides all on-course betting and has been
authorised as Hong Kong’s sole provider of off-course betting services on horse racing
since 1973. It has been the authorised operator of the Mark Six lottery since 1975. In 2003,
to combat illegal betting on football matches, it was further authorised by the Government
to provide a regulated football betting service. The Club’s betting licences are issued
and overseen by the Home Affairs Bureau in consultation with the Betting and Lotteries
Commission.

In support of its commitment to promote responsible gambling, the Club engages with
the Government, police, gambling care agencies, customers, employees and international
organisations to establish measures to protect Hong Kong people from excessive and illegal
gambling. Since 2003, the Club has supported the Ping Wo Fund, an independent body
established by the Government, which finances and co-ordinates preventive and remedial
measures to address gambling-related problems.

The Club’s wide-ranging role as Hong Kong’s largest provider of sporting and wagering
entertainment, major source of tax and charity funding, prestigious membership club and
significant employer, means that most individuals and organisations in Hong Kong can be
considered as the Club’s stakeholders. The major stakeholder groups include the Club’s
customers, members, employees, Government departments, local community bodies, the
Legislative Council, District Councils and the media. It also has extensive relationships with
various governmental and non-governmental bodies through its charity and community
work.

Internationally the Club has relationships with overseas wagering operators and racing
organisations as part of its commingling and World Pool business development. It also
maintains wide-ranging industry connections through its membership of the International
Federation of Horseracing Authorities (Chair), the Asian Racing Federation (Chairman), the
International Horse Sports Confederation (President) and the World Tote Association (Co-
Chairman) amongst others. The Club also hosts the Secretariat for both the Asian Racing
Federation and its Council on Anti-lllegal Betting and Related Financial Crime. Through
participation in these bodies, the Club is able to shape international standards, policies and
protocols for the benefit of the industry and in support of its own business development.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to affect the Club’s operations over the past year,
though once again the resilience of the Club’s response enabled it to maintain a full racing
programme. Indeed, the Club returned a record HK$33.6 billion to the community in betting
duty, profits tax, Lotteries Fund contributions and approved Charities Trust donations. At
HK$6.6 billion, approved Charities Trust donations were the second-highest in the Club’s
history. They included HK$1.4 billion to address the impact of the pandemic.

With Hong Kong marking twenty-five years of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
the Club donated HK$630 million to the Government in support of over 60 community
events. A special highlight was the opening of the Hong Kong Palace Museum, constructed
with a HK$3.5 billion donation from the Club - its largest single donation to date. The Club
marked the occasion at the 25th Anniversary Hong Kong Reunification Raceday and through
programmes celebrating its contribution to Hong Kong.
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Guiding the Club’s response to the pandemic have been the core principles it adopted from
the very beginning, namely that none of its activities should create a public health risk and
none should put the health and safety of members, employees and customers at risk. In line
with these principles, and in close consultation with the Government and health experts, the
Club maintained robust health measures, which were stepped up during the fifth wave. At
its height, racecourses were closed to all but essential personnel, and Off-Course Betting
Branches, Telebet operator services and members’ clubhouses shut down. To maintain
core racing operations, daily PCR testing was introduced for racing personnel together
with rigorous tracking and tracing. All employees were encouraged to get vaccinated, with
vaccination stations established at racecourses. As of the end of the year, 95% of full-time
staff had been fully vaccinated. All of this enabled the Club to maintain its core racing and
wagering operations at no risk to public health in Hong Kong or the Mainland. The Club
greatly appreciates the support of Government and Mainland authorities, without which
racing could not have been maintained.

The continued strength of Hong Kong racing was reflected in the world rankings, where
eight of the Club’s 12 international Group 1 races featured in the 2021 LONGINES World’s
Top 100 Group/Grade 1 Races, while Golden Sixty was the joint highest rated miler in the
world for 2021, with an overall ranking of equal sixth in the world. To incentivise horse
owners to keep on investing in quality thoroughbreds, next season prize money will rise by
an unprecedented 11.5% to HK$1.62 billion.

No less important to Hong Kong’s success has been the talent nurtured at the Club’s
Apprentice Jockeys’ School, which this season celebrated its 50th anniversary. As part of
the new Racing Talent Training Centre it will continue to develop riding talent, with new
initiatives launched to boost performance and training efficiency. For jockeys seeking
to pursue a dual-track career, there will also be opportunities to study at The Education
University of Hong Kong.

Undoubtedly the best measure of the quality of Hong Kong racing is its expanding global
fan base, as reflected in the growth of commingling. This season overseas fans wagered
HK$25.7 billion on Hong Kong racing, up 11.1% and comprising 18.3% of total racing
turnover for the season. The Club now has more than 65 commingling partners in 25
countries and jurisdictions.

Hong Kong racing fans were likewise able to enjoy more of the best overseas racing thanks
to the Government’s decision to increase the number of simulcast days to 37 per year and
to permit simulcasting during the summer months as a means to combat illegal gambling.
Simulcast turnover was in consequence up 47.9% to HK$9.4 billion.

World Pool events, which enable fans worldwide to bet into shared pools on the world’s top
racing events, also saw significant growth. With a total of 21 World Pool events, up from
12 last year, the Club’s income was up 103.0%. As a hub and driver of the World Pool, the
Club is well-positioned to support its further growth, benefiting both Hong Kong and world
racing as a whole.

Despite the challenges of the pandemic, the Club continued to invest in its infrastructure
and technology. The HK$7.1 billion Racecourse Master Plan moved forward, with one new
and one refurbished venue opening this year, while next year will see the opening of a
new members’ car park at Sha Tin Racecourse along with new owners’ boxes and a new
eSports zone for public racegoers. The Club also continued to transform its Off-Course
Betting Branches, with a new-look branch opening in Stanley Street, Central.
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Under its Smart Platform 2.0 Strategy, the Club is digitally integrating the customer journey
across all three wagering channels. As of the beginning of the racing season, all seven
steps of the customer journey were accessible via online and mobile channels, providing
greater convenience and a more personalised customer experience. This has also enabled
the Club to maintain a full wagering and information service throughout the pandemic, with
90% of turnover being via digital channels.

All of this enabled the Club to sustain its racing wagering performance, with turnover for
the year at HK$140.4 billion and for the season at HK$140.5 billion. Racing betting duty
returned to the Government for the year was HK$14.1 billion and for the season HK$14.1
billion.

The strength of Hong Kong racing, and the growing respect for the Club worldwide, was
reflected in the election this year of the Club’s Chief Executive Officer as Chair of the
International Federation of Horseracing Authorities, the highest body in world racing. He
was also elected President of the International Horse Sports Confederation. With the Club
also being head of the Asian Racing Federation, it is uniquely positioned to play a major
role in world racing.

Looking forward, undoubtedly the most promising area of growth is the Greater Bay Area.
Last year the Club signed a Framework Cooperation Agreement with the Guangzhou
Municipal Government to jointly develop the Guangzhou-Hong Kong Racing Economic
Cluster. This will include racing at the Club’s Conghua Racecourse in Guangzhou, with
detailed planning underway to construct a grandstand, additional stabling and an equine
quarantine stable. Long term the ambition is to develop a world-class equine industry in the
Greater Bay Area.

The Club has been providing football betting since 2003, when it was authorised by the
Government to provide a service to combat illegal and unauthorised gambling on the sport.
Since then the Club has become one of the world’s largest and most successful football
betting operators, generating substantial tax and charity returns for the community.

This year, football betting turnover was up 2.6% to HK$143.8 billion, with HK$9.8 billion
in football betting duty returned to the Government. Here the Club benefited from the later
stages of the postponed Euro 2020 and the rescheduling of the Africa Cup of Nations and
other regional tournaments into the current financial year due to the pandemic. Given these
unusual circumstances, and the uncertainty of the global environment, it is unclear if this
level of performance can be sustained going forward.

As regards the Mark Six lottery, despite the pandemic it was possible to hold more draws
than last year and in consequence turnover was up 72.6% to HK$5.8 billion, with the Club
returning HK$1.5 billion in lottery duty and generating HK$0.9 billion for the Lotteries Fund.
It should be noted, however, that Mark Six turnover continues to be impacted by the lack of
significant change in its game format.

Despite the significant challenges of the past year, the Club remained fully committed to its
purpose: the betterment of our society. Total approved Trust donations for the year were
HK$6.6 billion, the second highest in the Club’s history.

As last year, the major focus of the Trust's donations was the COVID-19 pandemic.
In particular the resurgent fifth wave, which saw a significant increase in both cases
and fatalities. The Club responded speedily and in scale, launching new initiatives and
expanding existing ones. The aim was to address emergency needs while continuing to
build long-term resilience, with a particular focus on the most vulnerable members of the
community, especially the elderly, the differently abled, the disadvantaged, and children.
Since the beginning of the pandemic in February 2020, the Trust has approved HK$2.9
billion to address its impact, with cumulatively over three million people benefiting.
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Initiatives this year included an extra HK$100 million for the Club’s COVID-19 Emergency
Fund, which provides fast-track grants to NGOs; additional high-efficiency air purifiers
and filters for residential care homes for the elderly and the disabled; expansion of the
food assistance programme for the food insecure; support for the disadvantaged to obtain
out-patient and pharmaceutical services; and support for the online learning and mental
wellness of school students.

At the same time the Trust maintained its full support for a wide range of social needs.
These included its four focus areas: Positive Ageing & Elderly Care; Children & Youth
Development; Healthy Community; and Talent & Capacity Building. In support of this
strategy are 14 Trust-initiated Projects, which continue to achieve positive results. Indeed
many adapted their service models to address needs arising from the pandemic.

Following the outstanding performance of Hong Kong athletes at the 2020 Tokyo Olympics
and Paralympics, the Trust also donated HK$150 million to match the Government’s
HK$150 million grant to boost research and development in elite sports. The Club hopes
this will help athletes perform at their very best at the upcoming 2022 Asian Games, 2024
Paris Olympics and other international events.

The pandemic continued to impact membership operations this year. To protect the health
of members and employees, Hong Kong clubhouses were closed for six weeks at the height
of the fifth wave, with some facilities periodically closed thereafter as a precautionary
measure. The Club nonetheless worked hard to stay connected with members via an online
Club at Home dining service and through online recreational activities.

The Club also forged on with its new membership experience designed to offer exceptional
culinary, recreational and lifestyle experiences as well as to build fellowship around the
Club’s values and shared passion for horse racing and philanthropy. Through these the Club
seeks to engage younger members and multi-generational families who are essential to the
future of the Club.

The new membership experience is being implemented via new facilities and new
programmes. These include Happy Valley New Clubhouse, where The Eighth, a dining,
recreation and social venue opened this year. Also opening was the new Hilltop Paddock
at Happy Valley Old Clubhouse, which provides a relaxed dining option for families.
Meanwhile activities as varied as wellness retreats, racing-themed events, arts preview
tours and lifestyle experiences are being rolled out, the first being the Summer Reimagined
programme.

The Club is acutely aware of the need to reduce its carbon emissions and overall
environmental impact. In 2021/22, the Club’s total carbon emissions (Hong Kong and
the Mainland combined), at 112,579 tonnes of CO»-e, were 4.3% down on 2018/19 pre-
pandemic levels and 10.4% down on the Club’s baseline year of 2009/10. Reduced
operations due to the pandemic and a reduction in carbon intensity by the Club’s electricity
suppliers were the main contributory factors. However it should also be noted that the
Club’s operations have grown considerably since 2009/10, most notably with the opening
of Conghua Racecourse in 2018. The Club is currently developing a climate roadmap aimed
at significantly reducing carbon emissions in alignment with Hong Kong and Mainland
government plans to tackle climate change.
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With electricity being the main contributor to the Club’s carbon footprint, energy efficiency
is a major focus of the Club’s efforts. All new buildings are designed with energy efficiency
and sustainability in mind, including Happy Valley New Clubhouse, which is BEAM Plus
Gold Certified, the IT Operations Building currently under construction at Sha Tin, and
the phase-two buildings being planned at Conghua Racecourse. In Hong Kong, the Club
has embarked on an expansion of solar energy, with 89 Club locations identified for the
installation of solar PV panels, with a target capacity of approximately 5 million kWh of
electricity per year. At Conghua Racecourse, the Club has incorporated 1,500kW of solar
PV panels in the planning and design of phase-two construction. Meanwhile 96.7% of the
Club’s Hong Kong passenger vehicles are either electric or hybrid, with plans to expand
the EV charging infrastructure. Other initiatives in progress include new energy-efficient
floodlighting at Hong Kong racecourses and a five-year roadmap to reduce energy intensity
at Hong Kong clubhouses.

As regards waste, the Club’s first priority is to avoid waste at source. Otherwise reduction,
reuse and recycling practices are followed. The Club is actively searching for solutions
to its major waste streams of stable, food and paper waste, amongst others. To process
stable waste, the Club’s largest waste stream, the Club has begun a small-scale pilot to
recycle waste into biochar, which has several beneficial uses. A first of its kind in the equine
industry, it will be expanded once the recycling process has been refined. Since 2018, the
Club has been sending all food waste from Hong Kong clubhouse and racecourse dining
outlets to the Government’s O - Park1, where it is composted for local use. Thanks to a
greater adoption of paperless processes, the Club has already met its June 2025 target of
reducing office paper use by 20%. The Club has continued to seek alternatives to single-
use plastics since introducing an Avoiding Single-use Plastic Policy in 2018. In 2021/22,
over one million fewer plastic items were purchased than in the previous 12 months.

Municipal water usage in Hong Kong decreased marginally by 0.6% compared with
2020/21. To reduce the reliance on municipal water at Happy Valley Racecourse, work is in
progress on infrastructure to blend municipal and harvested water. The harvested water will
meet up to 25% of the track’s irrigation needs. At Conghua Racecourse, municipal water
withdrawal was down 13% year on year. Water recycling remains robust, meeting 25% of
total water use, compared to 27% the previous year. With phase-two construction underway
at Conghua, total water needs are anticipated to increase in the coming years.

The Club is authorised by the Government to provide betting services on horse racing and
football and to manage the Mark Six lottery on its behalf. In doing so, the Club provides a
regulated channel to meet gambling demand, and works with the Government to promote
responsible gambling and to protect the public from the dangers of credit betting, illegal
gambling and associated crimes.

In line with this, the Club has established an extensive range of measures under its
Responsible Gambling Policy. These measures are constantly refined and developed. This
year, for example, the Club’s OCBB Counselling Outreach Programme was enhanced and
expanded to cover all Off-Course Betting Branches as a regular programme.
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Though the percentage of problem gamblers in Hong Kong is relatively small, the Club
is fully committed to supporting the Ping Wo Fund, a Government-managed fund which
supports research, education and professional services addressing gambling related
social issues. By the end of 2022, the Club’s total contributions to the Fund will exceed
HK$495 million. In addition, the Club initiates its own responsible gambling programmes.
For example the Youth Education Programme, launched in partnership with the Vocational
Training Council and Hong Kong Children and Youth Services, and now in its third year,
encourages young people to embrace positive and healthy lifestyles. To expand its reach
during the pandemic an online platform was launched. In a further initiative targeting
adolescents, the Club partnered with Hong Kong Children and Youth Services to launch
2021 Summer Musication, the first-ever responsible gambling thematic music show, which
was also available online.

The Club’s support for responsible gambling is widely recognised. In 2011, it was granted
Level 4 accreditation, the highest possible, under the Responsible Gaming Framework of
the World Lottery Association. In 2021, this was extended for the fourth consecutive three-
year period. The Club is the first operator in Asia to achieve this accreditation four times in
succession.

The Club is committed to preventing its operations from being used for money laundering
and has an Anti-money Laundering Policy and Framework, which makes reference to the
internationally recognised Financial Action Task Force recommendations and industry best
practice.

To protect employees during the pandemic, and to minimise the risk of community
transmission, the Club continued to implement precautionary and safety measures. These
included work-from-home arrangements where operationally possible and an expanded
Employee Vaccination Support Programme, offering paid vaccination leave, transportation
support, pre-vaccination medical consultations and additional medical and life insurance
protection. As at year-end, 95% of full-time staff had been fully vaccinated. Additionally,
the Club provided financial support to part-time staff whose incomes were affected by
a decrease in roster duties due to reduced operating hours or the temporary closure of
facilities.

Notwithstanding the pandemic, the Club continued the culture transformation journey that it
initiated in 2019, focusing on collaboration, accountability and respect. Besides Club-level
activities, all divisions implemented action plans to support the transformation roadmap.

Though the pandemic has heightened competition to hire and retain skilled employees,
the Club remains an employer of choice given its values, culture and community focus.
With a stepped-up recruitment drive, over 1,270 full-time employees and 2,600 part-time
employees joined the Club during the year.

To boost employee well-being, and to help employees integrate work and life commitments,
several policies and initiatives were introduced during the year. For example flexible
working, including remote workdays and work schedules, was initiated. A new Work From
Overseas policy was also implemented and several other key programmes were enhanced
to strengthen employee retention.

The Club continued to provide a wide range of resources to support employee learning and
development, including through its digital Learning ePassport. Management and leadership
training also continued, with new initiatives launched, including the Leadership Development
2.0 programme for high-potential employees.
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The Club’s Corporate Wellness Programme offers a variety of opportunities for employees
to build wellness and develop healthy lifestyles. The Club’s Occupational Safety and Health
(OSH) management system, under the direction of its Corporate Safety Steering Committee,
regularly reviews policies and practices. In addition, employees receive OSH training as
necessary.

The Club actively encourages employees to engage in volunteer work, providing related
training as well as paid volunteering leave. This has continued throughout the pandemic,
including during the fifth wave, with members of the Club’s CARE@hkjc employee volunteer
team providing tele-support to elderly Sham Shui Po residents and helping to man hotlines
of the Hong Kong Community Anti-Coronavirus Link. In collaboration with District Offices
and NGOs they also packed anti-epidemic supplies for distribution to the community.

The Club is strongly committed to providing equal employment opportunities and to
ensuring that the workplace is free of discrimination, harassment and victimisation. All
employees receive a copy of the Club’s Code of Conduct, which provides guidance
on workplace behaviour and ethics. It also has an anti-bribery policy aligned with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. As appropriate, staff receive training in information
security, data privacy, anti-corruption and anti-discrimination measures.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Group’s total revenue increased from HK$43,085 million in 2020/21 to HK$46,179
million this financial year, representing growth of 7.2%. This was mainly attributable to
higher betting income from all products, in particular football and the lottery, as well as
increased income from catering, where operations were at 60% of their normal business
level, compared to less than 41% in 2020/21. Net margin and commission was HK$15,280
million, HK$847 million or 5.9% higher than in 2020/21, mainly attributable to the revenue
increase in all wagering and lottery products.

Operating costs were HK$13,388 million, HK$1,039 million or 8.4% higher than last financial
year, primarily driven by COVID-19 related measures. Pandemic-related costs were HK$635
million, of which approximately HK$450 million were for COVID-19 tests, isolation costs and
the vaccination support programme. Also contributing to operating costs were increased
staff costs, as well as an escalation in depreciation and repairs and maintenance following
the completion of capital projects during the year.

Nevertheless, the Group continued to invest substantially in operating assets and new
technology platforms with a view to meeting future customer demand and improving asset
health. During the financial year, the Group’s total capital expenditure was HK$3,080 million.

GROUP REVENUE AND OPERATING COSTS (HK$M)
EEBARELEA (BEET)

19,000

5,000

17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22

Group operating costs

RERERAE

Group revenue

SEKRA



BUSINESS REVIEW
e 2

EEAFENRRERCERBA55F8008ERL - B
hAURBEFEREDR - HEWERE - UARBIBET
EENEBESEFCRAMARESERITNK
| BEAFEL - BA00EBET - HKiER0.2% - E
EHREE AR

H2021/22FE > EEKAREEBERRKE —HFIHE
B BRBEEEYH  REBLHERAEH - 5261
fE3,8008 Bt » EHEREN2021/22 B FEMH
W4 %E6.9% - BENEERTREENIRA LA » £E
MR AEREFEN16159,1008E T - AEA
6.9% °

EENKBRHREFREB47(88,30088 T ' EFTE
ERBEETESNTE  RELEANBREERDISE
570088 7T - Kig566.6% @ TEFENFRIREMD

EERARBEKLERBEATERGEREESER
WER - R2021/22FF » EEMNCEHETESE
MBH491E5,0008E T MEBFARMELE R
90% °

RE

BSE-HABURREERRE  UXEIMPANEER
HHENZZRY - TEEBREAS ([EE)) B8
HY e BREEEREBEYN  URFBED
mE  TEEEERBREENEBKET  SEX
BRBEHEE ESHMEESKEER  URY
FHIBRERSELENTREEER -

ESEEFTRENRENE REZSESAMNES
RE# AEEEESBFRBEMAEHEBRERR
MK FSERENSEHCHREENERREAS
AR EEESERE  BRRREABIFEREER
B HEENRETHETEIEE -

10

The Group’s operating surplus after taxation for the year, before investment returns, gain
on sale of properties and donations to the Trust and The Hong Kong Jockey Club Equine
Welfare Research Foundation Limited, was HK$5,508 million, HK$9 million or 0.2% lower
than last year, mainly attributable to higher operating costs.

The Group continues to be Hong Kong’s single largest taxpayer, with total tax payments
(comprising betting duty, lottery duty and profits tax) of HK$26,138 million in 2021/22. This
was equivalent to 6.9% of the total taxes collected by the Inland Revenue Department in
the year of assessment 2021/22. Due to higher revenues, the Group’s total tax contributions
during the financial year increased by HK$1,691 million or 6.9% from last year.

TAX CONTRIBUTION (HK$M)
R (BEEER)

0 5,000

Horse race betting duty
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Football betting duty
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10,000 15,000 20,000
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The Group’s net surplus after taxation, excluding donations to the Trust, was HK$4,783
million, HK$9,557 million or 66.6% lower than last financial year, mainly attributable to a
decrease in investment return during the year.

The Group has adopted operating surplus after taxation for determining its donations to the
Trust. During 2021/22, the Group approved HK$4.95 billion in donations to the Trust, which
represented 90% of the Group’s operating surplus after taxation during the year.

INVESTMENTS

The Club maintains healthy financial reserves to support its diverse operations and
charitable contributions to the community. These reserves are managed by the Club in an
investment portfolio (“the Fund”) with the overall objective of preserving purchasing power
and, to the extent this is achieved, cause the principal to grow in value over time within
reasonable and prudent levels of risk. The Fund is invested with a long-term investment
horizon, diversified across different geographic regions and asset classes, and managed by
external fund managers.

The Fund is managed under a robust governance framework. The Investment Committee,
reporting to the Board of Stewards, has oversight responsibilities for the Fund and approves
all policies and strategies related to it. Management of the Fund is carried out by a
dedicated Investment Office staffed with experienced investment professionals. A separate
Investment Risk Department serves as a second line of defence, conducting independent
oversight of the Club’s investment activities.
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The Club recognises that risks have to be taken in any investment strategy, and this means
accepting an associated mark-to-market volatility with invested assets. The Investment
Committee regularly reviews risk-taking with respect to the potential range of outcomes for
the Fund. In recent years, the Club has proactively reduced risks in the Fund in recognition
of high valuations and rising geopolitical tensions. Nevertheless, as with all investment
portfolios, the Fund is susceptible to volatility in financial markets and experiences mark-to-
market losses during uncertain macro-economic environments.

Over the course of this financial year, the Fund experienced periods of volatility due to
the tightening of monetary conditions by major central banks in response to inflationary
pressures, the slowdown in the Mainland economy, and the Russia-Ukraine war, which
exacerbated fears of stagflation and added to global geopolitical tensions.

This challenging macroeconomic and geopolitical environment resulted in equities suffering
significant declines, with global equity markets entering a bear market. Unlike other equity
bear markets over the past four decades, government bonds have not provided any
protection this time as inflationary concerns caused interest rates to rise and values of
bonds to fall. The US Dollar also strengthened materially given its safe haven status and
with the Federal Reserve tightening monetary policy more significantly than policy makers in
other major economies.

Against the backdrop of negative returns delivered by major asset classes, the Fund
performed resiliently, having reduced risk and maintained a diversified portfolio, especially
in alternative investments. A mark-to-market loss of HK$725 million was recorded in the
current financial year as compared with the large gain of HK$8,823 million in the past
financial year. These gains and losses reflect changes in fair value during the financial year.

Throughout this period, the Club held firm to its core investment philosophy of maintaining
a well-diversified portfolio and adhering to the discipline of long-term investing. This
prudent approach to investing has served the Club well over a period of more than 20
years, enabling the Fund to weather multiple episodes of stress and to grow its capital
meaningfully over the long term, thereby protecting the Fund’s purchasing power. In light
of the complex set of issues currently facing the global economy, including inflation at
multi-decade highs, slowing global growth and heightened geopolitical risks, the Club is
maintaining a relatively conservative risk posture for the Fund.

Consistent with the Club’s purpose of acting continuously for the betterment of our society,
the Club has been integrating ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance) factors into its
investment process since 2018. The Club believes that consideration of ESG factors will
allow the Fund to achieve its investment objectives in a way that also generates positive
outcomes for society. Accordingly, ESG is taken into consideration when selecting and
monitoring external fund managers. Additionally, the Club actively engages its managers in
order to promote greater and more substantive adoption of ESG practices.

During the year, the Club enhanced its ability to monitor ESG-related metrics through the
procurement of an external ESG data solution. This will enable the Club to more effectively
assess the outcomes of integrating ESG into its investment process. As an initial step, the
Club has prioritised the collection of carbon emission metrics on the Fund’s public equities
investments and the assessment of progress made by the Club’s fund managers in reducing
carbon emissions in their portfolios. This is in line with the global movement to increase
climate risk mitigation efforts.

11
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For the Fund’s public equities portfolio, as at 31 December 2020 the carbon footprint was
72 metric tonnes of CO,-equivalent (CO.-e) emissions per US$1 million invested, which was
27% less than the carbon footprint of the Club’s public equities benchmark. The figure was
also lower than the carbon footprint of the Fund’s public equities portfolio of 120 and 124
metric tonnes CO.-e as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 respectively. The
large decline in the portfolio’s carbon footprint observed between 2019 and 2020 can be
attributed to the extraordinarily low levels of global economic activity in 2020 resulting from
the pandemic. Notwithstanding the difficulty in drawing concrete conclusions from the 2020
carbon emissions data, these data collection efforts provide a strong foundation for future
analysis.

Currently over 90% of the Club’s externally managed assets are managed with an ESG
policy in place, reflecting both the investment industry’s growing focus on sustainability and
the Club’s active implementation of its ESG policy. The majority of the Club’s mandated
managers are signatories to the United Nations Principles for Responsible Investment and/
or other ESG standard setting organisations. Going forward, the Club seeks to collect and
analyse a more comprehensive set of ESG-related metrics on the portfolio with a view to
more effectively assess the outcomes of integrating ESG into the investment process and
improve the Fund’s ESG metrics over time.

ESG Data Disclosure

Carbon emissions data refer to Scope 1 and Scope 2 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions
sourced from MSCI ESG Research with portfolio coverage of 91% (2020), 94% (2019) and
94% (2018) which includes both actual company reported and MSCI estimated figures.

This disclosure was developed using certain information from ©2022 MSCI ESG Research
LLC or its affiliates or information providers and reproduced by permission. Although The
Hong Kong Jockey Club’s information providers, including without limitation, MSCI ESG
Research LLC and its affiliates (the “ESG Parties”), obtain information (the “Information”)
from sources they consider reliable, none of the ESG Parties warrants or guarantees the
originality, accuracy and/or completeness, of any data herein and expressly disclaim all
express or implied warranties, including those of merchantability and fitness for a particular
purpose. The Information may only be used for your internal use, may not be reproduced
or redisseminated in any form and may not be used as a basis for, or a component of, any
financial instruments or products or indices. Further, none of the Information can in and of
itself be used to determine which securities to buy or sell or when to buy or sell them. None
of the ESG Parties shall have any liability for any errors or omissions in connection with any
data herein, or any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any
other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the possibility of such damages.
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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse
racing in Hong Kong, in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football
and lotteries, and in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 19. All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements
are expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group approved donations of HK$4,952 million to The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) and HK$82 million for other charitable purposes.

STEWARDS

The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report is listed in
the Board of Stewards section.

Mr Philip N L Chen and Mr Michael T H Lee were re-elected as Chairman and Deputy
Chairman respectively immediately after the Club’s 2021 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
held on 31 August 2021 (the “2021 AGM”).

Mr Andrew W B R Weir was appointed as a Steward on 31 August 2021 to fill the vacancy
left by Mr Stephen Ip Shu Kwan who resigned as a Steward at the conclusion of the 2021
AGM.

The Hon Bernard Charnwut Chan was co-opted as a Steward on 10 June 2022 to fill the
vacancy left by The Hon Mrs Margaret Leung who retired as a Steward on 10 June 2022
upon reaching the age of 70.

Mr Philip N L Chen will not seek re-election as a Steward at the conclusion of the 2022
Annual General Meeting to be held on 8 September 2022 (the “2022 AGM”) and his vacancy
will be filled by election at the 2022 AGM.

Mr Richard Tang Yat Sun will resign as a Steward at the conclusion of the 2022 AGM and
his vacancy will be filled by election at the 2022 AGM.

Dr Rosanna Wong Yick Ming will retire as a Steward on 15 August 2022 upon reaching the
age of 70 and her vacancy will be filled by election at the 2022 AGM.
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In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, The Hon Martin Liao, Dr Silas S. S.
Yang and Mr Andrew W B R Weir will retire by rotation at the 2022 AGM. All three Stewards
retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. The Hon Bernard
Charnwut Chan was co-opted as a Steward to fill the vacancy left by The Hon Mrs Margaret
Leung until the 2022 AGM, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year
under review. No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the
Club’s business to which the Club or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Steward
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is contained on pages 2 to 12, and is part of the Report of the
Stewards.

SUBSIDIARIES

The principal activities of the Club’s subsidiaries are shown on page 70.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the 2022 AGM.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is
signed for and on behalf of the Board.

Philip N L Chen
Chairman
27 July 2022

15



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB AR E

HERESEEE

(REBEIMAELAERERAA])

=R
EMEESHAR
EEEES OITHEEE ) RAWEAT (A TH

BIEE]DIIENEI9Z7T0ENGREHBRE &
&

o A2022%F6 B30 AMBREMBMRRE
o HEZALFEMNGAKFEX -
o HEZALEEMNGAZENREEX -

e HEZRALFENGSEREHX -

o HEZHALFENGARESRERR
o FEMBHRERMT  BFEIESHBERHEMERE
58 -

EMHWER

BFRA  ZEREGUERRCRETESHMAE
EHNCE B BRRELEAEEMP SR T EE
R2022F6 A0 BN GREMBERRAREBEZZALSF
ENGEUERBEGERERE  UCBEBREB(D
TEG) ZEEE -

ERNER
HEMERETBESTMASRAN(EBENLERDE
TE - BRMEZRSETRENETCSESRRE &
HMR B FEUBRRAENEE I B2 HEE-F
FABRRETRR

BABEE BRARESNE BEES

EMWETSRIBHER -

Bt

REFBSHA LS EAN(EXSADBEETA) (M
TEBIFA)  RMBINER  XEBITFRIRH
HithHEEEEE -

16

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB

(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 19 to 70, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club, the financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust and our auditor’s reports
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF STEWARDS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the Board of Stewards determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Stewards is responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board of Stewards either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT.)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Stewards.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Stewards’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, as delegated by the Board of Stewards,
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong,
27 July 2022



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

el ER

BZ6HA30HILFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million MizE Note 2022 2021
EEHHYE Number of race meetings 1 88 88
AR EER IR F AR Amounts wagered by local customers 264,483 256,438
EASEX NN TEEE Amounts of non-local bets commingled with the
Club’s pools 25,561 23,260
BOTHEER Total amounts wagered 2.2 290,044 279,698
BEREFRA Betting and lottery revenue 2.3 41,808 38,878
EERRESEEB Betting and lottery duty (25,442) (28,822)
RTRF It BB Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (209) (114)
REES Lotteries Fund (877) (509)
@WwRRAE Net margin and commission 4 15,280 14,433
HUA Other revenue 5 4,371 4,207
19,651 18,640
S J2%N Operating costs 6 (13,388) (12,349)
BRIEFETESREEESEECEIARESER Present value of donations to the Trust and The
AT ((EEEANARES ) WRERE Hong Kong Jockey Club Equine Welfare Research
Foundation Limited (the “Equine Foundation”) 8 (4,940) (5,708)
HRBECETEESRELEIMEESRERNLE Operating surplus after donations to the Trust and
peel=3 the Equine Foundation 1,323 583
FRFE W Interest income from deposits 137 85
RERTESMIARR Surplus from investments and derivatives 33 547
BERESRENRLR Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 1,790 3,192
BKEMA Finance costs 21 (5) (8)
3,278 4,399
FHiE&E DT (B18) &R Share of (losses)/profits of joint ventures 13 (2,682) 4,999
R IEAT B8R Surplus before taxation 596 9,398
Big Taxation 7 (753) (766)
BRI ERTFE (FB) Rt Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (157) 8,632
BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
HBRFERNRFTREDRR HEWE W HA LS Operating surplus after taxation and before
Bt investment returns and gain on sale of properties 5,508 5,517
(k] Investment returns (725) 8,823
HMBRFEERARTRBETIESRECEIMERS Surplus after taxation and before donations to the
MIEATH B R Trust and the Equine Foundation 4,783 14,340
BIETEAESRECEAMRESWFIERE Present value of donations to the Trust and the
Equine Foundation (4,940) (5,708)
BEBFEEE (51R) Bt Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (157) 8,632

MERBLIER AR IREBRR HENE RS NEE
Btf RETEEBBTEITESHIUEANEE -

REQFEEERANENS RERITESHIAN
Bty BE ERAESRENES BB TeE
HESENENUBER » URFT{EHKJIC Investment
Trust Fund ([ Investment Trust ) #5&% B8 o

Operating surplus after taxation and before investment returns and gain on sale of

properties is the basis for determining the Group’s donations to the Trust.

Investment returns include interest income from deposits, surplus/deficit from investments
and derivatives, surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments, finance costs excluding
interest expenses on lease liabilities and share of profits/losses of the HKJC Investment

Trust Fund (“Investment Trust”).

BUAHEZT0ENMEBAGSUBHRROH—HD -

The notes on pages 24 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEZHEWER

BZ6H30BLEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million MizE Note 2022 2021
MRBEARFE (BB) Rt Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (157) 8,632
Hih2mEE (FER) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
FTEEHIBRANERNIER Items that will not be reclassified to income
statement
BIBEENEXNENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefit
obligations 25 160 519
HEARENIBRARSERNER Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to income statement
B HImER Currency translation differences 25 (77) 260
AEERBRENEM2EEE Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 83 779
AEERME (FE) W HBLE Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (74) 9,411

BUAHEZT0ENMEBAGSUBHRROH—HD -
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The notes on pages 24 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

A6H30H at 30 June
BEET in HK$ million MzF Note 2022 2021
IERBEE Non-current assets
M2 - RERBEM Property, plant and equipment 10 14,244 14,154
REYHE Investment properties 11 18 19
mREE Intangible assets 12 3,500 3,041
EENERE Investments in joint ventures 13 25,480 28,534
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments 14 16,278 13,988
BRERITESMIA Investments and derivatives 15 2,079 1,894
REAFE(SFE R WK IE Long-term prepayments and receivables 17 126 120
ELEFRESHERE Deferred income tax assets 18 9 9
RERRTE Defined benefit scheme 24 279 171
62,013 61,930
RBEE Current assets
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments 14 - 341
PTESMITA Derivatives 15 1 1
EShEMEWRFIE Trade and other receivables 19 598 517
HtRe&EE Other current assets 19 601 464
EHEITFER Short-term deposits 20 6,910 8,620
ReERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 6,581 5,430
14,691 15,373
BEE Current liabilities
EH\HE%’\ Short-term loans 21 - (24)
B5 REMEMRK Trade and other payables 22,30.2 (11,637) (12,271)
FER R IE Receipts in advance 23 (467) (482)
AHFBHEE Current income tax liabilities (1,009) (653)
HEas Lease liabilities (71) (94)
(13,184) (13,524)
RBEEFHE Net current assets 1,507 1,849
FREEE Non-current liabilities
EIEFEBARE Deferred income tax liabilities 18 (861) (814)
HESE Lease liabilities (136) (191)
H b EATARRX Other payables 30.2 (578) (755)
(1,575) (1,760)
61,945 62,019
& Reserves 25 24,607 24,272
BERE® Contingency Fund 26 37,338 37,747
EmAE Total equity 61,945 62,019
- Philip N L Chen
PR B % Michael T H Lee
FFE Stewards

k
o

EUAHEETOENMEBAGEMBHRERN -2

The notes on pages 24 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HRES

% Contingency wE
BEER in HK$ million Reserves Fund Total
20217 A1 B8k Balance at 1 July 2021 24,272 37,747 62,019
MREBI B REEE Net deficit after taxation (157) - (157)
AEERBENEMEEEE Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 83 - 83
AEEEEKZAEE Total comprehensive income for the year 24,198 37,747 61,945
(2304 Transfers 409 (409) -
20224 6 B30 H & &R Balance at 30 June 2022 24,607 37,338 61,945
20207 B 1 B8k Balance at 1 July 2020 22,161 30,447 52,608
BB FERER Net surplus after taxation 8,632 - 8,632
AEERBENEMEEIE Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 779 - 779
AEEZHRABRE Total comprehensive income for the year 31,572 30,447 62,019
B Transfers (7,300) 7,300 -
20216 A 30 H &tk Balance at 30 June 2021 24,272 37,747 62,019

BUAHEZT0ENMEBAGSUBHRROH—HD -
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The notes on pages 24 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A Ay~ — 1
mERERER
BZ6H30BLEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million MizE Note 2022 2021
SRR Operating activities
EETHMEENERES Cash generated from operations 27.1 2,689 4,092
[EERIZIEEE Income tax paid (382) (425)
EETHMEENERS Net cash generated from operating activities 2,307 3,667
REEH Investing activities
ZH A ASEA L LM ERERZRD (Em) Decrease/(increase) in short-term deposits with
maturities more than 3 months 1,710 (6,248)
BEYE RERSEM Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,051) (1,617)
BERLEE Purchase of intangible assets (924) (859)
HEWE - RERSEM Sale of property, plant and equipment 2 -
2 WERF S Interest received 130 88
HEENRMEEE Injection into joint ventures (3,729) (2,203)
&% AR EE Redemption from joint ventures 4,093 4,891
BERANTEEEBRERIERNUKERE Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (3,097) (4,113)
HERATFEBEEBERVIRNIBEEE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 2,936 4,272
RENFFHD Decrease in deposits held in investments - 1,207
RETEFMANFERS Net cash used in investing activities (930) (4,582)
RMEES Financing activities
EXHRE Interest paid (5) (8)
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (24) (12)
HenreHo Principal element of lease payments (94) (104)
RETBMANFERSE Net cash used in financing activities (123) (124)
BeRBESZEYFEMOBD) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,254 (1,039)
FHERERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 5,430 6,353
HipELE Exchange difference (103) 116
FERERBEZEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,581 5,430
ReRBECLEEBNEETIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
BHER Short-term deposits 20 4,625 3,522
RITERRES Bank balances and cash 20 1,956 1,908
6,581 5,430

BUAHEZT0ENMEBAGSUBHRROH—HD -

The notes on pages 24 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong
and in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and
in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong
Kong with liability limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports
Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out on page 70.

The last five race meetings of the 2020/21 racing season were held on 1st, 4th, 7th, 11th
and 14th July 2021 (“July 2021 race meetings”) and a simulcast day was held on 3rd July
2021 (“July 2021 simulcast day”). The last five race meetings of the 2021/22 racing season
were held on 1st, 6th, 10th, 13th and 16th July 2022 (“July 2022 race meetings”) and the
Hong Kong International Sale of the 2021/22 racing season was held on 9th July 2022 (“July
2022 HKIS”). Accordingly, the financial results of the July 2021 race meetings and July
2021 simulcast day have been included in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2022. The financial results of the July 2022 race meetings and July 2022
HKIS will be included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 June
2023.

The proforma consolidated income statements for the 2020/21 and 2021/22 racing seasons
are shown on page 71. The proforma consolidated income statements for the 2021/22
racing season exclude the results of any simulcast days after the last local race meeting of
the season on 16 July 2022.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$
million), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 19 to 70 were approved by the Board of
Stewards on 27 July 2022.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. Areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(a) Amendments to Financial Reporting Standards that are relevant to the
Group’s operations and are effective for the current accounting period

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 16 extend the time limit in one of the qualifying criteria of the
practical expedient for COVID-19-related rent concessions from 30 June 2021 to 30 June
2022. As such, the use of the practical expedient is available to more rent concessions, in
particular those involving the reduction in lease payments originally due after 30 June 2021
but before 30 June 2022.

The adoption of the above amendments to Financial Reporting Standards did not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements and has not led to any changes
in the Group’s accounting policies.

(b) Amendments to Financial Reporting Standards that are relevant to the
Group’s operations but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted

The following amendments to Financial Reporting Standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2022.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The Group is still assessing what the impact of the amendments to Financial Reporting
Standards will be in the period of initial application. It is not yet in a position to state
whether these amendments to Financial Reporting Standards will have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M EE
hY . e —
2 EGFBER(E) 2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.2 RXHBH 2.2 Amounts wagered
FEWBRRITNRILEIATBEEIRELIER  The consolidated income statement presents amounts wagered by local customers and
EASEXNMNIERIRFLEEE - amounts of non-local bets commingled with the Club’s pools.
2022

BEEHEY BHRIEE
BZ6HA30HILEE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 235 FEYE
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
AR EER IR F KR Amounts wagered by local customers 114,835 143,798 5,850 264,483
EASEX MW TEEE Amounts of non-local bets

commingled with the Club’s pools 25,561 - - 25,561
140,396 143,798 5,850 290,044
2021

BEEEY BIREE
BZ6H30HILEE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football i85 #azE
BEER in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
AR R AR Amounts wagered by local customers 112,877 140,171 3,390 256,438
EABSEXMMER IR L Amounts of non-local bets

commingled with the Club’s pools 23,260 - - 23,260

136,137 140,171 3,390 279,698

2.3 WBEREZRWA 2.3 Betting and lottery revenue

SEEE—YHAAEYRESFTHEENFWERE  The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all local betting and lottery activities
B GERA LS EASEAUARERIRTIHAE  as revenue, which are the amounts wagered by local customers net of betting dividends,
WEREROMMIESRESLTEAMNELE - AFEE  rebates and lottery prizes. A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by local customers and
ROTHEREERRSRAWEHER  FRME4 - betting and lottery revenue is shown in note 4.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.4 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, up to 30 June 2022,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Club on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets.

(b) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures as unanimous
consent is required from all parties to the agreements for relevant activities. Joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method. In the Club’s statement of financial position, the
equity method of accounting is used, which is consistent with the accounting policy of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.5 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income
from betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either
for the Club or for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the
Club’s substantial investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special
purposes as deemed appropriate by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund comprises the
Contingency Fund investments (including investments in the joint venture: Investment
Trust) and funds awaiting investment, which consist of short-term deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and other receivables. The Contingency Fund is adjusted annually through the
receipt of investment income, realised surplus or deficit, revaluation of investments and,
when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.

The Contingency Fund’s investments are held for non-trading purposes, irrespective of
whether they are classified as current or non-current. They are stated at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The surplus derived from the Contingency Fund investments is
reinvested and the deficit is absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The accounting
policy for the financial assets of the Contingency Fund’s investments is stated in note 2.7.

2.6

Investments and derivatives (including investments in the Investment Trust) are held for non-
trading purposes, irrespective of whether they are classified as current or non-current. They
are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The surplus derived from these
investments is reinvested and the deficit is absorbed within these portfolios. The accounting
policy for the financial assets of the investments and derivatives is stated in note 2.7.

Investments and derivatives

2.7 Financial assets
(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or (i) financial assets at amortised cost. The financial assets
include Contingency Fund investments and other investments and derivatives.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For debt instruments, the objective of the Group’s business model is not to hold the assets
to collect the contractual cash flows, and not to both hold the financial assets to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if they are expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current assets. All equity instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Alternative investments mainly include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds,
private real estate funds and private credit funds.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, equity options,
foreign exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to
facilitate the implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as
current as they are expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.7 Financial assets (cont.)

(a) Classification (cont.)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For financial assets that the Group holds in order to collect contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates,
these are classified as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category
are classified as current assets if they are expected to be settled or if they have maturities
within 12 months; otherwise they are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s assets in this category include trade and other receivables, deposits, short-
term deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include bank
balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed with banks for a
fixed term of more than three months are classified as short-term deposits.

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade day - the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial
assets that are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including
dividend income and interest income, are recognised in the income statement. This
information is shown under surplus/deficit from investments and derivatives or surplus/
deficit from Contingency Fund investments.

For financial assets that do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their
fair values will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund

managers using valuation techniques.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.7 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS 9 on the
reporting date.

For trade receivables, the Group considers that there is no significant financing component.
Impairment is assessed based on the lifetime ECL.

Other financial assets including deposits, short-term deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The Group considers these
counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual cash
flows, and are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the
12-month ECL.

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Group considers the
credit risk of a financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any
contractual cash flows from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more.
When a financial asset is unlikely to be recovered it is considered credit-impaired.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent
period, an asset’s quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant
increase in credit risk since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from
lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off.
Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off reduce the amount of the expense in the income statement.

The Group measures ECL using the historical loss of the respective financial assets
and considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available,
including the following indicators: (a) the counterparty’s external credit rating and its
expected change; (b) actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the payment pattern of debtors.

The Group considers the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and the 12-month ECL for the
other financial assets as minimal.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold
land under finance leases are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

over the lease term

25 to 40 years

3 to 15 years

no depreciation is provided on projects in
progress until they are ready for use in the manner
intended by management. On completion, the
project costs are transferred to the appropriate
property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets

Buildings

Plant and equipment
Projects in progress

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.21).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated income statement during the year in which they are
incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

2.9 Leases

Leases of land and buildings in which the Group acts as the lessee are recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable and variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date.

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

The right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of initial measurement

of lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received, any initial direct costs and restoration costs.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.9 Leases (cont.)

Lease payments are allocated between the principal and interest expense. The interest
expense is charged to profit or loss over the lease period based on the remaining balance
of lease liability for each period.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases across the Group.
Extension options or periods after termination options are only included in the lease term if
the lease is reasonably certain to be extended or not terminated.

2.10Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or capital appreciation or both, and
that are not occupied by the entities in the Group, are classified as investment properties.
Investment properties are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction
costs, and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. They are depreciated on a straight-line basis, with their cost allocated to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives at the same rate as buildings.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

2.11Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software is stated at historical
cost less accumulated amortisation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition and development of the item. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of three to ten years. No amortisation
is provided on projects in progress until they are ready for use in the manner as intended by
management. On completion, the project costs are transferred to computer software.

2.12Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.13 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income taxation is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise
from employee benefits, depreciation on property, plant and equipment and investment
properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period are used to determine deferred income taxation.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will be reversed in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.14Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Club’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from translation at the year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The differences arising from translation
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

— assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;

— income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.15Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Receipts in advance

Receipts in advance represent the contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.
A contract liability is recognised when the cash that is prepaid by members on membership
subscriptions, entrance and qualification fees, horse imports and pre-sales amounts
exceeds the performance obligations fulfilled, including the rendering of betting or relevant
services.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered by local customers net
of betting dividends and rebates and is recognised at the time when the relevant betting
service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered by customers net of betting
dividends and is recognised at the time when the relevant betting service has been
rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents amounts wagered by customers net of prizes and is
recognised at the time when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.
Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of
election of members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.
Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised
at the time when the event is held.

Revenue from catering sales, other member services and the sale of souvenir items is
recognised at the time when the relevant services have been rendered and relevant goods
have been sold.

Revenue from the sale of horses is recognised when the title is transferred.

Revenue from stable and livery service charges and risk management service fees is
recognised over the time when the relevant service has been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Co-ordination fees and licence fees from inbound commingling are recognised at the time
when the relevant service has been rendered.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.18 Employee benefits
(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon
retirement with reference to their final salaries.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of the
Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation (“DBO”) is calculated
annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using market yields of government securities which have terms to maturity
approximating terms of the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they arise.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme are recognised as staff costs
in the consolidated income statement for the year when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for
the contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

(c) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is
recognised where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.19Donation

A donation is charged to the income statement and recognised as a liability when the
donation has been offered to and accepted by the donee and it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the legal and/or constructive obligation established.

Donations that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at the present value of
expected future payments, using the effective interest method.

2.20Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions,
or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control. Related
parties may be individuals or entities.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.21 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not ready to be used or have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
depreciation and/or amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise
significant judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including
making estimates and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are
impacted by judgements and uncertainties, for which different amounts may be reported
under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation/amortisation
of property, plant and equipment/intangible assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme
and actual usage experience. Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the
straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off their cost to the residual value over their
estimated useful lives (notes 2.8 and 2.11).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in
a change in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation expense in
future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuations of the
Group’s retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the
defined benefit element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors
including the long-term salary increase rate provided by the Club, as disclosed in note
24(d). In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the market yields
of government securities which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the
related pension obligation. Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions can affect the
present value of plan obligations and service costs in future periods.

3.3 Income tax

Judgement is required to determine the income tax and deferred tax provision. The final
tax outcome may be different from the amounts that were initially recorded. The Group
recognises liabilities based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such a determination is made.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT.)

3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Management judgement is required in the area of impairment of non-financial assets,
particularly in assessing whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values;
(2) the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash
flows from the asset using estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions adopted by management
to determine the level, if any, of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could significantly affect the Group’s reported
financial position and results of operations.

3.5 Estimation of fair value of certain financial assets

The fair value of certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation technique as detailed in note
31.3 (d). The Group determines the fair values of these financial assets primarily based on
the net asset value of the funds and its interest held with reference to fund reports obtained
from fund managers and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period. The estimation of fair values is based on
management’s best estimates.

Where it is determined that the actual fair value is different from the estimated fair value
that were recorded, such differences will impact the surplus/(deficit) from investments and
derivatives, surplus/(deficit) from Contingency Fund investments and share of profits/(losses)
of joint ventures in the period in which such a determination is made.

4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION

Net margin represents the amounts wagered by local customers on horse races and
football net of the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing
jurisdictions outside Hong Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting
Duty Ordinance and the Betting Duty Regulations.

Commission represents the amounts wagered by customers on the lottery net of related
prizes, duty and payment to the Lotteries Fund.

2022
EEHEY EHEE

HZ6H30BILEE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 25 #azg
BEER in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
i BRI F B KR Amounts wagered by local customers 114,835 143,798 5,850 264,483
BYEe  BENkERRS Betting dividends, rebates and lottery

prizes (95,406) (124,110) (3,159) (222,675)
BERRESFRA Betting and lottery revenue 19,429 19,688 2,691 41,808
EERRESELH Betting and lottery duty (14,135) (9,844) (1,463) (25,442)
IR TF I ith T AR Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong (209) - - (209)
BEEE Lotteries Fund - - (877) (877)
WRREE Net margin and commission 5,085 9,844 351 15,280
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4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION (CONT.)

2021
BEEEY BIREE

HZ6H30BILEE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 35 4z
BEER in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
iR IR Amounts wagered by local customers 112,877 140,171 3,390 256,438
BEES BHRESZRS Betting dividends, rebates and lottery

prizes (94,048)  (121,681) (1,831)  (217,560)
EERESBA Betting and lottery revenue 18,829 18,490 1,559 38,878
BEBRESEY Betting and lottery duty (13,730) (9,245) 847)  (23,822)
RARFIMEE %%% Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong (114) - - (114)
#EES Lotteries Fund - - (509) (509)
#HR LA Net margin and commission 4,985 9,245 203 14,433

A BESHER (REEHE) NESEYRAIRRE
BERTE » 2021/22F ER2020/21 FEMHREEZE
ZEREMNT5% o RIRBEHAZRELWRAKNS0%ET
B MAEERRSFEEHRURTRTEN25%TE o

Betting duty on local horse races (on a racing season basis) is charged on a progressive
sliding scale on racing betting revenue, reaching the maximum rate of 75% in 2021/22 and
2020/21. Betting duty on football betting is charged at the rate of 50% on football betting
revenue, while lottery duty on the Mark Six is charged at 25% on the amount wagered.

5 OTHER REVENUE

BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
28 Membership fees 1,311 1,304
ESRBEEEZTNHEEBRTAIE Co-ordination fees and licence fees from commingling
partners 1,155 994
EERESRBWE Stable and livery service charges 808 851
ZRRIE W E Charges for catering services 606 463
ESERENE Racing related income 168 140
RBEEREE Risk management service fees 50 68
ER WS Royalty income 35 29
HELMTENRIE Sale of souvenir items 21 24
HESTMEMRIE Sale of horses 4 125
Hith Others 213 209
4,371 4,207
6 RKERAK 6 OPERATING COSTS

BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
B I (MiEE9) Staff costs (note 9) 6,348 5,657
Y% - BRERBMITE (FIFE10) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 10) 1,933 1,877
BEERS Prize money 1,436 1,384
MR RN AR Supplies and utilities 782 721
HIEREER Repairs and maintenance 717 676
HE R A Cost of sales 595 595
B EEEHE (HE12) Amortisation of intangible assets (note 12) 465 364

BiETEER %E?Eﬂﬁﬂ?%gﬁbwl‘ Donations and contributions to parties other than the Trust
B HFTERNBR R AR and the Equine Foundation 127 124
ZEEEN 2 Auditor’s remuneration 10 9
REMEFE (MIEE11) Depreciation of investment properties (note 11) 1 1
EEMS Stewards’ remuneration - -
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7 PIE 7 TAXATION

BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021

IERFTIS R Current income tax

-&B - Hong Kong 697 629

— BB - outside Hong Kong 42 84

- BEFERE - adjustments in respect of prior years (1) (4)

IELEATER (FFE18) Deferred income taxation (note 18)

-&8 - Hong Kong 13 65

— BB - outside Hong Kong 2 (8)
753 766

EENERDBRBERAFEMTERFETIL16.5%
(202145 : 16.5%) BRFHH o &8 LUIMNERBLERI T
EENEH  CREBMEEANBEFELERE -

EEBRBABBIEENERBIE  BREFERNE
BIR BT HOREEZRMT -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has

been provided at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that

would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

HEBR in HK$ million 2022 2021
MBRFIE AT B Surplus before taxation 596 9,398
RFLFEA16.5% (2021%F : 16.5%) 5t & Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) 98 1,551
HitEI R T EMESHBENTE Effect of different income tax rates in other countries 3 22
BAFHRNENB KL Tax effect of non-taxable income (343) (1,448)
FAIMBEHOB B E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 957 629
BEFERE Adjustments in respect of prior years 1) (4)
Hith Others 39 16
HEZ o Taxation charge 753 766

8 BRTFEEEERFTER

8 DONATIONS TO THE TRUST AND THE EQUINE

oo
MEESE FOUNDATION
EE in HK$ million 2022 2021
BIBTFEEESNRIE Donations to the Trust 4,952 5,101
BIETFETEAARESHRIE Donation to the Equine Foundation - 600
4,952 5,701
HRENTE Present value impact (12) 7
4,940 5,708
9 BIRK 9 STAFF COSTS
BHEBET in HK$ million 2022 2021
e REARAR Salaries and other costs 6,023 5,325
REMFKETE Defined contribution plan
RIKE A Pension costs 117 114
MBS AR Contributions to MPF scheme 124 120
REBAFE — BIKEHKA (HiFE24) The Scheme - pension costs (note 24) 84 98
6,348 5,657
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

EETH
BEBREM IRER EREEE
BF Plant and Projects in Right-of-use w
BEBT in HK$ million Buildings equipment progress Assets Total
202171 BRAE Cost at 1 July 2021 7,731 22,292 1,287 4,104 35,414
BE Additions 5 436 1,689 26 2,156
B Transfers 28 475 (503) - -
FHEBRRENE Transfer from investment properties,
net 2 - - 6 8
HERFH Disposals and write-offs - (228) - (60) (288)
EMHIBER Currency translation differences (21) (100) (11) (36) (168)
2022F 6 A30 H A AME Cost at 30 June 2022 7,745 22,875 2,462 4,040 37,122
2021 7H1BEEMERRE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2021 (3,933) (15,998) - (1,329) (21,260)
AEERE Depreciation for the year (201) (1,541) - (191) (1,933)
NEERE Impairment for the year - 2 - - ()
FEBEAREME Transfer from investment properties,
net (2) - - (6) (8)
HERFH Disposals and write-offs - 224 - 55 279
EMHRER Currency translation differences 2 38 - 6 46
20225630 EB/IMNERME  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2022 (4,134) (17,279) - (1,465) (22,878)
2022%F 6 A30HREFE Net book value at 30 June 2022 3,611 5,596 2,462 2,575 14,244
20207 A1 B AE Cost at 1 July 2020 6,319 20,795 3,240 3,981 34,335
BE Additions 10 551 900 77 1,538
B Transfers 1,362 1,492 (2,854) - -
HERTH Disposals and write-offs (31) (884) - (83) (998)
EREBER Currency translation differences 71 338 1 129 539
202156 A30 B AE Cost at 30 June 2021 7,731 22,292 1,287 4,104 35,414
20207 H1BEBEINERREE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2020 (3,778) (15,285) - (1,215) (20,278)
TEERE Depreciation for the year (182) (1,507) - (188) (1,877)
HERTH Disposals and write-offs 31 881 - 83 995
EMHRER Currency translation differences (4) (87) - 9) (100)
202156 H30H EBIMNERME  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2021 (3,933) (15,998) - (1,329) (21,260)
20216 A30HREMFE Net book value at 30 June 2021 3,798 6,294 1,287 2,775 14,154

41



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAREER AR ML

11 REYWE

11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
7R1BHAE Cost at 1 July 124 124
FEBTYE RERSEM Transfer to property, plant and equipment, net (8) -
6 A30 A AE Cost at 30 June 116 124
7TH1BEBIE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (105) (104)
AEEHFE Depreciation for the year (1) (1)
FEBTE  RBRBEM Transfer to property, plant and equipment, net 8 -
6 H30H EEIE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (98) (105)
6 B30 HEREFE Net book value at 30 June 18 19

EEMREYECDN2022F6 A30HK2021F6 830
B> ABYEEGEMPEHTERITETENMG
B FIBEREVENRES  BRBISHEENE -
RERPR  REVENQIFEEBSE400EET
(20214 : 8184,300E87T) °

REVENLFEE  ERBECERBETHELRY
ENRG  EREBEEBGTEFELTME - 1 T
DMEME UEREESZHIEAENAFLEEY
2o UFHACEERAMENREERRRE MR
BEEFEDIFLER -

RBIBHMERERNTABRRAZE  REFTRA
B -HERTARBZERZZAENEFTIRTESE
%o

SENBRRREREHERNBHRBERELCELEE
B BRAATEEFERINEAREDL -

FARANGERDLEZE -

HZE2022F6 308 L2021 6 A30 R L MEE
B ZEAFEENELD AR EEEE -
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The Club’s investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 by an
independent professional valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Limited. The investment properties
are Level 3 commercial properties located in Hong Kong. The fair value of the investment
properties was HK$804 million (2021: HK$843 million) at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of investment properties were assessed using the direct comparison method
whereby comparisons based on transactions on actual sales of comparable properties
have been made. Comparable properties with a similar character, location, size, etc are
analysed and carefully weighted against all respective advantages and disadvantages of the
properties in order to arrive at a fair comparison of values.

For Level 3 properties, the most significant unobservable input is market unit rate, taking
account of location, size and pedestrian flow, etc.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

There were no transfers of investment properties among the three levels of fair value
hierarchy classifications for the years ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021.



12 EREE

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EETH
B IRER
Computer  Projects in #azE
BEBT in HK$ million software progress Total
20215781 ARAE Cost at 1 July 2021 2,570 1,302 3,872
7nE Additions 146 778 924
[ Transfers 433 (433) -
20226 A 30 H R AE Cost at 30 June 2022 3,149 1,647 4,796
20216751 0 RiEH#E Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2021 (831) - (831)
REEHEH Amortisation for the year (465) - (465)
2022F6 A30 0 Ri&# Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2022 (1,296) - (1,296)
2022%6 530 HERMEFE Net book value at 30 June 2022 1,853 1,647 3,500
202047 A1 B HAME Cost at 1 July 2020 1,937 1,076 3,013
BE Additions 173 686 859
LEE Transfers 460 (460) -
202156 A30 B AE Cost at 30 June 2021 2,570 1,302 3,872
20207 A1 H RE#HH Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2020 (467) - (467)
AN Amortisation for the year (364) - (364)
20216 B30 H 2B #H Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2021 (831) - (831)
2021%6 B30 HEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2021 1,739 1,302 3,041
13 ¥ akRE 13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
A2022F6 A30BEE ARFEBUT Details of joint ventures as of 30 June 2022 are as follows:
EEMD FMELER EERARCHR R
BREE Place of business/country FEEK Authorised and FELR
Name of entity of incorporation Principal activities paid up capital Measurement
T RFEREEERMNERAR FEARZFE The People’s RMBIERIE « FlTE ARM2ET20E T % Equity
China Sports Lottery Republic of China Ik EmEERZARE Renminbi (“RMB”)
HKJClInfotech (Beijing) Co., Provision of computer 200.2 million
Ltd*(“BJ CJV”) technology, technical
training and business
information
consultancy
HKJC Investment Trust Fund BIEAE The Cayman Islands REREREKFS TEHA n/a e Equity

202256308 K%2021FE6 830 - EEIFELR
PRV EERMARLTNESEREZEH90% - B
2022 [ 20214 » EEFTLt P EBEEERME

RATHIRER40% °

FFBRREXE

Investment in equities
and debt securities

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, the ownership interest of the Group in BJ CJV was
90%. The Group shared 40% of the results of BJ CJV in 2022 and 2021.

* Unofficial English name
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13 EERRIRE (&) 13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)
MR6A30R £ - EERHEEHEREInvestment  The effective percentages directly held by the Group, the Club and its related entities in the
TrustEEFENERBE LT ¢ Investment Trust as of 30 June were as follows:
2022 2021
EREEE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 42.2% 42.1%
EREEGREETES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 54.5% 54.6%
ERESEETRINENE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 2.6% 2.6%
ERESEFELEANARRELERAR The Hong Kong Jockey Club Equine Welfare Research
Foundation Limited 0.7% 0.7%
100.0% 100.0%
BEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
7H1H At 1 July 28,534 26,181
xE Injection 3,729 2,203
B[ Redemption (4,093) (4,891)
Pl (B518), %R Share of (losses)/profits (2,682) 4,999
ERARAESRE Transfer from Contingency Fund investments - 13
EMGIRELE Currency translation differences (8) 29
6 H30H At 30 June 25,480 28,534
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

A summary of financial information of joint ventures as of 30 June is as follows:

2022
T ERPERYEERMARAR Fok]
BJ CJV Investment Trust Total
SEEE £ERE £EBRHE
MERER HERER MERER
Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective
HEAT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
Wi/ (B8 Income/(loss) 176 70 (6,287) (2,595) (6,111) (2,525)
X Expenses (172) (69) (212) (90) (384) (159)
e Depreciation (5) @ - - (5) @
S ez Interest income 11 5 - - 1 5
HE Taxation (3) (1) - - 3) 1)
BHERE (F8B) Surplus/(deficit) after taxation 7 3 (6,499) (2,685) (6,492) (2,682)
2\ /(FR) 48 Total comprehensive income/(loss) 7 3 (6,499) (2,685) (6,492) (2,682)
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - REREN Property, plant and equipment 32 21 - - 32 21
By EE Intangible assets 3 2 - - 3 2
EEREEE Deferred tax assets 6 4 - - 6 4
RITER Bank Deposits 263 176 - - 263 176
BEATEEEBBRIRNIBER Fair value through profit or loss
RE Equities
HERLM Listed in Hong Kong - - 3,047 1,222 3,047 1,222
TEEHLED Listed overseas - - 18,566 7,487 18,566 7,487
BEES Debt securities
i) Listed - - 21,954 9,401 21,954 9,401
FEm Unlisted - - 13,922 6,108 13,922 6,108
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 440 191 440 191
RBEE Current assets
HittRBEE Other current asset 7 47 2,129 930 2,200 977
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 883 380 883 380
REER Short-term deposits 107 72 - - 107 72
ReRASEEN Cash and cash equivalents 73 49 448 185 521 234
hBEESE Total current assets 251 168 3,460 1,495 3,711 1,663
REBEE Current liabilities
85 R EMEMRRABE RS Trade and other payables and receipts
in advance (64) (43) (680) (293) (744) (336)
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (291) (125) (291) (125)
nBHKAELE Total current financial liabilities
(FEEESREMEARRA (excluding trade and other payables
BlFE) and receipts in advance) - - (291) (125) (291) (125)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
HitEA IR Other payables (55) (37) - - (55) 37)
fTESMIE Derivative financial instruments - - (688) (297) (688) (297)
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e
13 ¥ aERE (&) 13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)
2021
TEPBRYERREMERAR ok
BJ CJV Investment Trust Total
£BEE KEBEE £BEE
MERER MERER MEBRER
Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
Wg Income 215 86 12,271 5,130 12,486 5,216
S Expenses (225) (90) (304) (129) (529) (219)
e Depreciation (6) &) - - (6) ®)
FE W Interest income 10 4 - - 10 4
BiE Taxation 1 1 - - 1 1
BE% (BR)/ B (Deficit)/surplus after taxation (5) ) 11,967 5,001 11,962 4,999
20 (FR)/ WHEE Total comprehensive (loss)/income (5) @ 11,967 5,001 11,962 4,999
FRBEE Non-current assets
WE - REREM Property, plant and equipment 39 26 - - 39 26
EBREE Intangible assets 4 - - 5 4
EEHEEE Deferred tax assets 4 - - 5 4
RITER Bank Deposits 61 4 - - 61 4
BAVEEZBERIIENIKEE Fair value through profit or loss
RE Equities
ERBLD Listed in Hong Kong - - 2,714 1,093 2,714 1,093
ERMET Listed overseas - - 27,059 10,894 27,059 10,894
BEHES Debt securities
i) Listed - - 25,701 11,052 25,701 11,052
¥Em Unlisted - - 13,582 6,011 13,582 6,011
fTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 238 104 238 104
RBEE Current assets
HitRhB&E Other current asset 109 73 236 124 345 197
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 298 128 298 128
REER Short-term deposits 276 186 - - 276 186
BeRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 81 54 957 424 1,038 478
RBEELE Total current assets 466 313 1,491 676 1,957 989
)=V Current liabilities
B 5 Rk EMEMRRAA KRS Trade and other payables and receipts
in advance (84) (57) (3,246) (1,408) (3,330) (1,465)
fTEERMIE Derivative financial instruments - - (163) (71) (163) (71)
mEEHEELE Total current financial liabilities
(TEEESREMEMRAABKRFEE) (excluding trade and other payables
and receipts in advance) - - (163) (71) (163) (71)
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
HiER IR Other payables (52) (35) - - (52) (35)
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (258) (113) (258) (113)
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13 A¥RQAIRKRE (&)

&% AT Investment TrustFTiFEEES  REMEFE
HERFIZES.48% (2021F : 2.78%) o ZZEMEFH
HPRBIB5F (20215  65F)

13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

Debt securities carried weighted average of the effective interest rates of 5.48% (2021:
2.78%) for the joint venture under the Investment Trust. The weighted average of the

maturities was 5 years (2021: 6 years).

2022 2021
BTREUTIEHTE : Underlying investments were denominated in the following
currencies:
Ep United States Dollars (“USD”) 81% 82%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 3% 4%
AR Renminbi (“RMB”) 3% 2%
B Euro (“EUR?) 2% 3%
EE Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 1% 2%
s ERR Swiss Franc (“CHF”) 1% 2%
Hih B Other currencies 9% 5%
100% 100%
14 EEELRE 14 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS
BEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
IERBEE Non-current assets
SERKRE-FLm Alternative investments — unlisted 16,278 13,988
RBEE Current assets
BEBES kL™ Debt securities — unlisted - 341
20215 » BREENMETLSERA379H ° In 2021, the weighted average of the maturities of the debt securities was 379 days.
2022 2021
ERAESREUATIERITE : Contingency Fund investments were denominated in the
following currencies:
ESp usD 99% 99%
Bz EUR 1% 1%
100% 100%
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15 RERITESMTA

15 INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES

BEBT in HK$ million 2022 2021
ERBEE Non-current assets

FERE-FLWm Alternative investments — unlisted 2,079 1,894
REBEE Current assets

TESRMIT A Derivative financial instruments

- REMNEEH - Foreign exchange forward contracts 1 1

RERTTESMTAUETINE -

16 REEH

EENREBIEZZ EInvestment TrustAAYIRE » LA
AFEEHNE  BERERRERVER  MPBE
EANATEESSHCEEZP R - Bt ZER
EESRERATBRHTE -

SRTERFABRAKE » RELEENBERKEA
ZHTERNESN  RERFAEEEHEERRES
L RITEAEBNBEEBHE  SIRHEEREN
2E - BERHEBERTELERESEHEER b
REERRFAERE REREFERRAIEET
e EMBERAKCT EEMEREHFZHAERERITH
RREEE  BNRAMBEERESRERIE7{/E2,500
BT (20214 : & W#=881%2,30088 L) °

17 RHEIFANRIE

RPBANTEEIERFRSENEER -
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Investments and derivatives were denominated in USD.

16 INVESTMENT RETURNS

The Group’s investments, including those included in the Investment Trust, were measured
at fair value, including differences not yet realised as at year-end, and changes in fair value
during the financial year were reflected in profit and loss. As such, they are susceptible to
volatility in capital markets.

During the year, financial markets were extremely volatile as inflation in developed
economies reached multi-decade highs prompting central banks who were slow to
normalise monetary conditions to have to become aggressive in tightening leading to
recessionary concerns. The war in Ukraine and economic slowdown in China further
complicated macroeconomic and geopolitical developments. Equities and bonds suffered
significant declines and fell in tandem. Amid market risks, the Group maintained a relatively
conservative risk profile for its investments but nonetheless recorded an investment loss of
HK$725 million in the current financial year (2021: gain of HK$8,823 million).

17 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Long-term prepayments mainly included input value added tax to be deducted.



18 ELEFEHREE (AE) 18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

FRTEFEEE —BHBBEARNIKEEERNIELZRE  The movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the year, without taking into

BEE (8fF) 28T

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as follows:

BERIK  IRAE
BB BREE

Employee Accelerated

retirement depreciation Hith 4z
BEBT In HK$ million benefit cost allowances Others Total
202147818 At 1 July 2021 ©) (806) 10 (805)
BA(H8) WaEk Credited/(charged) to income
statement 12 (59) 32 (15)
NBHEMb2ERE Charged to other comprehensive
income (32) - - (32)
202246830 H At 30 June 2022 (29) (865) 42 (852)
20207810 At 1 July 2020 82 (721) ) (646)
A (8) WaEk Credited/(charged) to income
statement 11 (85) 17 (57)
NeHEM2milsE Charged to other comprehensive
income (102) - - (102)
2021468300 At 30 June 2021 ©) (806) 10 (805)

19 BFZRHEAMEBWRIEEHA
RBEE
19.1 B R EMEKKIE

BERAEMEWFRIERES6% (2021F : 85%) A
TEE  HBRUEMERITE - EZ REMEBNRIE
HAREEEERE AT EERS -

19.2 HRBEE

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
19.1 Trade and other receivables

86% of trade and other receivables was denominated in HKD (2021: 85%). The rest of the
balances were denominated in other currencies. The carrying amounts of trade and other

receivables approximated their fair values.

19.2 Other current assets

BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
7E Inventories 357 269
FEFFRIE Prepayments 244 195

601 464
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20 EMFERERESRASEE
)
20.1 BHIER

EERMEENERNMEFHIERINERE2.26%
(20214 : 1.04%) ~ KEFAFERERNREEER

20 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
20.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average of the effective interest rates on short-term deposits was 2.26% for
the Group (2021: 1.04%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their

HAVEEMEE  MEMEFIHRH2138 (2021 fair values and the weighted average of the maturities was 213 days for the Group (2021:
£ :16208) ° 162 days).
2022 2021
SHIFERUT SIS Short-term deposits were denominated in the following
currencies:
AR# RMB 63% 33%
BT HKD 37% 59%
EpH usD - 8%
100% 100%

202 BERBREEEY

SEMFAHAA=ERUTWFERNNETLIER
FZEE1.14% (20214 : 0.38%) - EEFFIEERMEE
AEEREEAFEEESE  mEMNEF9HRA60A8
(20214 : 59R)

20.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average of the effective interest rates on deposits with maturities of less than
three months was 1.14% for the Group (2021: 0.38%). The carrying amounts of deposits
approximated their fair values and the weighted average of the maturities was 60 days for
the Group (2021: 59 days).

2022 2021
FNEAABSEAUATHERUTIERINE : Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
BT HKD 48% 61%
ES uUSsD 47% 30%
AR RMB 5% 9%
100% 100%

202256 A30R ' £EHE THEQBEABER
MIRITFORFERERAEESEYRESRS,60088
7T (20215 : 6260088 T) » UARBHFE - AX
HEISNEEFRE o
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As at 30 June 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$656 million
(2021: HK$606 million) denominated in RMB, which were held by certain subsidiaries with
bank accounts operating in the Mainland where exchange controls apply.



21 HEHIEX
KM ERBENEFNERS.85% (20214 : FEHEF
ZENF3.85%E84.17% 2EHRE) o

EHERUARETE -

20215 ERFEZHAB1008E T °

22 EBEZREMENIRR

EEREMENERERERE  QRETESFEEFEER
N EAFR33EB T (20214 : 34EB )  AEFIE
BREHRAKREANERREDS S (KFEE30.2) 5 K(b)
£E25/E5,800 BB THEREIRFER (202145 : 26
1,0008%8 ) - BEERFERHEGELRESRES
ZEYRESHERAERDRENEEEESHHE -
EoREMEMRRMESNENRAEEEE QAT
BEEAE SENEZREMESIRIMETRE
o B87% (20214 1 89%) LUBTINE » HERLLH
fhEHEITE o

23 FEWFIE

202156 8300 % 20206 B30 A NBWFIE » &
BlE4fE2,500E BT R3E7,40088 T EENED
D RIAE E2022F6 A30H K% 2021F6 A30H LM 1{@E
EEFIBWA -

21 SHORT-TERM LOANS

Unsecured loans were subject to interest rates at 3.85% per annum (2021: floating interest
rates between 3.85% and 4.17% per annum).

Short-term loans were denominated in RMB.

In 2021, the loan interest expense incurred was HK$1 million.

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables included (a) the remaining balance of the annual donations to
the Trust amounting to HK$3,300 million (2021: HK$3,400 million), which will be gradually
settled within six months after the end of the reporting period (note 30.2); and (b) customer
account deposits for the Group of HK$2,558 million (2021: HK$2,619 million). The customer
account deposits were offset by an equivalent amount of customer funds held which were
included in cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits. The carrying amounts of
trade and other payables and accruals approximated their fair value. 87% of trade and other
payables and accruals were denominated in HKD for the Group (2021: 89%) with the rest of
the balances being denominated in other currencies.

23 RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

HK$425 million and HK$374 million recorded in receipts in advance as at 30 June 2021 and
30 June 2020 were recognised as revenue during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 30
June 2021 respectively.
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24 RERAGTE

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
EREUBRARACERNEBRE Pension (assets)/liabilities of the Group’s Scheme recognised
BRI EERKE (BE)BBUOT : in the consolidated statement of financial position which
were determined as follows:
SEEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,268) (2,552)
FREEENERE Present value of obligation 1,989 2,381
REMBIRRERMIIRKS (BE) BEFHE Net pension (assets)/liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position (279) 171)
REBANFEFMAESESINHREHEREOT @ Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation was as follows:
7A1H At 1 July 2,381 2,739
e & HRE IR KRR R AR Current service cost net of employee contributions 85 97
R B AR A Interest cost 18 8
BEFEE Remeasurement:
- REBEREHSIHNEE (KF) HiE - Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience (25) (90)
- RO B BRBEEB I BRWEE (KFH),Bia - Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions (207) (71)
BEREZFHEA Actual benefits paid (263) (302)
6 B30 B FTAEEEMERE Present value of obligation at 30 June 1,989 2,381
FARFEEELAFEEEZSHNOT : The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets of
the year was as follows:
7A1H At 1 July 2,552 2,367
B2 = Interest income 19 7
BEFEE Remeasurement:
—FrEIEENER (K)  SRITER - Return on Scheme assets (less)/greater than discount rate (40) 460
EEHK Employer contributions - 20
2 FHER Benefits paid (263) (302)
BBl EERANTRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets - -
6H30AMEEIEEATFER Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,268 2,552
BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
ERRRPEEIZWRELDT ¢ The amounts recognised in the income statement
were as follows:
IR B AR 75 B AN Current service cost 85 97
RERBANEE ABEFHENFAE (KF) HE Net interest (income)/cost on net defined benefit
assets/liabilities (1) 1
B EIEERANITHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets - -
84 98

52




24 RERAFE ()

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

BEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
ErERRRERNEFAEZENT Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement

of comprehensive income were as follows:
HEBELHREH I BNBEE (KEF) B8 Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience (25) (90)
HO K BRELES I BNEE (kE) Hi8 Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions (207) (71)
HREENBERHE (hR) A Actuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities arising during period (232) (161)
STEEENERE (B) RITEE Return on Scheme assets less/(greater) than discount rate 40 (460)
ER2EREREANENTESE Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income (192) (621)
BEBT in HK$ million 2022 2021
EWREREINAEEFAR (HE 9) Defined benefit cost recognised in income statement (note 9) 84 98
E2ENRREANENTESE Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income (192) (621)
RERH (W) /R Defined benefit (income)/cost (108) (523)

(a) RIE &Rt B9 % B K 16 B8 /2L B 4t

REBAFEURENRLF S  RUEERK - 5
W GRNEBENREFHAERSE - aHEREM
—EBWENE - REBFETERRNTABNE
8 - RERAFEARE —EETLHRY - LRB (R
SRR EURGD) R EEM - £ CRFMEATRETE
(B2) BRDMRETHRAERBHRRITE - FERS
HAERAINE—EE -

REFATEANFECSIRONEBRER  EETHA
REGBNFEMNES (WA)  URBRAEEANERB
EMMEZ O REAREEINMER - At HESE
ZERIZE1958(2011)FEABRFIEMNEE LREEE (B
BEKEREREZED) RBEF4EFMENRRES
R T EAREEEFTE - AEEFTEHE
LHBEERE (2N BERAFIEE  ZAFAE
EERERBFTENGETEA ©

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump-sum benefits based on a
multiple of a member’s final salary and years of service upon the member’s retirement,
death, disability or leaving service. The Scheme has been closed to new employees. The
Scheme was established under a trust arrangement. It is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO0”), and is an exempted scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (Exemption) Regulation. The Club is the sole employer
participating in the Scheme.

Based on the relevant clauses of the Trust Deed of the Scheme, the Club may utilise the
surplus of the Scheme, if any, to reduce future employer contributions as recommended by
the Scheme’s actuary. As a result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011)
and the minimum funding requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the
Scheme. The Scheme is administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
which acts as the trustee to the Scheme.
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24 RERAFE ()
(a) REEFIH BN 1 2 R IEBIEAB AL ()
BRRFEENHBMARSHIERRAT ;

() BRERK

ERECBRY  REBAABEENLIFEESS
2 #MSTURERBNEERE EEFEFEN
REBANFIHBEMRREARE - EREDMIER
HREER  AESUBRRES -

RERANFIHEERENEEBEZHRARIENE
MEZTEREAS  BERE TEESZRRE MU
REHES - ZRENEERRIRBED M - BBD
BARAERAFIIRENEERRE -

(i) =@k

RERANFEMALEEIRBERARSTSEHE
AER URRARFHE ZEZFDHRETE  RER
Rt BT REEESELEM -

(iii) FrE& B

HRRAEEMNTENEANEF SN - FTUARERR
SPEFAREEN2REERRNGEHE - 5FHE
MEREHAS  REBAEMRESESHEE
i e

(b) AT HE FB AR B Rl 2 19 B E

WiEE24(a) P - AR EBEETERE1955(2011)5
CARFIHEMEE LRRER (AR BHRERBES
D)RBEUSHFEANREESER  GTEARR
ERAETE > FrUBEBEE R MERNKEERNER -

(c) REBFBIEEHNEH

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks (cont.)

The Scheme typically exposes the Club to the following key risks:

(i) Investment risk

Strong investment returns tend to increase the fair value of the Scheme’s assets and
therefore improve the Scheme’s financial position as measured by the net defined benefit
liability/asset, whilst poor or negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The Scheme’s assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities, fixed income
securities and cash, and hedge funds, covering major geographical locations around the
world. The diversification among asset classes and geographical locations helps to reduce
the concentration of risk associated with the Scheme’s investments.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The DBO is calculated using a discount rate based on market yields of government
securities. A decrease in the bond yields will increase the DBO.

(iii) Salary risk

The DBO is calculated with reference to the future salaries of members because the
Scheme’s benefits are salary-related. Salary increases that are higher than expected will
increase the DBO.

(b) Determination of economic benefit available

As mentioned in note 24(a), determination of economic benefit available is not required
because the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding
requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

(c) Scheme asset information

BHEETT in HK$ million 2022 2021
STEIEERE Scheme assets were comprised as follows:
BRE Equities 286 13% 996 39%
EEERFRERES Fixed income securities and cash 1,330 58% 813 31%
HHES Hedge funds 657 29% 765 30%
2,273 100% 2,574 100%

REENHERARKEEEAE
R -

EEMHEEE

54

The long-term strategic asset allocations of the Scheme are set and reviewed by the Club
on a regular basis.



24 HRERFGE (F)
(d) EABHERR BB S

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis

ERBEBRMOT : The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2022 2021
FR=E Discount rate 2.7% 0.8%
REFSERLE Long-term salary increase rate 3.5% 3.5%
20225 6H308 @ HEIRWELF TE0.25% * £ At 30 June 2022, if the discount rate had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables

Htm AW 2EZGESTE2NERT - RERA
BIFARESENDTEER  $EHRRL EN1.1%
}1.2% (20215 : 7 HI1%H1.3%K1.4%) °

R2022F6H300 » ERBFE LH  TH0.25%
EHMFAETEREYESTENERLT  REEN
STEFFAESENAFER BB M B
1.4%1%1.4% (20214 : DBIB1.6%%1.5%) ©

(e) B ZHRBF I HA

BRRAHSERAE (RRRTHRAERKEFR S
THERBITHRAS) LEREM - RIBAEHRE - REH
HADREEXRFEUEENA D LEAHE - FERMH
RAEZER(BERK BRI WRE - LS REFT
LEEMFHESHEMERE -

(f) Bt
SEEFT 2023 F HAFEHEMAR (2022F : #) -

(9) REEF st BT R EE A ERER

RERAG B AR EEN202256 B30 A MET
HHIR AR5 (202146 1 55) o

held constant, the fair value of the DBO would have decreased/increased by 1.1% and 1.2%
respectively (2021: 1.3% and 1.4% respectively).

At 30 June 2022, if long-term salaries had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables
held constant, the fair value of the DBO would have increased/decreased by 1.4% and 1.4%
respectively (2021: 1.6% and 1.5% respectively).

(e) Description of funding arrangements and policies

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Club and the members (existing Executives of
the Executive Sub-Scheme only). Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage
of basic salary as stipulated by the Rules of the Scheme. The Club’s contributions are
determined with reference to the funding valuation carried out by the Scheme’s actuary in
accordance with the ORSO requirements.

(f) Expected contributions

No contribution is expected from the Group for the year 2023 (2022: nil).

(g) Maturity profile of DBO

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2022 was 5 years (2021: 5 years).
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25 f#fE

25 RESERVES
REMRE  ERHE

Accumulated Exchange #azE
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
202147818 At 1 July 2021 24,211 61 24,272
MBI B A FEEEE Net deficit after taxation (157) - (157)
ERRERES Transfer from Contingency Fund 409 - 409
EMNBRERS Currency translation differences - (77) (77)
MREBENEBEEANEENENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefits
obligations, net of tax 160 - 160
2022%6H30H At 30 June 2022 24,623 (16) 24,607
2020457818 At 1 July 2020 22,360 (199) 22,161
MRELENFRERE Net surplus after taxation 8,632 - 8,632
ERTHRAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (7,300) - (7,300)
EMHBELRE Currency translation differences - 260 260
BB ENEBERNEBNENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefits
obligations, net of tax 519 - 519
202146 A30H At 30 June 2021 24,211 61 24,272

REABARBNENRE  SEEASEEARKER
BREFAENRDI0%BAEERRKLAES  BEE
OB ENERESZMEARNS0% HBIE o« EERER
AEEKEHRERMER  TAUEBREE - 1B
MEARIEFTHET -

R2022566A30H - EERBBRABEEAR7,3008E T
(20214 : 7,1008#E ) °

26 HEHES

The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from Mainland entities, as
reported, to the statutory reserve fund in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the Mainland until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of its registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be used upon approval by the relevant authority

to offset against accumulated losses, to increase capital or to expand the business.

As at 30 June 2022 the statutory reserve fund was HK$73 million (2021: HK$71 million).

26 CONTINGENCY FUND

BEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
7HR1H At 1 July 37,747 30,447
= (F), BR#E Transfer (to)/from reserve (409) 7,300
6 H30H At 30 June 37,338 37,747
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27 ZEBREREXRMETE

27.1 HIRBIHEA N BEREE EFZE T

27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

27.1 Reconciliation of surplus before taxation to net cash

EENERSHIER generated from operations

BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
MR IEAT R R Surplus before taxation 596 9,398
b & ATER CEF) Share of losses/(profits) of joint ventures 2,682 (4,999)
BHREEFRE Net gains on financial assets (1,823) (3,739)
B Y Interest income (137) (85)
FEXZH Interest expense 5 8
HENE  RERBMHERE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 3
W RERSBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,933 1,877
REMERE Depreciation of investment properties 1 1
B EEEE Amortisation of intangible assets 465 364
WE - RERSBMRE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 2 -
HEESEH Movement in working capital

& (Egm),m> (Increase)/decrease in inventories (88) 44

E 5 Rk HAbEUGRIEIE N Increase in trade and other receivables (71) (122)

FEATFRIEIE hN Increase in prepayments (49) (36)

BHREMMENIR CRiL), /18 (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (707) 1,951

FEURFRIE GRiA ),/ 52 hn (Decrease)/increase in receipts in advance (15) 104
REATE T F0IE K AR U SR IE I N Increase in long-term prepayments and receivables (6) (18)
RERAIGER D Decrease in defined benefit scheme 84 78
Hth e BRFOR 2 Decrease in other payables (185) (737)
EETBRELENERES Cash generated from operations 2,689 4,092
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27 HEBRETRERME (&)

27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)

272 METHEENEEYHE 27.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
fTESmMI A
BHEAEF  Derivative HEBE
Short-term financial Lease Fb

BHEBT in HK$ million loans instruments liabilities Total
20217 81A As of 1 July 2021 24 (1) 285 308
BeheE Cash flows

BERETERL Outflow from financing activities (24) - (99) (123)
FEESEH Non-cash changes

FRZHFHELY New leases entered during the year - - 24 24

HEEEFIE Interest on lease liabilities - - 5 5

SNEE 5 s B Foreign exchange movement - - (3) (3)

Hith Others - - (5) (5)
202246830 B As of 30 June 2022 - (1) 207 206
A2020F7H81H As of 1 July 2020 33 3 300 336
RBeERE Cash flows

BERETERL Outflow from financing activities (12) - (110) (122)
FREEH Non-cash changes

FRFTZANFHHEL New leases entered during the year - - 77 77

HESBRNE Interest on lease liabilities - - 6 6

HNEE AR B Foreign exchange movement 3 - 12 15

N EEEE Fair value changes - (4) - 4)
7A2021%F6H30A As of 30 June 2021 24 (1) 285 308

28 ERKIE
REWBPR BT VAN EBRELEEFNEARATHE
28fZ400&E 8B T (20214 : 18126,400B8T) °

29 BTRKERNEE
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28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for at the end of the reporting period
amounted to HK$2,804 million (2021: HK$1,864 million).

29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members
of both schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent
trustees. The Group also participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two
independent service providers.
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
(“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) and its wholly owned subsidiary Tai
Kwun Culture and Arts Company Limited, as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees
of the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS. The Club is also related to the Equine
Foundation as the Club is the sole member of this company.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with joint ventures and related
parties, except for those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements:

30.1 Management expenses

During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$241 million (2021:
HK$217 million) to the Trust for the provision of administrative and support services.

30.2 Payable to the Trust

At the end of the reporting period, the amount payable to the Trust was HK$4,331 million
(2021: HK$5,044 million), which was interest-free and unsecured. The balance mainly
included (a) the remaining balance of the annual donations to the Trust amounting to
HK$3,300 million (2021: HK$3,400 million), which will be gradually settled within six months
after the end of the reporting period (note 22); and (b) HK$1,027 million (2021: HK$1,650
million) for the donation from the Trust to the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
(“WKCDA”) for the construction of the Hong Kong Palace Museum, which will be settled
based on payments by the Trust to the WKCDA on a back-to-back basis according to
mutual agreement with the Trust. Out of the payable to the Trust, HK$476 million (2021:
HK$640 million) was classified as a non-current liability as this amount was not repayable
within the next 12 months, whereas the remaining balance was classified as a current
liability.

30.3 Donation to KSCGC

The Group provided HK$13.1 million (2021: HK$21.2 million) to KSCGC to support its
COVID-19 measures.

30.4 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a
Board of Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of
the Group and its funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects
of the Group. The Board of Management is responsible for the operational management of
the Group and is overseen by the Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other
major institutions in Hong Kong, key management, consisting of the Board of Stewards and
the Board of Management which comprises the Chief Executive Officer and nine Executive
Directors (2021: nine), are detailed in the Board of Management section of the report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year

under review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any
transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business.
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)
30.4 Key management compensation (cont.)

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation

Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in
kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation

This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the
performance of the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu
of retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in
lieu of retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding
the contractual entitlement and date of payment.

The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:

BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
HEAME Basic compensation 83 74
HRIRH MO S Performance-related compensation 62 59
RGBT Retirement benefits 19 22
164 155
FMERMT The remuneration fell in the following bands:
AE Number of individuals 2022 2021
AR Bl Remuneration bands

5,000,001;& T E6,000,000% T
6,000,001;& T E7,000,000% T
7,000,001 8T E8,000,0008 5T
8,000,001;& 7t £9,000,0005% T
9,000,001 &t E10,000,0007% 7T
10,000,001t £ 11,000,000 7T
11,000,001 7% 7t £ 12,000,000 5T
12,000,001 % 7t £ 13,000,000 7T
13,000,001 % 7T £ 14,000,000 7T
16,000,001 T £ 17,000,000 5T
20,000,0013& 7t £21,000,000% 7T
41,000,0013& ;T £42,000,000 % 7T

RIEEEIEEZEES AR
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HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 - 1

HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 1 -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 1 -
HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 1 -
HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 - 1
HK$10,000,001 to HK$11,000,000 3 3
HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 2 1
HK$12,000,001 to HK$13,000,000 1 1
HK$13,000,001 to HK$14,000,000 1 2
HK$16,000,001 to HK$17,000,000 - 1
HK$20,000,001 to HK$21,000,000 1 -
HK$41,000,001 to HK$42,000,000 1 1
12 11

Individuals who ceased to be members of the Board of
Management 2 1
10 10
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
31.1Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities, including financial instruments recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position (“directly held financial instruments”) and
investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group’s
overall risk management strategy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The
Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Club’s Investment Office and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Club’s Investment Office under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Investment Committee. Investment
constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions
and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund with the aim of
managing investment risk.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates
relating to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The
HKD is pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered minimal.
The majority of RMB holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core
operational requirements in the Mainland. The remaining currency exposure arises from
globally diversified investments in equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major
currencies had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/
decreased as follows:

2022 2021

FRBRBE FRKRBE

B ER B R

#m,/ (Rd) #im,/ Gid)

BEEBETS Increase/ EEMIZTI Increase/

BALMIEE (decrease) on HLLHIIEE (decrease) on

g E5 post-tax i E5 post-tax

If currency surplus and If currency surplus and

strengthened/ equity for strengthened/ equity for

BEBT in HK$ million weakened by the year weakened by the year

SEEE Held by the Group

AR RMB 5% 214/(214) 5% 140/(140)
Investment Trusti¥ & Held under the Investment Trust

583 EUR 5% 34/(34) 5% 51/(51)

AR RMB 5% 32/(32) 5% 31/(31)

HeE GBP 5% 18/(18) 5% 32/(32)
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)

(ii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in market prices. The Group is exposed
to market price risk as the value of its equity investments and alternative investments will
decline if market prices fall. These investments are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the consolidated statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices had been 5% higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s equity for the year would have increased/decreased by
HK$918 million (2021: HK$811 million) from directly held financial instruments and HK$435
million (2021: HK$599 million) from underlying financial instruments of the Investment Trust
as a result of changes in fair value of its financial instruments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This
can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash
flows of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group is exposed to both fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has
significant investments that are interest bearing.

If there had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus and equity would have been HK$59
million higher (2021: HK$61 million higher) from directly held financial instruments and
HK$240 million lower (2021: HK$283 million lower) from underlying financial instruments of
the Investment Trust.

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and by
investment benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-
HKD/USD/RMB exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s
Mainland operations is managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings
denominated in RMB. Price risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified
globally, by sectors and by securities. Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark
duration guidelines and by investing across a spectrum of fixed and floating-rate
instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations
as they fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a
price close to fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet
exceptional needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and
invests primarily in liquid financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting
the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that
all liabilities due and known funding requirements can be met.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the
Group and under the Investment Trust as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity
buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table
below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2022 2021
38R 38R 3f8R
3EAIUT UEE1E AT ULEE1E
Upto >3 month 1§ ek Upto >3 months 1§ A
AEAT in HK$ million 3 months to1year  Over1year Total 3 months to1year  Over1year Total
£EBEE Held by the Group
FITEMBEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BEEN Short-term loans - - - - 24 - - 24
ESREBERRR Trade and other payables 11,252 216 580 12,048 11,923 206 754 12,883
BERE Lease liabilities 19 56 140 215 2% 74 199 298
11,271 2712 720 12,263 11,972 280 953 13,205
Investment Trusti 8 Held under the Investment Trust
REIREELENTENEERE  Net-settled derivative financial liabilities 23 42 297 362 30 3 13 146

2022F6 308 * £E KInvestment TrustfriF
BNAFERPIMESN RS REEBELTER122E
4, 70088 7T (20214 1 112{82,400E8T) - TRE
202266 A30A K 2021F6 A30 B KK FRERIINE
EHRERS  BESABRBELEE  WIRHKT
EHEBHAE D BEBRAR - TRABENTES
EHURITRESHE  BEAUBRRRAINERE
EE (BHE) RE -

As at 30 June 2022, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts held by the Group and under the Investment Trust was HK$12,247 million
(2021: HK$11,224 million). The table below analyses the outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 that will be settled on a gross basis
into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows, which are different
from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

2022 2021
3fEA 3f8A
EAIMUT  HEE1E EAIUT  HLEE1F
Upto >3 months 1ERE &% Upto3 >3 months 18U L ot
AEAT in HK$ million 3 months to1year  Over1year Total months to1year  Over1year Total
SBEE Held by the Group
REMNESH Foreign exchange forward contracts
it Outflows (73) - - (73) (61) - - (61)
A Inflows 74 - - 74 62 - - 62
Investment Trust}$& Held under the Investment Trust
EBMESH Foreign exchange forward contracts
i Outflows (9,809) (2,360) (5) (12,174) (9,011) (2,141) (11) (11,163)
A Inflows 10,044 2,394 5 12,443 9,084 2,151 11 11,246
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able
or willing to perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets measured
at amortised costs (such as trade and other receivables, deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) fall due, or when alternative investments and contractual cash flows of debt
securities carried at FVTPL fall due.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting counterparties and
by diversification. Deposits and cash and cash equivalents are only placed with financial
institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk represents the carrying
amount of the financial assets recognised in its consolidated statements of financial position
less the amount of cash on hand as defined in note 2.7.

Management considered the lifetime expected loss of these receivables as being minimal as
at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021. The Group made no write-offs or provisions for these
receivables during the year.

31.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern in order to

— provide world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making contributions
in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and

— support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital, which is the same as the total equity shown in its
consolidated statement of financial position, to ensure an appropriate level of return is
made to the community in the form of donations through the Trust.

31.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value as
stated in note 2.7(a)(i) by recognising the following fair value measurement hierarchy based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and
liabilities, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow
analysis) in which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on
quotes from market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs.
The most significant input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of
alternative investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued
based on information derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from
respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that were measured at fair value as at 30 June. See note 11 for
disclosures of fair value measurement of the investment properties.

2022 2021
R Rl2 RAI3 &% RN o512 RRI3 a%
BEET in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE/(88) Assets/|liabilities)
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments
EBES Debt securities - - - - 341 - - 341
SERE Alternative investments - - 16,278 16,278 - - 13,988 13,988
RERMESRIE Investments and derivatives
RERE Alternative investments - - 2,079 2,079 - - 1,894 1,894
fTEeRMIA Derivative financial instruments - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1
- 1 18,357 18,358 341 1 15,882 16,224

SENBERREHERNBHARBERSLELEE
B BRATEEFERNINEAREL -

HZE2022F6 308 2202156 430 LMBEEE -
EEE=EQAFEETERD 2B EEE o

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among the three fair value hierarchy levels classifications for the
Group for the years ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the Group’s balance of assets and liabilities
measured at fair value based on Level 3 were as follows:

BEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
7H1H At 1 July 15,882 12,546
ERSERERNRSEEE Total gains recognised in income statement 1,939 3,415
BA Purchases 3,098 4,935
HE Sales (2,562) (5,014)
6HA30H At 30 June 18,357 15,882
FRFAWBERILIMERER Total gains for the year included in income statement and
fTEeRMI BERBRIKEHERE presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 1,939 3,415
FARERARSENEERBET ARSERIL Total gains for the year included in income statement for
FMERERITE SR T AERBINRETE assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
and presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 1,287 2,562

(c) R2022%6 530 H K2021 %6 H30H ' :1&
REI20 89 2 FEE B EF B EE TR &
ABEMT :

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements
within Level 2 as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 were as follows:

kil fHERIS BRBAZH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
BREE i
Financial assets/liabilities

EHMESLD MRASRE AERER

Foreign exchange forward contracts
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31 MBEARER (&)
31.3 P EEME (F)

(d) H2022%6 530 K2021 %6 H530H ' :1&
REIBAHI A FEERFEFNEAXELEE

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3 as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June

WAZEMEBEBEIERMT : 2021 were as follows:
kil fR{ERI EREEEERAZHY TRE (MNREF1T)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)
LR, Al
Financial assets/liabilities
BitEESRE EEFE TER TEA
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* * n/a n/a
REREESRE EEFE TEA iE A
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* * n/a n/a
HHEESRE EEFE" TER TEA
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
LEEERE EEFEE" TEA TEA
Private credit investments Net asset value* * n/a n/a

Y EERPIARBBHRENFEIRERTSE
TEE  WERENEBEDRESESKEMRER
HNENESHRERCECRENERARETERS
RHUEHEREMEE KERARFE2REEFE
RARERENLFEER-

+ ERESBMTIE RS 0 W2022F6H308  £=H
B AZAENERGETEEGHTENERT
HEEESERYBREELZRZIOEI20BEEER
BEMINETRBISREN QX FEEMLTTSHEM
e AHREMN202253 831 AR BT EMEE
CHRER  MEEREN2022F481BE6AH30
FHENRERARREELAR  XFEAZSR
BHIXRBEEARTHERZIRBEZENE L KTE
B E—STERAR (MMNE)2022F4818F
6 A30 BRI M fEET @R -

REMBMRRKRME2BAN2022F6 30 HNER
BEAFER ZERENGESREEERRBEN
REAWEREERRIMEREL  BEEZERE
HIEBIE -

(e) H202246 530 H K 202146530 H it ##FE
HBEEEREER A FEEIEK -

The investments classified as level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded
in an active market. These have been valued based on information derived from
individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers, and
considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary. The Group has determined that
the reported net asset values represent a fair value of the captioned investments.

+ Given the volatility in financial markets, as of 30 June 2022, the estimation of the
fair value of certain level 3 investments with valuation only available to investors 90-
120 days after the financial year end has been enhanced, recognizing that the actual
valuation when available may differ from the estimate. In particular, the last available
valuation as of 31 March 2022 is used, adjusted for cash flows into and out of the
investments from 1 April — 30 June 2022, and further assessed and adjusted, if
necessary, for the estimated return from 1 April — 30 June 2022 by utilizing the historical
statistical relationship between such investments with global developed market equities
index.

The fair value of the investments reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position is as of 30 June 2022. The valuation of these investments will vary, based on
its business performance and prevailing market and economic conditions, until the
realization of the investments.

(e) At 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, no non-financial assets or liabilities
were carried at fair value.
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32 FEMBRARKREED

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB

BFEUBARRE Statement of financial position of the Club
BEET in HK$ million fizE Note 2022 2021
FRBEE Non-current assets
W - REREM Property, plant and equipment 9,028 8,643
REYME Investment properties 18 19
B EE Intangible assets 3,122 2,991
HEBATRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,539 1,011
EENTRE Investments in a joint venture 25,189 28,238
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments 16,278 13,988
BRERITESRTIA Investments and derivatives 2,079 1,894
REAFESRIE Long-term prepayment 35 7
REBFFE Defined benefit scheme 279 171
57,567 56,962
RBEE Current assets
ERESRKRE Contingency Fund investments - 341
TESRTA Derivatives 1 1
AHE A B FENER Loans to subsidiaries 1,685 1,676
E 5 R EMEKIE Trade and other receivables 360 363
Hittns&EE Other current assets 483 348
FEW BB A HFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,365 4,430
EHEIER Short-term deposits 5,688 7,713
HERBRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,789 4,465
18,371 19,337
RENEE Current liabilities
B 5 R HEMEMNIRK Trade and other payables (9,151) (9,448)
TR Receipts in advance (135) (153)
B FHE A RNFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (10,189) (9,691)
HERE Lease liabilities (52) (79)
REAFTEREE Current income tax liabilities (288) (138)
(19,815) (19,509)
RENEEFE Net current liabilities (1,444) (172)
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
HERE Lease liabilities (95) (146)
EEMEHREE Deferred income tax liabilities (840) (793)
AW IE Receipts in advance (712) (728)
H th A BR X Other payables (574) (749)
(2,221) (2,416)
53,902 54,374
#%E Reserves 32 (a) 16,564 16,627
BRES Contingency Fund 32 (b) 37,338 37,747
EREE Total equity 53,902 54,374
¥E Philip N L Chen
B Michael T H Lee
¥ E Stewards
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32 FEMBRARKREED

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(&) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB (CONT.)

(a) EEREEE (a) Reserve movement of the Club
BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
7HA1H At 1 July 16,627 16,288
MEBHFEEE (FR) B Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (632) 7,120
gy (F)ERES Transfer from/(to) Contingency Fund 409 (7,300)
BREANBBERANEBENENRHE Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net

of tax 160 519
6 H30H At 30 June 16,564 16,627
(b) FEHEHAELEE (b) Contingency Fund movement of the Club
BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
7HA1H At 1 July 37,747 30,447
EE(F),/ Bf#E Transfer (to)/from Reserve (409) 7,300
6H30H At 30 June 37,338 37,747
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i A AE

A2022F6A30H - EENFEMELATERE :

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2022:

BEEE /BN
ERADL
Effective percentage
held/controlled

by the Club
BETRMRRE EMER
FTEEHK Issued and fully paid up share B ik
Principal activities capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly

BEEEEESEYARARA REBFEVES 2BE T 100
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business HK$200,000,000
ERSERREREARLHE REEREREY 3EHET 100
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business HK$300,000,000
ERFEREERAT RENEAHBRFEL 1008 T 100
HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business HK$1,000,000
ERESEEESHKEARLE EEEES BN HERERIE 10087 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Services Limited manages Members’ social and recreational HK$100

facilities
BEREFE (KB)BRAA FRETRAKBAHNEEA 2058 7T 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Managers) Limited acts as administrator for the staff retirement HK$20

benefits scheme
BREEARDH BEEERRENEY 1,000&# T 100
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages The Racing Club’s operations HK$10,000,000
EEFEEBAR (TE)BRAH BFEEBERFEERE 58T 100
HKJC Business Ventures (China) Limited holds the equity interests of the Group’s HK$500,000,000

business ventures in China
BERERE (3)BRLHA RREBEFSREIMENEENREAREEL - 100

The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Charities) Limited

LREBFEEMERAT
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited*

LREBFERMABERATF
Beijing HKJC Technology Development Limited*
BNEBSEETIRERDIA

Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse Training Limited*

R BEFERMARBRAA
Shenzhen HKJC Technology Development Limited*

*CEBARXE
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REBGEEMBRARANRE

acts as nominee for selected projects and
holds investments in Beijing Hong Kong
Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited*, on behalf
of The Hong Kong Jockey Club

EEEEE RN GHERERE

manages Members’ social and recreational
facilities

RS R KRB R 5 3 R B IR

provides computer hardware and software
technology development and consulting
services

EEMNTRLEEE RS BT IRRE

constructs and operates horse training
facilities in Conghua District, Guangzhou

REEREE R R 8 R B RS

provides computer hardware and software
technology development and consulting
services

* Unofficial English name

6,500& % T
US$65,000,000

1,000BX T
US$10,000,000
AR#22(82,0008 T

RMB2,220,000,000

3008%T
US$3,000,000

100

100

100

100



PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR RACING SEASON
SEREFSRER

BEBT in HK$ million 2022* 2021*
EEHEHE Number of race meetings 88 88
AR RO B Amounts wagered by local customers 264,405 256,801
EASSWMNIERIZ LR Amounts of non-local bets commingled with the Club’s pools 25,709 23,136
T HAER Total amounts wagered 290,114 279,937
BEREFRA Betting and lottery revenue 41,812 38,909
EERRESEEB Betting and lottery duty (25,448) (23,848)
FTRRF It B B 4B Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (203) (113)
REES Lotteries Fund (877) (509)
WRREE Net margin and commission 15,284 14,439
Hipg A Other revenue 4,463 4,131
19,747 18,570
&R Operating costs (13,485) (12,301)
BREFERESRETREAARESNRIE Donations to the Trust and the Equine Foundation (4,940) (5,708)
HNBRBBETESRELENMRESNEEMKE R Operating surplus after donations to the Trust and the Equine
Foundation 1,322 561
TR E WS Interest income from deposits 137 85
RERITESRTI BERRG Surplus from investments and derivatives 33 547
ERESRENRR Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 1,790 3,192
HHRER Finance costs (5) (8)
3,277 4,377
s &8 AR (BB), &7 Share of (losses)/profits of joint ventures (2,682) 4,999
R IEAT B R Surplus before taxation 595 9,376
Eizhe| Taxation (753) (764)
MELENFE (B18) Bk Net (deficit)/surplus after taxation (158) 8,612
* BESME24 B M * Refer to note 1 on page 24.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

EBBE

ERESEREESRRIERE

M=

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP RACING
AND BETTING OPERATIONS SUMMARY

BEET in HK$ million 2022* 2021* 2020* 2019* 2018*
EE5AEA Number of race meetings 88 88 87 88 88
TR ESIREEHE Amount wagered by local customers on

horse races 114,757 113,240 98,020 105,996 107,705
i EEBELEREN Horse race betting dividends and rebates on

local bets (95,324)  (94,380) (81,366) (88,194)  (89,815)
iSE-3= PPN Horse race betting revenue on local bets 19,433 18,860 16,654 17,802 17,890
it EEHEH Horse race betting duty on local bets (14,141)  (13,756) (12,113) (12,983) (13,056)
BAMIREA AT IMEESHEE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong on local bets (203) (113) (95) (85) (77)
it B S A A Horse race betting net margin on local bets 5,089 4,991 4,446 4,734 4,757
EERR AR Amount wagered on football 143,798 140,171 92,598 114,074 103,084
EHETYS Football betting dividends (124,110) (121,681) (80,052) (98,733)  (88,965)
EEREEHRA Football betting revenue 19,688 18,490 12,546 15,341 14,119
RIREEH Football betting duty (9,844)  (9,245) (6,273)  (7,671)  (7,060)
RIRIEH AR Football betting net margin 9,844 9,245 6,273 7,670 7,059
RERILE Amount wagered on lottery 5,850 3,390 5,161 8,465 8,113
#BEMEE Lottery prizes (3,159) (1,831) (2,787) (4,571) (4,381)
REWA Lottery revenue 2,691 1,559 2,374 3,894 3,732
BEEEH Lottery duty (1,463) (847)  (1,290)  (2,116)  (2,028)
REES Lotteries Fund (877) (509) (774)  (1,270)  (1,217)
®BEME Lottery commission 351 203 310 508 487
HAFWA GIBREEMERSR) Other net revenue

(excluding gain on sale of properties) 2,459 2,581 2,588 2,574 2,332
Feb i gle Total operating income 17,743 17,020 13,617 15,486 14,635
BEELERA Direct operating costs (9,626)  (9,059)  (8,631)  (8,692)  (7,439)
MIBIEN Miscellaneous donations (54) (54) (28) (50) (78)
WE  #E -  REREEXE Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and

expensed project costs (1,621) (1,686) (1,762) (1,615) (1,612)
MR R Total operating costs (11,301) (10,799) (10,421) (10,357)  (9,129)
RERER Operating surplus 6,442 6,221 3,196 5,129 5,506
BB Taxation (728) (711) (401) (590) (633)
MBRRIBENEE R Operating surplus after taxation 5,714 5,510 2,795 4,539 4,873

BASZERONARRERS

PR FEENRRERR R RBETESRET
BAMEES  HEWEKRE  RECHBNERTHE

RESAINKERER -

* BEUBER -
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Unclaimed prizes transferred to the
Snowball Pool 30 19 88 77 60

The above figures represent the operating surplus after taxation and before donations to
the Trust and the Equine Foundation, gain on sale of properties, investment returns and
transfers to the Contingency Fund.

* Financial data is for racing seasons.



ERESEREESRRIERE
BME (&)

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP RACING
AND BETTING OPERATIONS SUMMARY (CONT.)

EE in HK$ million 2022* 2021* 2019* 2018*
EREPRILE Total amount wagered on horse races 140,466 136,376 124,819 124,282
W ESEEVHNESEY R RTARE Less: amount of non-local bets commingled

with the Club’s pools on horse races (25,709) (23,136) (18,823)  (16,577)
TinEEESEYRELE Amount wagered by local customers on

horse races 114,757 113,240 105,996 107,705

ERESSSEXBHE

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP

OPERATIONS SUMMARY

BEET in HK$ million 2022* 2021* 2019* 2018*
W Income
2888 Membership subscriptions 580 369 310 302
EEASEREEERE Members’ entrance and qualification fees 600 492 156 124
BREBERE Catering deficit (189) (170) (32) (48)
HinrEER NG /(B8B) Other non-catering income/(loss) 34 20 20 32
1,025 711 454 410
EEEHHEETHERE Direct membership administration costs (807) (591) (321) (309)
WERERZH Depreciation and expensed project costs (324) (249) (45) (54)
(1,131) (840) (366) (363)
"g (FR) /Bt Operating (deficit)/surplus (106) (129) 88 47

* BEUBER -

* Financial data is for racing seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BB THME

2022* 2021* 2020* 2019* 2018

E5AEH Race meetings
AERH Day meetings 47 47 48 47 46
RERE Night meetings 41 41 39 41 42
FEWE- Total number of meetings 88 88 87 88 88
B EESH Races on turf 752 749 730 714 701
ERRHREEFEH Races on all-weather track 84 86 98 98 106
g Total number of races 836 835 828 812 807
B Horses
ETHEAREY Total runners 10,006 10,197 10,227 9,765 9,794
BH-SEEFTHA Horses winning 1 race 302 320 315 305 311
BEMEEEETHE Horses winning 2 races 149 128 137 152 131
BH=SEEETHE Horses winning 3 races 45 59 50 38 51
BH=ZHU T BEEETHE Horses winning over 3 races 23 19 21 20 19
BHEEETHAE Horses with winnings 519 526 523 515 512
AEBHEEEHANESTHE Horses not winning - placed 449 459 436 441 431
FEBHESTERAVESTHE Horses not winning - unplaced 376 413 439 373 357
RELERTHA Horses not raced 351 326 352 376 331
BTy Total horse population 1,695 1,724 1,750 1,705 1,631
BEETHA Retirements 549 509 522 467 469
BES®Se Prize money
REBE(AEET) Total prize money (HK$ million) 1,440 1,382 1,337 1,252 1,190
BEEEFHIES (TAR) Average prize money per race (HK$’000) 1,723 1,655 1,614 1,542 1,474
BEE¥HRE (FET) Average prize money per horse (HK$’'000) 850 801 764 734 729
FRERSREFAETAHAESL Percentage of horses winning prize money

in the year 61% 62% 59% 60% 62%
FRNERSREFTEHEFTAYANL Percentage of individual runners winning

prize money in the year 7% 7% 74% 7% 7%
FREREAERERAYESREFEETAEA T Percentage of horses recovering

basic costs or more in the year 36% 35% 34% 37% 38%
EFATHABAE(T) Average attendance per meeting ('000)
St Happy Valley 3.0 1.8 7.4 19.0 18.4
WH Sha Tin 5.6 3.1 10.5 29.6 28.8
EERIE(EEAR) Total Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
bl Standard bets 120,618 117,305 105,077 107,952 107,528
5 RI% Exotic bets 18,635 17,885 15548 15909 15,781
EEREEF M Fixed odds bets 1,213 1,186 983 958 973
Fk] Total 140,466 136,376 121,608 124,819 124,282
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Bt 7 FINANCIAL
BEAR in HK$ million 2022* 2021* 2020* 2019* 2018*
ERBUEB Duty and taxation to

Hong Kong SAR Government
ESHEEHR Horse Race betting duty 14,141 13,756 12,113 12,983 13,056
RIREEH Football betting duty 9,844 9,245 6,273 7,671 7,060
BHEEEH Lottery duty 1,463 847 1,290 2,116 2,028
AEHR Profits tax 696 623 340 588 578

26,144 24,471 20,016 23,358 22,722

RETBEEBLES Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax*

to The Community Chest of Hong Kong - - 1 2 2

ORI 1993 F4 51 RRHE - FEREKME
ERMESASERNREVNNBRBEEL
BE - R TFE2003F3A31H  HEEHE
20245 3H31H °

# Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed
to donate sums equivalent to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The
Community Chest of Hong Kong for ten years up to 31 March 2003, subsequently

extended to 31 March 2024.

28 MEMBERSHIP
R6A30H as at 30 June 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
EREREEEAY Number of Hong Kong Jockey Club
Members
2EBE5 Full Members 16,236 15765 15300 15,196 14,997
2HEE(S) Full Members (S) 204 200 202 197 194
BEEREMES Racing and other Members 9,825 10,034 10,255 9,968 9,610
HREEE Absent Members 1,976 1,910 1,822 2,677 2,793
NAEE Corporate Members 179 180 182 184 187
28,420 28,089 27,761 28,222 27,781
HREEEAY Number of Racing Club Members
mBREESs Racing Club Members 1,391 1,354 1,350 1,295 1,230
AibEE AR Number of Mainland Members
BAEGE Individual Members 1,012 999 1,020 998 975
NAIEE Corporate Members 100 98 102 105 109
30,923 30,540 30,233 30,620 30,095
£EES GROUP EMPLOYEES
R6A30H as at 30 June 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
28 Full-time 8,423 7,968 7,971 7,258 7,015
E3c Part-time 10,327 12,367 13,744 14,563 14,403

* Racing statistical data is for racing seasons.
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REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES

ESEEARE
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ABEDREESEXANWRBRIELARARRK
ESERARER -

ES-
BRI
20225 7H27H

The Trustees have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) for the year ended
30 June 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Trust was primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and
community projects in Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed.

RESULTS

The results of the Trust for the year are set out in the income statement on page 81. All
figures in the annual report and the audited financial statements are expressed in millions of
Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

FUND

Movements in the Trust’s fund during the year are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Trust allocated HK$6,594 million for charitable purposes, as detailed in
the Charities Trust Donations section of the report.

TRUSTEES

The Board of Trustees during the year and up to the date of this annual report are the
Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) as listed in the Board of Stewards
section of the report.

Mr Andrew W B R Weir was appointed as a Trustee on 31 August 2021 to fill the vacancy
left by Mr Stephen Ip Shu Kwan who resigned as a Trustee on 31 August 2021 upon his
resignation as a Steward of the Club. The Hon Bernard Charnwut Chan was appointed as a
Trustee on 10 June 2022 to fill the vacancy left by The Hon Mrs Margaret Leung who retired
as a Trustee on 10 June 2022 upon her retirement as a Steward of the Club.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Trustees and is
signed for and on behalf of the Board.

Philip N L Chen
Chairman
27 July 2022

77



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST

(established in Hong Kong)

OPINION
What we have audited

The financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”), which
are set out on pages 81 to 101, comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022;

e the income statement for the year then ended;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the statement of changes in fund for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Trust as at 30 June 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Trustees of the Trust is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does
not include the financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, the
consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club and our auditor’s reports
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees of the Trust is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
and for such internal control as the Board of Trustees determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Trustees is responsible for assessing
the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Trustees either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Trustees.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Trustees’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, as delegated by the Board of Trustees
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 July 2022



INCOME STATEMENT
3R

BZ6H30BLEE for the year ended 30 June
BEET in HK$ million MzF Note 2022 2021
REEEAESERAMBAR (ATHBIEEESS Donations from The Hong Kong Jockey Club and
£8 ] WER its subsidiaries (the “HKJC Group”) 11.3(b) 4,940 5,108

RERITESMITERER Surplus from investments and derivatives 2,379 4,324
FERAE W Interest income from deposits 11 8
e AT (EBB), &7 Share of (losses)/profits of a joint venture 4 (3,628) 6,599
BARBELERER Forfeited dividends and refunds 25 18
FEEJo N Operating costs 11.1 (243) (218)
BKEA Finance costs (70) (86)
R BIBRERB R B EFIBER N R Surplus before allocations to

charitable organisations and community projects 3,414 15,753
i R B RV IB R Previous allocations not utilised 331 90
BIBZERBERLEEINZRIBERE Present value of allocations to

charitable organisations and community projects (6,464) (4,497)
BARSHFE(BE)B& Net (deficit)/surplus transferred to Fund 9 (2,719) 11,346
BEEZEEERAETEINFUERE Present value of allocations to

charitable organisations and community projects (6,464) (4,497)
HRENEE Present value impact (130) (13)
BiBZERBREERIHEINRIEA Allocations to charitable organisations

and community projects (6,594) (4,510)

¥86EZE101 EMNMEEAMBEHERMN—BD o

The notes on pages 86 to 101 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
E2EKEER

BZ6H30BLEE for the year ended 30 June

BEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
T (B8) R Net (deficity/surplus (2,719) 11,346
AEERME (F5E) W HBLE Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (2,719) 11,346
FBOHEE10TENMEBAMBHRERN—HD o The notes on pages 86 to 101 are an integral part of these financial statements.

82



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B RSN R

H6A30H at 30 June
BEET in HK$ million MzF Note 2022 2021
FREBEE Non-current assets
EEDNANRE Investments in a joint venture 4 32,581 36,665
RERITESMIA Investments and derivatives 5 23,029 19,934
BERRERFRIE Loans and receivables 11.4 476 640
56,086 57,239
RBEE Current assets
RERITESMIA Investments and derivatives 5 1 512
BRREWRRIE Loans and receivables 11.2,11.4 3,907 4,435
ySR-RER N Short-term deposits 7 1,094 285
ReERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 7 3,061 2,984
8,063 8,216
BE=RE Current liabilities
GEEF-R R R TN Allocations awaiting payment 8 (20,593) (19,180)
RENBEFE Net current liabilities (12,530) (10,964)
43,556 46,275
2 Fund 9 43,556 46,275
HEETEA Philip N L Chen
PREG %% Michael T H Lee
MNFE Trustees

#86EZE101 EMNMEFEBAMBEHRERMN—IBD o

The notes on pages 86 to 101 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND

BEEBT in HK$ million 2022 2021
7B1 A& Balance at 1 July 46,275 34,929
RE (F518), B& Net (deficit)/surplus (2,719) 11,346
AEERE (BB W Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (2,719) 11,346
6 4308 &8k Balance at 30 June 43,556 46,275

¥86EZE101 EMNMEEAMBEHERMN—BD o
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The notes on pages 86 to 101 are an integral part of these financial statements.




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERER

BZ6H30BLEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million MizE Note 2022 2021
SRR Operating activities
BARELERER Forfeited dividends and refunds 25 18
ARTFERERBERILELTE Payments to charitable organisations and
community projects (4,790) (5,404)
EBEEEEEER Donations from the HKJC Group 5,653 4,666
FES—JoW:iN Operating costs (243) (218)
BETBHEE (A HNTFRS Net cash generated from/(used in) operating
activities 645 (938)
REEH Investing activities
FEAA=EA U LN EBREFIE M Increase in short-term deposits with
maturities of more than 3 months (809) (99)
2 WEFI S Interest received 9 8
HeERARAMETE Injection into a joint venture (4,324) (1,899)
BEEATER Redemption from a joint venture 4,780 3,969
BERAFEEEBERIERNVKEE Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (3,888) (6,120)
HERAFEEERERYIRNIEERE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 3,652 4,773
ERREFRENES (EmMm), md (Increase)/decrease in deposits and funds
awaiting investments (19) 1,998
HITESMI AR (Frft) BEERE Net receipt from/(payment for) derivative financial
instruments 14 )
REZ® (A MEENFERS Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
activities (585) 2,621
RERBESEEWFEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 60 1,683
FHERERBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year 2,984 1,296
HBRER Exchange difference 17 5
FRESRRSZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,061 2,984
REeERBRELEENEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
EHTER Short-term deposits 3,005 2,960
RITFER Bank balances 56 24
3,061 2,984

%86 EHZE101 EMM B AMBEHERMN —3

P

i)

o

The notes on pages 86 to 101 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Trust is primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and community
projects in Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed. The Trust is established in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million), unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 81 to 101 were approved by the Board of Trustees on 27
July 2022.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Trust’s accounting policies. Areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.

(a) Amendments to Financial Reporting Standards that are relevant to the
Trust’s operations and are effective for the current accounting period

No amendments to Financial Reporting Standards relevant to the Trust’s operations were
effective during the current accounting period.

(b) Amendments to Financial Reporting Standards that are relevant to the
Trust’s operations but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted

The following amendments to Financial Reporting Standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Trust’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2022.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Definition of Accounting Estimates
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The Trust is still assessing what the impact of the amendments to Financial Reporting
Standards will be in the period of initial application. It is not yet in a position to state
whether these amendments to Financial Reporting Standards will have a significant impact
on the Trust’s results of operations and financial position.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.2 Joint arrangements

The Trust has applied HKFRS 11 to its joint arrangement. Under HKFRS 11 investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Trust has assessed the nature
of its joint arrangement and determined it to be a joint venture as unanimous consent
is required from all parties to the agreement for relevant activities. The joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method.

2.3

Investments and derivatives (including investments in the HKJC Investment Trust Fund
(“Investment Trust”)), are held for non-trading purposes, irrespective of whether they are
classified as current or non-current. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The accounting policy for the financial assets of the investments and derivatives are
stated in note 2.4.

Investments and derivatives

2.4 Financial assets
(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Trust classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. These financial assets
include investments and derivatives.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For debt instruments, the objective of the Trust’s business model is not to hold the assets
to collect the contractual cash flows, and not to both hold the financial assets to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if they are expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current assets. All equity instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Alternative investments mainly include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds,
private real estate funds and private credit funds.

The Trust uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, equity options,
foreign exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to
facilitate the implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as
current as they are expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

For financial assets that the Trust holds in order to collect contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates,
these are classified as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category
are classified as current assets if they are expected to be settled or if they have maturities
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets.

The Trust’s assets in this category include loans and receivables, deposits, short-term
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances,
cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and with
original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed with banks for a fixed term of
more than three months are classified as short-term deposits.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.4 Financial assets (cont.)
(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade day - the date on
which the Trust commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Trust has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Trust measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial
assets that are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including
dividend income and interest income, are recognised in the income statement. This
information is shown under net gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

For financial assets that do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their
fair values will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund
managers using valuation techniques.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.

(c) Impairment of financial assets
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS 9 on the
reporting date.

Financial assets include loans and receivables, deposits, short-term deposits, and cash
and cash equivalents placed with reputable financial institutions. The Trust considers these
counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual cash
flows, and are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the
12-month ECL.

The Trust assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Trust considers the
credit risk of a financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any
contractual cash flows from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more.
When a financial asset is unlikely to be recovered it is considered credit-impaired.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.4 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets (cont.)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost (cont.)

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent
period, an asset’s quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant
increase in credit risk since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from
lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off.
Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off reduce the amount of the expense in the income statement.

The Trust measures ECL using the historical loss of the respective financial assets
and considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available,
including the following indicators: (a) the counterparty’s external credit rating and its
expected change; (b) actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of debtors, including changes in the payment pattern of debtors.

The Trust considers the 12-month ECL for the financial assets as minimal.

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Trust are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The Trust financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Trust’s
functional currency and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from translation at the year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised directly in the income statement.
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period. The differences arising from translation are recognised in
the income statement.

2.6 Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.7 Donations

Donation income is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive the payment
is established.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Allocations to charitable organisations and
community projects

Allocations to charitable organisations and community projects are charged to the income
statement and recognised as liabilities when the grant has been offered to and accepted by
the grantee and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the legal
and/or constructive obligation established.

Allocations awaiting payment that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at
the present value of expected future payments, using the effective interest method.

2.9 Forfeited dividends and refunds

In accordance with The Hong Kong Jockey Club’s Rules, certain dividends and refunds
which are not claimed within the specified period are deemed to be donated for charitable
purposes. These amounts are paid directly to the Trust.

2.10Related party

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Trust if the Trust has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Trust and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may
be individuals or entities.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making
estimates and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted
by judgements and uncertainties, for which different amounts may be reported under a
different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

3.1 Recognition of allocations to charitable
organisations and community projects

The Trust requires significant judgement to determine when allocations to charitable
organisations and community projects are recognised as liabilities. In making this
judgement, the Trust performs due diligence on the grant application review process,
including assessing the grantees’ ability and willingness to honour the grant conditions, and
evaluating the likelihood of an outflow of resources to settle the obligations.

3.2 Estimation of fair value of certain financial assets

The fair value of certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation technique as detailed in note
12.3(d). The Trust determines the fair values of these financial assets primarily based on the
net asset value of the funds and its interest held with reference to fund reports obtained
from fund managers and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period. The estimation of fair values is based on
management’s best estimates.

Where it is determined that the actual fair value is different from the estimated fair value
that were recorded, such differences will impact the surplus/(deficit) from investments
and derivatives and share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures in the period in which such a
determination is made.



4 BEQXTNRE 4 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

A2022F6 A30 R EE ARFEBUT : Details of the joint venture as of 30 June 2022 are as follows:
EEa iy AvAEIES EERAREHERA
BEREE Country of FEER Authorised and paid FEAR
Name of entity incorporation Principal activities up capital Measurement method
HKJC Investment Trust Fund HEHS REREREBES TiE A fEm®
The Cayman Islands Investment in equities n/a Equity

and debt securities

MR6A30E ErtEESREBHEEREInvestment  The effective percentages directly held by the Trust and its related entities in the Investment

TrustEEFENER B LT ¢ Trust as of 30 June were as follows:

2022 2021
ERESERERTES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 54.5% 54.6%
ERESE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 42.2% 42.1%
ERESEETRINEFTE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 2.6% 2.6%

ERAEEEEREAMEESERAT The Hong Kong Jockey Club Equine Welfare Research
Foundation Limited 0.7% 0.7%
100.0% 100.0%
HEBET in HK$ million 2022 2021
7HA1H At 1 July 36,665 32,123
xE Injection 4,324 1,899
BEE Redemption (4,780) (3,969)
FiE (B518) 5 R Share of (losses)/profits (3,628) 6,599
ERARE Transfer from investments - 13
6 H30H At 30 June 32,581 36,665
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
4 EBERTNKRE (&) 4 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT.)
S ATIN6A0HMNIKEERBEMNT ¢ A summary of financial information of the joint venture as of 30 June is as follows:
2022 2021
FtEe FEEe
BEN BEN
Trust’s Trust’s
effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest
(F518) Wz (Loss)/income (6,287) (3,512) 12,271 6,766
ey Expenses (212) (116) (304) (167)
BE® (BR), Bt (Deficit)/surplus after taxation (6,499) (3,628) 11,967 6,599
2 (BE), WS B%E Total comprehensive (loss)/income (6,499) (3,628) 11,967 6,599
FREEE Non-current assets
BRAFEEEBRERZIERNMEEE Fair value through profit or loss
BRE Equities
EEALH Listed in Hong Kong 3,047 1,771 2,714 1,519
EEMIET Listed overseas 18,566 10,769 27,059 15,145
BEES Debt securities
o) Listed 21,954 11,761 25,701 13,795
LM Unlisted 13,922 7,123 13,582 7,268
fTEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments 440 230 238 128
nBEE Current assets
HitRnB&EE Other current assets 2,129 1,083 236 105
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 883 468 298 161
RERBELZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 448 252 957 510
REEEHRE Total current assets 3,460 1,803 1,491 776
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 N EAMENIRR Trade and other payables (680) (361) (3,246) (1,740)
THEEMIA Derivative financial instruments (291) (154) (163) (88)
B EEERE Total current financial liabilities
(TBIFE S R HAESIRR) (excluding trade and other payables) (291) (154) (163) (88)
FREEE Non-current liabilities
FTHEEMIA Derivative financial instruments (688) (361) (258) (138)
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HPRBIB5F (20215  65F)

4 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT.)

Debt securities carried a weighted average effective interest rate of 5.48% (2021: 2.78%)
for the joint venture under the Investment Trust. The weighted average of the maturities was

5 years (2021: 6 years).

2022 2021
BTREUTIEHTE : Underlying investments were denominated in the following
currencies:
Ep United States Dollars (“USD”) 81% 82%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 3% 4%
AR Renminbi (“RMB”) 3% 2%
BE Euro (“EUR?) 2% 3%
EE Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 1% 2%
s ERR Swiss Franc (“CHF”) 1% 2%
Hith g H Other currencies 9% 5%
100% 100%
5 RERITAESEMTA 5 INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES
BEBT In HK$ million 2022 2021
FREBEE Non-current assets
SERKRE-FLm Alternative investments — unlisted 23,029 19,934
REEE Current assets
BEEE-FLm Debt securities — unlisted - 511
PTESMIA Derivative financial instruments
- REIPEEH - Foreign exchange forward contracts 1 1
1 512
A2021%F » EREFHMEFLIIHRAI79A ° In 2021, the weighted average of the maturities of the debt securities was 379 days.
2022 2021
RERTESHMIAUTIERITE ! Investments and derivatives were denominated in the
following currencies:
X7 USD 99% 99%
e EUR 1% 1%
100% 100%
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BAREER AR ML
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6 INVESTMENT RETURNS

The Trust’s investments, including those included in the Investment Trust, were measured
at fair value, including differences not yet realised as at year-end, and changes in fair value
during the financial year were reflected in profit and loss. As such, they are susceptible to
volatility in capital markets.

During the year, financial markets were extremely volatile as inflation in developed
economies reached multi-decade highs prompting central banks who were slow to
normalise monetary conditions to have to become aggressive in tightening leading to
recessionary concerns. The war in Ukraine and economic slowdown in China further
complicated macroeconomic and geopolitical developments. Equities and bonds suffered
significant declines and fell in tandem. Amid market risks, the Trust maintained a relatively
conservative risk profile for its investments but nonetheless recorded an investment loss of
HK$1,238 million in the current financial year (2021: gain of HK$10,931 million).

Investment returns include surplus/deficit from investments and derivatives, interest income
from deposits and share of profits/losses of the Investment Trust.

7 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
7.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average of the effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 2.08% (2021:
0.25%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and the
weighted average of the maturities was 133 days (2021: 184 days).

2022 2021
EHERUTIEMINE Short-term deposits were denominated in the following
currencies:
BT HKD 86% -
ESSH usb 14% 100%
100% 100%

72 RERRESEEY

AHAA=ERAUTHWERNMEFLIERINERS
1.11% (20214 : 0.15%) - TR EEHEE QAT

7.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average of the effective interest rate on deposits with maturities of less than
three months was 1.11% (2021: 0.15%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated

BEMEE  MEMEFLHEPREEES1H (20214 : 39  their fair values and the weighted average of the maturities was 51 days (2021: 39 days).
)
2022 2021
FAB=ZEAUTHNERATIEREITE : Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
EP UsD 52% 41%
BT HKD 48% 59%
100% 100%
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8 ALLOCATIONS AWAITING PAYMENT

The Trust classifies allocations awaiting payment as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the allocations for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. However, due to the inherent nature of the projects for which
allocations have been made by the Trust, the period in which these allocations are expected
to be paid may be greater than 12 months after the reporting period. Based on management
estimates, as at 30 June, the allocations awaiting payment are expected to be paid as
follows:

BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
R—FR Within one year 6,126 6,366
NREZZE=FR In the second to third year inclusive 9,851 8,755
RE=F1% After the third year 5,003 4,386

20,980 19,507
HEAZMNERBRENSE Present value impact on allocations awaiting payment (387) (327)
i F B REE Present value of allocations awaiting payment 20,593 19,180

BRNEEN R T ENEEER OEETE ¥
4B L 0T A R

ERESEM3ES5,3008B T (2021 1 &) FTHES
EENEHRMDRRITER -

The actual timing of the payments is dependent upon the progress of individual projects
and may differ from the expected schedule presented above.

The Trust allocated HK$353 million (2021: HK$nil) to Pokfulam Public Riding School, which
is operated by the Club.

9 E¢ 9 FUND

BEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
7H1H At 1 July 46,275 34,929
B (F) /BRER Transfer (to)/from income statement (2,719) 11,346
6 H30H At 30 June 43,556 46,275
HEHERESHNRIGRER - The balance represents the residual value of the fund.

10 FiE 10 TAXATION

ERESBHRBATBRER > B LM HBIE
ff o

11 EABEEATZRS

EREcEHEFAEES ((E2) RETEHMBEAR
HNEBE HREEESETATIBETESES
BRE  UREBESZEZANARSHERREERLT
(MZEMN) MESSXYREERAT ([FEEXYR
FNEEZERRE  FIMETEESEZRN - FEXY
REREZEHREWNB AT RELEMERATY
EEE HNESREAEECECRAMEESS
FRATMME—IRER » FIAESEESHEZ ARt ERE -

BRTEEMBHRRAEMBIPEENS  FTEERE
BEATCETHIZNT :

11.1 BERAK

KERAEENESRENTHREREIERYE  BEX
FTHEBRER2{54,10088 7T (20215 : 2{81,7008
BIT) °

No provision for taxation has been made because the Trust is exempt from Hong Kong
profits tax.

11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Trust is related to The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries. It is
also related to The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited (‘KSCGC”) and
The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) and its wholly owned subsidiary Tai Kwun Culture
and Arts Company Limited, as the Trustees of the Trust are also the Club’s Stewards and
the Directors of KSCGC and CPS. The Trust is also related to The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Equine Welfare Research Foundation Limited as the Club is the sole member of this
company.

The following transactions were carried out by the Trust with related parties, except for
those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements:

11.1 Operating costs

Operating costs included management expenses of HK$241 million (2021: HK$217 million)
for administrative and support services provided by the Club.
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11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)
11.2Loans
Loans to KSCGC

At the end of the reporting period, included under the loans and receivables in current
assets was HK$30 million (2021: HK$30 million) made by the Trust to KSCGC representing
the balance of an interest-free, unsecured loan repayable on demand. The carrying amounts
of the loans approximated their fair values.

11.3Donations

(a) Donations to CPS
The Trust donated HK$155 million (2021: HK$265 million) to CPS.

(b) Donations from the HKJC Group

The Trust recorded donations of HK$4,940 million (2021: HK$5,108 million) from the HKJC
Group.

(c) Donation to KSCGC
In 2022, the Trust donated HK$16 million (2021: HK$57 million) to KSCGC.

11.4 Receivable from the HKJC Group

At the end of the reporting period, the amount receivable from the HKJC Group was
HK$4,331 million (2021: HK$5,044 million), which was interest-free and unsecured. The
balance mainly included (a) the remaining balance of the annual donations from the HKJC
Group amounting to HK$3,300 million (2021: HK$3,400 million), which will be gradually
received within six months after the end of the reporting period; and (b) HK$1,027 million
(2021: HK$1,650 million) for the donation to the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
(“WKCDA”) for the construction of the Hong Kong Palace Museum, which will be received
based on payments by the Trust to the WKCDA on a back-to-back basis according to
mutual agreement with the Club. Out of the receivable from the HKJC Group, HK$476
million (2021: HK$640 million) was classified as a non-current asset as this amount was not
expected to be received within the next 12 months, whereas the remaining balance was
classified as a current asset.

12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
12.1 Financial risk factors

The Trust’s investment activities, including financial instruments recognised in the statement
of financial position (“directly held financial instruments) and investments in its joint venture,
expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and
interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Trust’s overall risk management strategy
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Trust’s financial performance. The Trust uses derivative financial instruments
to manage and reduce certain risk exposures.

The Trust’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Club’s Investment Office and external professional
fund managers.
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.1Financial risk factors (cont.)

Risk management is carried out by the Club’s Investment Office under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Investment Committee. Investment
constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions
and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund with the aim of
managing investment risk.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates
relating to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Trust’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in USD or HKD. The HKD
is pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered minimal. The
remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in equities and
bonds.

At the end of the reporting period, if EUR, RMB and GBP had strengthened/weakened
against the HKD by 5%, with all other variables held constant, the Trust’s surplus and
equity for the year would have increased/decreased by HK$42 million, HK$45 million and
HK$24 million respectively (2021: HK$63 million, HK$39 million and HK$43 million) from
underlying financial instruments of the Investment Trust.

(i) Price risk
Price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in market prices. The Trust is exposed
to market price risk as the value of its equity investment and alternative investments will

decline if market prices fall. These investments are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the statement of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices had been 5% higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the Trust’s equity for the year would have increased/decreased
by HK$1,151 million (2021: HK$1,022 million) from directly held financial instruments
and HK$627 million (2021: HK$833 million) from underlying financial instruments of the
Investment Trust as a result of changes in fair value of its financial instruments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This
can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future
cash flows of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Trust is exposed to both fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Trust has
significant investments that are interest bearing.

If there had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, the Trust’s surplus and equity would have been HK$20 million
higher (2021: HK$16 million higher) from directly held financial instruments and HK$297
million lower (2021: HK$351 million lower) from the underlying financial instruments of the
Investment Trust.

The Trust controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and by
investment benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-
HKD/USD exposure. Price risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified
globally, by sectors and by securities. Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark
duration guidelines and by investing across a spectrum of fixed and floating-rate
instruments.
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.1Financial risk factors (cont.)
(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations
as they fall due. In addition, the Trust may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a
price close to fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet
exceptional needs, the Trust maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests
primarily in liquid financial markets and instruments.

The Trust also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting
the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Trust to ensure that
all liabilities due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the
Trust and under the Investment Trust as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity
buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table
below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2022 2021
3fEA 3EAML 3BA SEAML
ESN 15 15t ETNN 15 1FBHLE
Up to >3 months Over Fak) Up to >3 months Over k|
BEAR in HK$ million 3 months  to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
EREERE Held by the Trust
FITEBERE Non-derivative financial liabilities
EEESERR: b EN Allocations awaiting payment 20,980 - - 20,980 19,507 - - 19,507
Investment Trust’ ¥  Held under the Investment Trust
LURRBEEZER Net-settled derivative
fTEyBas financial liabilities 28 53 361 442 39 4 138 181

H2022F6 8308 » E5EE £ Kinvestment TrustFf
BENARFERPIESN RS REEALER151E
6,100 8 7T (20214 : 140184,9008E ) - TRY
202246 430 A K A202156 A30 AMARFEAERIIH
EANELIN  BEEANBRAEEE  WiREH
TEHNEBHBEDEEBRAR - TRATWENRE
AEHNARITRESRE  BEXTESHBMRRERMY
WEREEE (BH{E) TR -

As at 30 June 2022, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts held by the Trust and under the Investment Trust was HK$15,161 million
(2021: HK$14,049 million). The table below analyses the outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 that will be settled on a gross basis
into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows, which are different
from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the statement of financial position.

2022 2021
@A 3MEAML 3EAZ SIfEAMLE
AT 218 1L BT 2E 1L
Upto >3 months Over okl Upto >3 months Over mE
X in HK$ million 3 months  to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months  to 1 year 1 year Total
ETELEE Held by the Trust
REHMNESH Foreign exchange forward contracts
ik Outflows (108) - - (108) @1 - - @1)
RA Inflows 109 - - 109 92 - - 92
Investment TrustiF & Held under the Investment Trust
EHMNESH Foreign exchange forward contracts
T Outflows (12,197)  (2,850) 6  (15053)  (11,330) (2,615 (13)  (13,958)
RA Inflows 12,487 2,890 6 15,383 11,425 2,626 13 14,064
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(c) FEEME

HRMEEASREZHFRUBEN AR AH K
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FERECEREEREIZHUFRIBEE LR
FRURRERRELENFACETRRFNIH
g BEMAZNEERR

A2022%F6H30H ' EHESERZCERMNE
BN RETERRARIENEEMKEEEREE
B BEERSENE (MNKF2.4)

EHEEBRAMN2022F6 308 X2021F6 8308 ' It
ZREBREN12ELFENBREBEN  HETES
WA FARIESEWFEE H T EE -

12.2 EXEREE

ERESEREANRE TRREGTESNEE
HEED  EMERTBRAEZEYRE  SEY
DHREEBRBFEEHN  UARZSFETESBER
RRIFEER -

ERESTHEREER  NMUBRARAFROE
ERE - UBREURZHEMAN  HHSFEHEE
A=l EE o

12.3 DR EEMGE
EENBREERNEI3REE  UATEEHENE
EREE (K2 4)0) k) B THAFEETE
FRELEE  FHERSRBEEMATERHE
BEAYENBEHASBRAIER -

FE . EARRRERTSTHREERSEY
RE CREAR)FTENATEE -
ERRXEERT ST ENEERAEY
HE RFEEABAS B EERMAEE
RIETEEHT SISO GEERGHENA
FEE -

B AT E A FEE (FImFEE
SHRBAN) - EEERITOEMERH A
BUHTERBETERNHEHBNE

&Hl2

WAENS

EREVHNRSNEHRESIZN - X5H - KL -
ERAL EERBEIEERERS  MREHRE
REBAOFRZEEETNEBRNERATEXSHK
BHETSRERRRIERE -

LR BEEMBEN D FEE  DREBERKE
FEUEEHASEITNAMERREEE - HH
REANBASBRTHSBFIE -

ERPIBRBSNIBEE  TRERBEFERRE
BMBETEENSERE - KERENEETDRE
BEESKEREINENESRENCERRENE
RAETFENZEEMEHREMEE

12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.1Financial risk factors (cont.)
(c) Credit risk

The Trust is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able
or willing to perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets measured at
amortised costs (such as loans and receivable, deposits and cash and cash equivalents) fall
due, or when alternative investments and contractual cash flows of debt securities carried
at FVTPL fall due.

The Trust limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits and cash and cash equivalents are only placed with financial
institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2022, the Trust’s maximum exposure to credit risk represents the carrying
amount of such assets recognised in its statements of financial position less the amount of
cash on hand as defined in note 2.4.

Management considered the 12-month expected loss of these receivables as being minimal
as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021. The Trust made no write-offs or provisions for these
receivables during the year.

12.2 Capital risk management

The Trust’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue
as a going concern so as to maintain its charitable contributions as a major public and
community benefactor; and also to support the Trust’s stability and growth.

The Trust monitors its capital which is the same as the Fund shown in its statement of
financial position, to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the
form of donations.

12.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value as
stated in note 2.4(a)(i) by recognising the following fair value measurement hierarchy based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1:  fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2:  fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and
liabilities, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3:  fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow

analysis) in which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis.

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on
quotes from market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs.
The most significant input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of
alternative investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued
based on information derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from
respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.
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12 MBEREE (&)
12.3 R EEME (&)

(a) TRERELELR6H30HRAFIEE
ENWHMBEERER -

12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(a) The following table presents the Trust’s financial assets and liabilities
that were measured at fair value as at 30 June.

2022 2021
& 51 #hl2 #5013 g A FAN2 H A3 iz
BHEET in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE (AfE) Assets/(liabilities)

BRERSTESBT A Investments and derivatives

SERE Alternative investments - - 23,029 23,029 - - 19,934 19,934

BEHS Debt securities - - - - 511 - - 511

fTESmI A Derivative financial instruments - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1

- 1 23,029 23,030 511 1 19,934 20,446

FRESHNBRENERERNEHIBERS (L BRE
EH  BRALFEESAERBINEAREL -

HZE2022F6 3081t K20215E6A30RLLEE £
AESE=BEAFEBEFERD 2 B MmEE -

(b) REBER IR E st H A FEBRETES

The Trust’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among the three fair value hierarchy levels for the years ended 30
June 2022 and 30 June 2021.

(b) The movements of the Trust’s balance of assets and liabilities

EERBELZHEEHUT measured at fair value based on Level 3 were as follows:
BHEET in HK$ million 2022 2021
7H1H At 1 July 19,934 14,784
ERERERN NS A Total gains recognised in income statement 2,327 4,282
A Purchases 3,888 5,654
HE Sales (3,120) (4,786)
6 H30H At 30 June 23,029 19,934
FRFAREREFERERITESRM T ERGH Total gains for the year included in income statement and
ekl presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 2,327 4,282
FARERBRSENEERBET ARERILHE Total gains for the year included in income statement for
RERTE ST ERBHNRETE assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
and presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 1,663 3,286

(c) R202246H30HK20214¥6H30H - i1 &
AR B2 P9 49 2\ B (B B A 1Y 12 (B 455 70 R
ABZUT :

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements
within Level 2 as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 were as follows:

obid] fRERI ERBAZY
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
BREE, af
Financial assets/liabilities

EHIMESH FRAETRE AERER

Foreign exchange forward contracts
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12 MBEREE (&)
12.3 R EEME (&)

(d) H2022%6 530 K2021 %6 H530H ' :1&
REIBAHI A FEERFEFNEAXELEE

12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs within Level 3 as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June

WAZEMEBEBEIERMT : 2021 were as follows:
kil fR{ERI BEREZBEROAZY 1B (nfEF1g)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)
LR, Al
Financial assets/liabilities
BitEESRE EEFE TEA TER
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* * n/a n/a
REREESRE EEFE TEA i A
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* * n/a n/a
HHEESRE EEFE" 8 A TEMH
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
MEEERE EEFE" TEA TEA
Private credit investments Net asset value* * n/a n/a

Y EERPIARBBHRENFEIRERTHE
TEE  WERENEBEDRESESKLEMRER
HNENESHRERCECRENERARETERE
BHUAEREMET  FLESRBMEREE
FERRERENLFEE-

© ERESRTISRE 0 KR2022F6H30R  EEH
B AZAENERGETEEGHTENERT
HEEEERYBREELZRZIOEZI1I20BEEHR
BEMINETRBISREN QX FEEMGTSHEM
e RHREMN202253 831 AR AHTEMEE
CRER  MEERENR2022F4818E6AH30
FHENRERARREELAR  XFEAZSR
BHMXMBEARTHERZIRBE 2 ENE L KTE
B E—STERAR (MMNE)2022F4818F
6 A 30 BRI M fEET @R -

REMBMRRKRMEZBAN2022F6 B30 HNER
BAFER - ZERENGEEREEERRBEL
REAWEREERRIMAEREL  BEEZSRE
HIEBIE

(e) H202246 530 H K 202146530 H it ##FE
HBEEREEULFEEIK -

*

The investments classified as Level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded
in an active market. These have been valued based on information derived from
individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers and
considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary. The Trust has determined that
the reported net asset values represent a fair value of the captioned investments.

Given the volatility in financial markets, as of 30 June 2022, the estimation of the
fair value of certain level 3 investments with valuation only available to investors 90-
120 days after the financial year end has been enhanced, recognizing that the actual
valuation when available may differ from the estimate. In particular, the last available
valuation as of 31 March 2022 is used, adjusted for cash flows into and out of the
investments from 1 April — 30 June 2022, and further assessed and adjusted, if
necessary, for the estimated return from 1 April — 30 June 2022 by utilizing the historical
statistical relationship between such investments with global developed market equities
index.

The fair value of the investments reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position is as of 30 June 2022. The valuation of these investments will vary, based on
its business performance and prevailing market and economic conditions, until the
realization of the investments.

(e) At 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, no non-financial assets or liabilities

were carried at fair value.
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CHARITIES TRUST DONATIO

BETF BEEFTSREGETESEFENTY4
RERLZERTERN  BREILERB ] [HBE
AN TesZERE | R ERESL J RS -

2021/22FE > 5rtE S BN WBREATENG6EE
T ZEH2QEZRERMEIER - HEERFEIIRNGE
103E120H °

NS

Over the past decade, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust has approved an average
of HK$4.5 billion a year in charitable and community donations. These donations are broadly
grouped into four major areas: Community Services; Education and Training; Medical and
Health; and Sports, Recreation and Culture.

In 2021/22, the Trust approved a total of HK$6.6 billion in donations to 292 charitable and
community projects. Details are provided on pages 103 to 120.

APPROVED HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS (HK$M)

EEESEAERTESCERNER (BEBER)

1,000 2,000 3,000

4,000 5,000 6,000

Community services Sports, recreation and culture

HERE BE - Bt

Education and training Medical and health

HERIEI BaEEs:

HK$ 6 | 6 billion

Approved Charitable Donations
TEETEERBESEN
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Charitable and Community Projects
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=R COMMUNITY SERVICES

ERESEXAEERESTEHE Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

BT EEEESMEE-RE  BRAEEY To fund phase two of KeySteps@JC to equip underprivileged children 588,120

BENARER for better growth

BITHREFTLERBEPOLBACIRE  UEH To support the modernisation of Integrated Children and Youth Services 410,100

BTV FENEE Centres to cater for the needs of young people in the 21st century

EEEZHSHEHETIRYE  AHEF=HEA To promote citywide participation in volunteer services for five years 315,000
and three months

BRI EEESYRETRYENE I WEFTE To support the expansion and one-year extension of the Jockey Club 308,000

ER—FUZERETRENEYER Food Assistance Programme

BT EEESTERIHEE=H BERERE To implement phase three of the Trust-initiated Jockey Club End-of- 263,930

TEBENER  BERREREEEEUARBRLLE Life Community Care Project, extending its coverage and strengthening

ZER community end-of-life services, based on learning from the pandemic

ET EESERLGEIE_H Y To implement phase two of the Trust-initiated Jockey Club SMART 172,470

RREEHELBTHEREER  REFH Family-Link project, and to enhance its i-Connect system, in response
[i-Connect /SR ERERBKEREEFTENT to the new COVID-19 normal
B U BHEAREBTHEENRSEE

BRIESSE£AIKRNRE ] THBITERE To scale up the Jockey Club First-Time Jobseekers Professional 73,000
V16EFITEAG  UXERBETEELENS Traineeship Programme (PROcruit C), creating 16 caring job roles and
ERSBE o boosting the post-pandemic career trajectory of graduates
BT _RAKEREBREREXEIZOSH To support 12 NGOs to distribute “LeaveHomeSafe” enabled 27,000
TINEREF IR HEFERIEE smartphones to underprivileged elderly and to provide user training
BHANTHEZRITHNE FEEHNE To provide tide-over meals to over 4,400 home-bound, frail and 4,100
EREFRIRERT THBIERERE vulnerable elderly in the community during the fifth wave of the

pandemic
ESSFEMARSEHES Jockey Club COVID-19 Emergency Fund
EEF ESENEMABRZENES @ To provide additional funding for the Jockey Club COVID-19 Emergency 84,641
2081 BRI RS XE - REHL208IBTH Fund, supporting 208 community organisations to implement 208
FRGME R B ENFLLE initiatives for vulnerable groups
EFSHERERYES Jockey Club Community Sustainability Fund 858
BONELSCEERARDVER XKD —#E To support Wofoo Social Enterprises Limited to implement phase two of
B% |F/ RS EFEECIEER > AEAER the primary one transition support project for six months
ESSRSENES Jockey Club Emergency Relief Fund
REBSENT To provide assistance to:
HENSRBEREHBRSSEREN+ =@ 12 families and individuals to meet their urgent or special needs 513
RERM@ERI AL - a0 RELE S FHtH « X arising from crises or unexpected circumstances, e.g. the loss of a
BEREBERRIERIPERTIERED breadwinner, sudden death of a family member or incapacity caused by

an accident
TEARKEIABELELENAEARE Six families affected by natural disasters, emergencies or crises 277
BEYTEBRERFTHN/ERA  LLHEE Eight patients to meet medical expenses arising from a fatal disease or 566
ETES - BRlAESF i serious illness requiring urgent/special medical treatment or surgery
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ZEGTEESER

NEZEESERAA Bo Charity Foundation Limited
B ELPHRIPRBYEERBRETAD To support the development of a centralised food production facility in 293,600
=ENRERYEE Sha Tin and the implementation of a three-year elderly food assistance
programme
REBEKEEER Po Leung Kuk Law’s Foundation School
FEABYSUEEREER The Church of Christ in China Mongkok Church Kai Oi School
ERATFERENEBULER Hong Kong Red Cross Margaret Trench School
RE=RREEER Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Tsui Tsin Tong School
EERHREER Hong Chi Shiu Pong Morninghope School
FEAESHSEIEER The Church of Christ in China Kei Shun Special School
EENBE=R Hong Chi Pinehill No.3 School
RERERER (AAF) B8R Po Leung Kuk Anita L. L. Chan (Centenary) School
REBHRBEERMNBERER Po Leung Kuk Mr. & Mrs. Chan Pak Keung Tsing Yi School
EERBENERERELSER SAHK B M Kotewall Memorial School
BEREBHERKE Hong Kong Christian Service
ERYE KRB The Education University of Hong Kong
ETESEERFE |28 EE_RE A To implement phase two of the Jockey Club Experiential Learning 86,980
H=+<1EA Project for students with special education needs for 36 months
KESY Fu Hong Society
memEg The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council
FERHESS New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association
BBBEHE SAHK
BUREISRAEBRERERBEFOLEREA( To support the modernisation of sheltered workshops and integrated 75,650
I vocational rehabilitation services centres
EBRELAGEEERAPL Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre
EREBYLEEY Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association
EREEHS St. James’ Settlement
Rttt = The Salvation Army
BEEBRE The University of Hong Kong
BIT—HAH=FMNE UAXSIREFE To implement a three-year project for families with children residing in 47,740
REEREREFZMNETES - sub-divided units who have been adversely impacted by the pandemic
EEEEEE Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing
BIRARBEZMETREUTH To carry out building renovation for service enhancement 36,920
EEHE Caritas - Hong Kong
ETHEESS[R  HIZROBIERE - To implement the Caritas Jockey Club Project on Family Solidarity and 25,400

RAE=%F

Mental Wellness for three years
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Organisation/Purpose Amount (HK$’000)

THEEERERAS
BETREEDHE  HBZREIENREE
REURE AEtTNEA

Physical Fitness Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

To implement an 18-month programme to help the elderly become 25,340
active again and regain physical health during the pandemic

BEHES

ERRBARDR

E LN

BT EEERNERREFESXETE B
H=F

The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council
Hong Kong Women Development Association Limited
The Chinese University of Hong Kong

To implement an integrated support project for the elderly with mild 23,160
cognitive impairment

ENL N

EHBAE

RE=R

BT -REBERIAELRMY REMNG
g RH=F

The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Caritas - Hong Kong
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

To implement a three-year project to support socially isolated elderly 19,280
through intergenerational engagement

BEEPXAE
EFARETESSRIEIEESE A=
F

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

To implement the Jockey Club “Confront Pain with Ease” project in New 18,420
Territories East

BEREFEE

DN
HEBEREAERFHEANRESEHEREE
N UXEEENGASERETHNEHRE

FE

Hong Kong Association of Gerontology
The University of Hong Kong

To build capacity for bereavement services and provide mental health 16,560
support for healthcare practitioners during the pandemic

EHBAE
ETESHEREMROBETS - AHP=F

Caritas - Hong Kong

To fund a three-year project to tackle cyber sexual violence in 13,540
secondary schools

EREREAENE
BYRIREEEHEREDL  EHALRE
XERY  BEXEREFERBTHHREZE

The Hong Kong Society for the Aged

To fund the establishment and operation of a virtual elderly centre and 13,280
to support the social needs of the elderly during the pandemic

BEHES
BT - BEAARARENBEEREREZERE
MRNEEZETE  BBH=F

The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council

To implement a three-year community support project for elderly 12,650
singletons and doubletons suffering from cognitive decline

HRAE

BEHES

CEERRAF
BEHEBRENEXEERMIIRENER -
RE=F

Lingnan University

The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council

Yan Oi Tong Limited

To support isolated elderly through gerontechnology for three years 12,500
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ZEGTEESER

ERARERANE Hong Kong Family Welfare Society
BEIREGRZEE To implement programmes to support conflict resolution in families 12,430
ERFEHEINGHLEREP L (FBFHEL Aberdeen Kaifong Welfare Association Social Service Centre
BR%)
BHERESS =K - XFEIFHE=F A To extend the Jockey Club Kinship Support Project for three years to 11,810
HRBRMZE provide grandparenting support
ERBELHE Hong Kong Association of Careers Masters and Guidance Masters

Limited
FERHEER New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association
BEEHAE Caritas - Hong Kong
REI1SEABRSZE EHEBEEETEFH To support an 18-month programme to address an upsurge in student 10,560
BREREM EFREZEESHEERERIE suicides due to mental health problems, learning disruptions and family
FEEEENRE  UREAHIEGRE conflicts during the pandemic
EREAEEANHREERLT Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
BIT—EHAH=FME  UZXERKREMSH To support a three-year project for children from substance-abuse 9,980
REENEEREREZEMERE families who are facing heightened risks during the pandemic
EREIKRE The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
AT EHEBAIERGERERRESHEE To pilot a two-year Al-based screening and prevention programme for 9,100
KEtEl > BHWE knee pain
BEREEE The Society of Rehabilitation & Crime Prevention,Hong Kong
FRREERFEEEEERE  AHMED To develop and operate its Case and Data Management System for two 9,080
@A years and four months
AEBRBBEERHEMBRNEARIEEE Radio and Promotion Programmes for NGO Partners
EITRAFBNEEMBNEAEETS 81 To launch radio promotional programmes for NGOs, including the 8,850
HEREE - ENEESAHEIAEE L production and broadcast of a 104-week series of the one-hour The
Al AE—BZTNE Way We Are show on Commercial Radio
EREREEAENEG The Hong Kong Society for the Aged
ENEARREETESSRIE IEETE To implement the Jockey Club “Confront Pain with Ease” project in 8,360
AE=F Kowloon West and Eastern districts for three years
EREBYLEESY Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association
BITREFHRZETE To implement programmes to support conflict resolution in families 8,300
BEBRLAPBHEES The Hong Kong Catholic Marriage Advisory Council
BOEREFERES50+RRIBEMETRE = To extend the Jockey Club Refocusing Love 50 Plus Project for three 8,270

FAEHERSHNFERERNGRELE
&

years to help young-old couples cope with marital crisis
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Organisation/Purpose Amount (HK$’000)

MEZRERAFA
BYRARATE - RP=F

Harmony House Limited

To implement a domestic violence prevention programme for three 8,200
years

BRWEEHEE

ETXERSEAREREBEENIRES
g8 AH=%F

Hong Kong Wheelchair Aid Service Limited

To implement an outreach support project for elderly wheelchair users 8,180
and their caregivers for three years

BRBEGS
REABESSEREFRBIL - WHETREK
ATEREERRYE R85

SAHK

To relocate and renovate its Jockey Club Rehabilitation Seating Service 8,080
Centre and to support rehabilitation seating services for persons with

physical disabilities for one year

EEBCARE

ERNEARE
BYRUREERBEEEMAY  WRERE
EERIBTHESD

Hong Kong Shue Yan University
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

To fund the establishment and operation of a website for caregivers and 7,260
to help alleviate pressures upon them during the pandemic

EBHARERB PO

EAERETESSREIEIEETE > A=
£

Christian Family Service Centre

To implement the Jockey Club “Confront Pain with Ease” project in 6,990
Kowloon East for three years

EREBERLEFS
BET-BAABBEERREREEZEREMRMNE
BXETE - AH=F

Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association

To implement a community support project for elderly singletons and 6,610
doubletons in Western District for three years

EREBERLEFE
BT -—HEUEEEERBEXEHRREN
g BH=F

Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association

To implement a three-year tele-rehabilitation project to support elderly 6,450
people discharged from hospital

BERELERDBE
ETLARYE  REBNZENRNIBMH B
H=F

Association Concerning Sexual Violence Against Women

To carry out a three-year public education project to support early 5,700
identification of child sexual abuse

HSLEFEERDE
ETARERBEIMRNWBHIRTE - B
H=F

Body-Mind-Spirit Platform Limited

To implement a three-year mindfulness training project for social 5,590
workers in family services

BR-BFLOUBRREBERLA
BETESSERBELLZEATHEE-HR A
=%

Teen’s Key - Young Women Development Network Limited

To implement phase two of the Jockey Club Teen’s Key Walk with Girls 5,540
Project for three years
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ZEEREESEX

= (TExT)

Organisation/Purpose Amount (HK$’000)

ERERAEEEERARDL
EFABETESSRIEIEENS A=
F

Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre

To implement the Jockey Club “Confront Pain with Ease” project in New 4,490
Territories South for three years

EMBKEERAT Suicide Prevention Services Limited

BT BABR=FNRERSRSTE To enhance its hotline system over three years 4,050
BiEe ROADS

ETHEREBBLEFE > REME To implement a two-year active ageing programme for the elderly living 2,580

in the community

HERIBEEARAR
ETZEREREBBEEFHE  AEME

Social Innovation Charity Limited

To implement a two-year active ageing programme for the elderly living 2,330
in residential care homes

FHRARE Mother’s Choice Limited
BEHBIMER S ERTE To fund its pregnant girls service 3,330
EE® Hong Chi Association

BN EIE MR A L R RS A D ET B

To fund its Enhancing Employability of People with Intellectual 3,300
Disabilities through Social Enterprise projects

BERAAYERHES The Hong Kong Catholic Marriage Advisory Council

BB EHRBAMEREE To fund its Family Mediation Service project 3,279
it E The Salvation Army

BHEIER  REIREZERL To fund its Family-friendly Community-Based project 3,270
MEZRERD T Harmony House Limited

BYEBEQA 5 E To fund its Moving Forward Against Domestic Violence project 3,246
REFRAR Voltra Limited

BB E Eith B ZE R To fund its Glocal Leader Training programme 3,265
KEMBERAR Adventure-Ship Limited

BOEESLEFEWHEE To fund its Nautical Adventure Life Education project 3,247
NEREESERAA Bo Charity Foundation Limited

BOHEERERELEXIEE To fund its Food Angel community support programme for the elderly 3,158
BERBEAEHE Hong Kong Playground Association

BHEIFEERE |58 To fund its Unusual Academy 3,120
FEREAEBHE XERLQR Principal Chan Free Tutorial World Limited

RUESEBHBRERFENATERIE
VEBLAEFDZE+TAZENHERRNHE
AL R HIBIE A BE R Bl

To fund equal access programmes for the underprivileged and to 3,077
support children aged 15-40 months with pre-school activities
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Organisation/Purpose Amount (HK$’000)

EFEREE Jockey Club CADENZA Hub

BOHEREREL EHEETE To fund its Outreach Programme for Promoting Health for Older People 2,984
RIRBE B ERR AR Make a Difference Institute Limited

BOHEESE[AITE 2k To fund its Jockey Club Make A Difference School 2,913
BRREENE Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong

BB E A REMEHE To fund its Inclusive Art project 2,869
EMBEERDT Suicide Prevention Services Limited

BBHEGRIT - MREERE To fund its Outreach Befriending Service for Suicidal Elderly 2,877
DREAREER Ebenezer School and Home for the Visually Impaired

BEERE D REHE T ERF To fund its Early Intervention Programme for Visually Impaired Children 2,801
BEREEE The Society of Rehabilitation & Crime Prevention, Hong Kong

BB EZ MG B To fund its Project OASIS 2,658
EFEEER Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing

BEHKECEEENBEESIIREEXE To fund its Caregiver Training and Community Support in Dementia 2,591
AR Care

EBBEEETHE Hong Kong Sea Cadet Corps

BB EZ I AR5 To fund its core training programmes 2,587
BEBHNEE The Society for the Aid & Rehabilitation of Drug Abusers

EBOHEREHER REE285E To fund its peer counsellor and internship schemes 2,507
BEREYBREESERAT The Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Care Foundation Limited
BOEREGCRAEYZERREE To fund its education programme for the elderly in the use of medicine 2,430
BEBATFTE Hong Kong Red Cross

BYEA+FEFREMRIREEZRTE To fund its Red Cross Youth Leaders and Trainers Development project 2,404
EREAHEDR The Hong Kong Society for the Blind

BOHERBATIREERP O To fund its Family Resource Centre for the Visually Impaired 2,389
EREREARNSG The Hong Kong Society for the Aged

BEHEERS D - AEREDESE To fund its Elder-Friendly Employment Practice 2,334
HEBYERACZSH IR Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong

BB HERRIER To fund its Kwai Chung care network 2,300
BERAPADES Hong Kong Blind Union

BB H&EE 5 B2 To fund its E-Learning For All project 2,130
IRREBERBEIHE Association for Engineering & Medical Volunteer Services

BYEERMTER To fund its Information Technology Solutions for Rehabilitation 2,098

109



CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS

HEETETEX

= (FTExT)
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HhERE
BHHBRERBERIERE

Heep Hong Society

To fund its outside school support for students with special education 2,034
needs and their families

EEALRM

BHHEHAI R |AX - BRERTHE

The Friends of Scouting
To fund its Know the Future — Non-engaged Youth Counselling scheme 2,004

BHRERERRSY Parents’ Association of Pre-School Handicapped Children

BYHEHIRE - KB - HER 58 To fund its HOPE - Parents’ Networking project 1,945

HMEBERES The Samaritans

BOHEEBEREETRE To fund its Ageing Well with Youth Intergenerational programme 1,872

BERLUEELS The Hong Kong Girl Guides Association

BOHIRELARRERE | BRARE To fund its Intergenerational Responsible Citizenship project 1,760

b5 30)] TREATS

BYEREREVFLRABRERTE To fund its Social Inclusion Project for Children and Youth in Hong 1,700
Kong

EARARERMNE Hong Kong Family Welfare Society

BEHB ZAIFT X5 To fund its The Bridge to Competence project 1,679

BRAEBEREHEHRD Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre

B EENT AL E To fund its Human Re-engineering Project for Building a Better 1,678
Community

B The Comfort Care Concern Group

BEHFERETE To fund its Comfort Care and Support for the Bereaved 1,667

fFEEEFEREERRAA Against Child Abuse Limited

BYEIEZ2EWH I REFHTE To fund its Healthy Start Home Visiting project 1,527

BEBIRETESE The Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong Limited

BB HEKEEETE To fund its Second Chance programme 1,462

KEE Fu Hong Society

BYMEERE TS To fund its “Casa Famiglia” project 1,427

EAHBAERLERE The Samaritan Befrienders Hong Kong

BEER L ERHEE To fund its suicide prevention education project 1,420

HEEBHRERKH O Christian Family Service Centre

BBHBE « BRET:TE To fund its Walk with YOU — Family Cohesion project 1,389
BEREAERANGEERAR Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
BOHERMEFEIVIUZELHEERERERS To fund its ARISE IV project, supporting ethnic minority children and 1,365
DE youth

BEBERLERBEE International Social Service, (Hong Kong Branch)

BYBAETAENET — KR I5TE

To fund its Support Project for Families with Young Kids 1,354
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FEEFEAREGRAR China Coast Community Limited

BUWEIFRELERERNWRERE TS To fund its Subsidy Package for Comprehensive Social Security 1,313
Allowance Recipients

ZREEBERAT Hans Andersen Club Limited

BHEIBRETERIGE To fund its Sunshine Community in Tai O 1,309

BERERGAEDS The Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association

BOHEMELREE |- ERREXZERE To fund its SHARE Project — A Comprehensive Support Service for 1,105
Families of Children with Down Syndrome

BERRERES Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children

BHEIE % 2BIRELFFEV To fund its Whole Learning project (Phase V) 1,260

BeR Sik Sik Yuen

BEEIZEm e REFHKXIFTE To fund its Cherish Our Life: Enhancing Psychological Well-being of 1,099
Elders programme

MEELE Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association

BYEMEREREELBERRE To fund its Community Rehabilitation Service for Pneumoconiosis 1,062
Patients and Their Family Members programme

EEEET Chung Sing Benevolent Society

BUHEIBELEE | KGEEHE To fund its Elderly Lifelong Learning project 942

BERARETEEES The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong

BYHELEEH A E To fund its community-level sexuality education programme 884

EFERNBESEFEPL Jockey Club Cheung Chau Don Bosco Youth Centre

BYEEBRSFRETWMESIIFE To fund its Adventure Based Counselling Programme for Youth in Hong 820
Kong

EAEERES Street Sleepers’ Shelter Society Trustees Incorporated

BOHEFTEBREZR To fund its Wanchai Homeless People Shelter 772
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CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS
ZEGTEESER

BB KIEd EDUCATION AND TRAINING

ERESEXAEERESTEHE Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

BT EEERBERIGTEE KR BB To support phase two of C-for-Chinese@JC to drive the creation, 266,870

LB EHEEE | EHHEEEESFEFES execution and adoption of culturally responsive education for non-

RXHEWEY  HITRERR Chinese speaking students in kindergartens

EREEEESRES - BINTRLEEES To expand the Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarships — Overseas 98,400

HREHEZREIINBAE  AHEF B Graduate Scholarships to four more universities for five years

2023/24 2 FFta commencing in the 2023/24 academic year

EEARERUNEBEERLF  WEBAABREE To extend the Talent Development Secretariat for five years 43,500

£

TEESEAINEREUC STEM Lab)KIRRE To support JC STEM Lab’s impact sharing and publicity initiatives 4,500

PEREELE

BERRIKE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

BAPARESE[E | ARRFTENRE - LR To fund and scale up the CUHK Jockey Club Al for the Future project 98,020

FHBENHFE D - RHPWEF for four years

Generation: You Employed (HK) Limited Generation: You Employed (HK) Limited

EREEYEFE - STEREEER YMCA of Hong Kong - YMCA College of Careers

RE=RREEER Tung Wah Group Of Hospitals Tsui Tsin Tong School

FEABYSEEEREFER The Church of Christ in China Mongkok Church Kai Oi School

PEEEHSEIEER The Church of Christ In China Kei Shun Special School

AREESRELARMUETRT  AHEF To implement a new five-year learning pathway to support students with 86,170
mild intellectual disabilities

BEBAE The University of Hong Kong

BITESE 24X 0E IFEREUVLTENSE To scale up the Jockey Club “Peace and Awareness” Mindfulness 40,000

PR BEEBIRE—SHEREZISSHER Culture in 85 schools during the pandemic

BILEM BERIENEORE  EHERS

R BRE

BEBPIXKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

EBEEAE Hong Kong Baptist University

HEREEENNESHEEN  EA24ERE To develop an effective blended model in the new COVID-19 normal to 34,450

BRETHERNBEEEZRE N AH=F improve student agency over three years

BEBPIXKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

ETESEBEEE I ERERPEZIHE To implement the Jockey Club VR Project for Chinese Language 32,460

& BE=+NMEA Education Il for 39 months

BERBYERE The Education University of Hong Kong

BITAH=FHNHERBEREMZEREHE To carry out a three-year project to develop animation and other 25,040

BrtE E)BEEFREBNEX multimedia experiences in support of classical Chinese learning in

primary schools
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EREBRRBE
EERLRRFHERAEDHEEEFIZEM
NEBHERIBEFE(ER BRIBAFE] U
ERZEEZRREERERNNRERREEE
g

Hong Kong Christian Service

To produce interactive educational “KeySteps@JC Wonder Boxes” for 17,360
kindergarten students during pandemic-related school closures

EBHPUARE
REBFHBERETE _RROBE - 71E
MBBRORAE  BH=F

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

To implement phase two of a monitoring, evaluation and learning 12,080
capacity-building programme for the NGO sector over three years

EERNEAE
RRUBFEHENZER IAINERERM
&

The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Data Science 10,000
Foundations

EANEKRE The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
ARVESE[BLEEY IARERETRMIE To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Regenerative Biology 10,000
BEKE The University of Hong Kong

RRUBFE[ REMBNSE e RE (BRET
FEBR) IANERZERHEXE

To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Advanced Materials 10,000
and Intelligent Manufacturing for Energy and Sustainability

BEBEZEARE Hong Kong Baptist University
ARIESEMtEFRT ARNERERETE To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of ChemProbes 10,000
BERRIKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

ARIBFEBAMBEEBEIREANE
RERMZE

To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Nature-inspired 10,000
Precision Medical Engineering

BEKE The University of Hong Kong

ARVESE( S FEEIANERTREXE To support the setting up of the STEM Lab of Molecular Imaging 10,000
BEKE The University of Hong Kong

ARVESE[LE=#RFENARNERE To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Advanced 3DIC 10,000
RMHZE Technology

EEAZ
RRUBFE(ZHERKBEE ANERE
REXE

The University of Hong Kong

To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Multimedia and 10,000
Machine Learning

EBEHAE
RRUBFE[LEZARANBZRER AR
ERERMHXE

City University of Hong Kong

To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Advanced Multiphase 10,000
Flow Science for Zero-Carbon Energy

BEPIRE
ARUBFE[ATIERNBETRE AINER
ERMHE

Chinese University of Hong Kong

To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Al for Science and 10,000
Engineering
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EREIKRE The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

ARVESEHIRE ARNEREREXE To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Earth Observations 9,970
BEBPIKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

ARVESEHABREBEEE AIRERE To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Stem Cells and 9,940
REZE Regenerative Medicine

BEBPXKE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

ARVESE[ BN TEELIARNERER To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Intelligent Design 9,910
R E Automation

BEBPIKE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

BRUVBEE[ANER|ANEREREES To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Astronomical 9,860
HEKRAFIRMZIE Instrumentation and Jockey Club Spectroscopy Survey System

BEKE The University of Hong Kong

ARVESE[EMREHAZ BIRERER To support the setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Robotics for Soft 8,510
& Materials

BERHBEKRE The Education University of Hong Kong

EELRREHEAME N —BLREERS To produce “Jockey Club STARt-up Resource Kits” for primary two 7,110

FOEERAERS ] WESBEEAREESR
BERHRERREAES

students studying at home during pandemic-related school closures

EXRITERRER Agency for Volunteer Service

BEHSEARTHEE To fund its Volunteer Talent Bank 2,015
BB ERAERAR AFS Intercultural Exchanges Limited

BB E BN REE To fund its AFS Intercultural Exchanges Sending programme 1,944
ERARRYEEE Hong Kong Parent Education Association

BOHEILEBREIRRHAE To fund its “Family Embrace” Parent Education programme 1,697
EERBEE A Life Education Activity Programme

BEHERHARE To fund its special needs programme 736
OO ERATHS Direction Association for the Handicapped

BREIMEmREE - RREVAIFHE To fund its Hopeful Life project 664
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BEEL MEDICAL AND HEALTH

BEREBHLEFS Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association

EEBHHE TR ERE United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service

EREEHE St James’ Settlement

HEHRERBKH O Christian Family Service Centre

BEBPIXKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

HIT—EAH=FNPFEALTETZERZT To pilot a lifestyle modification project for middle-aged people over 94,460
£ three years

BB RIS AR A E CarbonCare InnoLab Limited

BYME=HEEG ARG EEETE To implement phase three of the Jockey Club SolarCare Programme 72,240
ERFHSENELERER L (BBFHERL Aberdeen Kai-fong Welfare Association Social Services

BHR#%)

EEYERERELERBE Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service

EEBYBENS Haven of Hope Christian Service

EREBHLEES Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association

EREEHE St. James’ Settlement

BEBEEE The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation

BEY The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society

HEHH ST R L ERE United Christian Nethersole Community Health Services

BEETIRIE I HEXETE To support community programmes for people with Long COVID 58,510
BERELAEREAGEERAR Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited

EBRFHHENELERER L (BBFHERL Aberdeen Kaifong Welfare Association Social Service Centre

BR#%)

EREBHLEFY Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association

HEBHRERKEH O Christian Family Service Centre

EREEHE St James’ Settlement

EBYBENS Haven of Hope Christian Service

EBPYARE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

BHEREHHAERREAFTZLHF IR To support the extension and expansion of support programmes for 39,520
2 REWE vulnerable groups during the pandemic for two years

REAERABITEER Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

BBy IR E B RHE AR BRFE - LAFERHE by To fund service enhancement for psychiatric patients, particularly those 36,800
RERERENER  RERRRBEHREGE with worsened mental health as a result of the pandemic

REZZNHEA

ERELAEREAGE Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council

BEBEFER Hong Kong Association of Gerontology

EEYERERELERE Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service

RE=PR Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

BEREBHRKE Hong Kong Christian Services

BYERERSETIRITISRIXETE To fund special post COVID-19 support programmes in residential care 32,810

homes for the elderly
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ZEGTEESER

EFSEANARSEARAREERLH

The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited

HF R REMER Tuen Mun Public Riding School

BEIARBGRERRAGRE LS To support its solar photovoltaic system development project 24,110

ERLEREHSE The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

[EERNTERBRA2019BRESRER To provide COVID-19 RAT kits to eligible non-governmental 20,220

FERAEL  HEATSRE TERIRERR & E organisations, helping front-line workers monitor their heath condition

FESHEFE and meeting urgent community needs

ERRES The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation

HEEHRER®E O Christian Family Service Centre

EEEKR Pok Oi Hospital

NEHEE The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society, Kowloon

ERFHHSENELERER L (BBFHERL Aberdeen Kaifong Welfare Association Social Service Centre

BR%)

EEYBEENHS Haven of Hope Christian Service

BEREBHLEFS Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association

EREEHE St James’ Settlement

ETEREE Jockey Club CADENZA Hub

BUETESS I REBEE I REE To implement a six-month Jockey Club Affordable Outpatient Services 19,280

2 EERRRBEHEAFFEMAREARM Subsidy Scheme, offering affordable outpatient services to non-

AEENMPRE > BEXEA COVID-19 patients during the fifth wave of the pandemic

BERERSE The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation

BEEBRE The University of Hong Kong

BITHESBEEELEXENE > AH=F To implement a three-year community support project for those with 17,830
Parkinson’s disease

BEBRLEEEE The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong

BITAERURERECEEMBNRERE To implement a three-year early intervention project for men with mental 16,360

5TEl - REB=F health problems

BEBHPXKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

BT R | BIEE R 2R R TG To implement Long COVID digital interventions and service evaluations 15,590

BERERSE The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation

W ESEHEERPRL — EEBH O To renovate the Jockey Club Community Rehabilitation Network — Wang 15,500
Tau Horn Centre

BREER (BEER) (EBBITHRELS Hospital Authority (Pok Oi Hospital) (HKSAR Community Projects

ERhEtEl) List)

BYERESZANOEER  BBM=F To implement a three-year Smart Geriatric Day Hospital project 14,340

BERELAEEAGEERAA Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited

ABERERERRSHTWHLESETE To implement a community support project for children with medical 12,830
issues

EREBHLEES Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association

BITASERRYEMR2ZEE > BH= To implement a support project for young children with speech 10,500

F

impairment
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Suicide Prevention Services Limited
ETAR=ZFNREEBRETRE  XER
RIEMEBRETCEERZEHRE

Suicide Prevention Services Limited

To implement a three-year bereavement support and befriending service 10,340
to meet demand arising from the pandemic

BREERGRERS
AREERGAENREREIAETZEN
EXETE > BH=F

The Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association

To implement a three-year holistic wellness support project for ageing 8,380
persons with Down syndrome and their families

BREHRARDE
ENTHEARBRRIETHOERUMDE
g AH=F

The Green Earth Limited

To support the “Leave No Trace” for Sustainable Nature Environmental 8,000
programme for three years

EELBS BT R EERE
BB EESENETERES L

United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service

To renovate its Jockey Club Wo Lok Community Health Centre in Kwun 4,880
Tong

ERFHSBANEHEREF L (FEFHEH
2RH%)

BETEARLA

hEEREE

BURRGCBERERY  WESERREET
HENHERR - RBNEAR

Aberdeen Kaifong Welfare Association Social Service Centre

Health In Action Limited
The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society, Kowloon

To support the service expansion of community pharmacies for nine 4,570
months during the fifth wave of the pandemic

EREEHE St James’ Settlement
BITHRBEREIRATE  BERE To implement a two-year capacity-building programme on upcycling 4,480
BMEAIRLERAR Enable Foundation Limited

ETESS[BYEIRISLEE S AEmF

To implement the Jockey Club “Objects-Talk” Empathic Ecologies 3,580
Education project for two years

&L
WREI > UIERKS BRI — FEmHEH
Iy

The Conservancy Association

To provide a supplementary grant to support the establishment of an 1,930
urban forestry centre in Sham Shui Po

EEYHE BT ZEERE
BYEHERERMES

United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service
To fund its Community Geriatric Health Maintenance programme 3,228

EHYBREERETLESERAE
BEVESH DU [ EE X ERT

Maggie Keswick Jencks Cancer Caring Centre Foundation Limited

To fund its Maggie’s Emotional and Psychosocial Cancer Support 2,969
programme

EBREAGHEHRR AP
BYAEDEEGFAEIIRBETE

Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre

To fund its Chinese Herbs Employment Training and Education 1,616
programme

EBIAREDD
BB H RO SR B R 2 B e TAERIETE)

Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited

To fund its Working Together to Enhance Health and Safety Culture and 540
Workplace Improvement programme
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CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS

ZEGTESEX
BE  EBE#RL SPORTS, RECREATION AND CULTURE
ERESEXAEERESTEHE Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives
188)2022/23 FE REBR P N RETH To fund Tai Kwun’s public programmes in 2022/23 92,300
188)2022/23 FE R EEFEFT & EEIB To fund Tai Kwun’s operating deficit in 2022/23 63,100
ERABANTREN L -_THEASF The 25th anniversary of the establishment of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region

EREBEINTHRER L -_THEEFH— To support a series of programmes to mark the 25th anniversary of the 630,000
?%EIJIE = establishment of the HKSAR
EHRMAREITRR Pokfulam Public Riding School
BB ERERMN A REITER To fund the redevelopment of Pokfulam Public Riding School 353,400
RBEHR Home Affairs Bureau
RE—%8TE A EBRHFEE IR To provide a one-off injection to support the establishment of a special 150,000
SRIES fund for the Sports Science and Research Funding Scheme
BERBKLEFZEETES Hong Kong Water Sports Charitable Trust
B EREREZEK EFEHPOURBFEFER To fund the construction of a water sports centre in Kai Tak and water 82,740
FRRRA T ERK EEEFE > AH=F sports programmes for different age groups and the disabled for three

years

EREREDE Hong Kong PHAB Association
EERMNESSERENERARENER To build a multi-service centre for the elderly and persons with 78,190
AL MR Z TR H O disabilities at the Jockey Club PHAB Camp in Pokfulam
BREFEZEES Elite Athlete Charitable Trust
BHHBRE BRHERBEERTE B To fund the Active School, Community and Academy Programme for 60,360
H=%F three years
ERMAEROERAT (EBRATHELS Hong Kong Chronicles Institute Limited (HKSAR Community
EBhEtEl) Projects List)
BEKEBLR) HRSB =1 To publish three more books under the Hong Kong Chronicles project 54,000
ERENMTHEERAT Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited
BE2023 F A BEMA N BEEEFTEELEER To fund The Hong Kong Jockey Club Student Matinee Programme, 30,390

HE| [EEERERAERI] - [FEE Jockey Club Local Creative Talents Series and HKartsFestival@TaiKwun
fiifi@KEE | R2025F B BEMB EEBERS programmes for 2023 and The Hong Kong Jockey Club Series for the

2RARYIEHE 2025 Hong Kong Arts Festival

ERERERDE Riding for the Disabled Association Limited

i%&@@%%ﬁ&&fﬁﬁ%%m 5D E &5 To support rehabilitative riding programmes and the Junior Para 27,610
 RHI=F Equestrian Squad for three years
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B D REIER

Tuen Mun Public Riding School

B H2022/23 F EME B FEIE To support its net operating deficit in 2022/23 27,260

B RAEAERIEERBRLQA Design and Cultural Studies Workshop Limited

EEERAEMMENPEXCENKETE To organise the Chinese Culture Education Programme through Arts 25,860

ENRFERTAZERNESRELRER and Technology for secondary and primary schools for 44 months under

T - HHEA+E A the new COVID-19 normal

ERRERYEERAT (EBBITHRELS Hong Kong Maritime Museum Limited (HKSAR Community Projects

EBhEtEl) List)

B TFEEESEMREWMEES To fund construction of The Anchor Plaza, featuring arts tech 24,070
components

BEREMBHEERAA Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited

EW023F [HERS 5TEI To organise the “No Limits” Project in 2023 19,030

BEREBEIRBEERSEAEER (EBHAT College of Professional and Continuing Education Limited (HKSAR

BELEERETE) Community Projects List)

RUBMAMRERERERARKAERE A To support the setting up of an Arts Tech Lab and organisation of a 18,740

H=%F series of arts tech public education programmes for three years

BB T AE City University of Hong Kong

ENSOFEMRBEHAETENEELEH To fund the Youth Arts and Technology Education Programme for Social 17,020

Rl REA=F Inclusion for three years

BRINELEERREAREERLT (BB Hong Kong & Macau Intangible Cultural Heritage Research Centre

BRTHELEERTE) Limited (HKSAR Community Projects List)

ERESSEREREZWMAGE BH=F To fund the Jockey Club Mao Chun-fai Theatrical Arts Study Scheme 14,500
for three years

HEMBRATR Musicus Society Limited

ERBEFEY  BHEITE USHLRESR To fund the three-year Jockey Club Musicus Heritage Stories 13,590

BEEX  BH=F programme

EEXALEERAE Association Culturelle France - Hong Kong Limited

EW2022 FEE R B 176 To fund the French May Arts Festival 2022 10,500

A ARBITER Lei Yue Mun Public Riding School

BN H2022/23 FE M EIEFEIE To support its net operating deficit in 2022/23 9,300

NREMBR Public Riding School

EE— S TRWE  URHSEEERRIFT LD To carry out further engineering studies to assess proposals for the new 8,220

REMBRNEZR public riding school in Tseung Kwan O

FRERERAT Passoverdance Limited

BOEREZERSVRENE > BH=F To fund its dance and well-being project for the elderly for three years 8,180

BEREEHSE The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups

ENRESEBENRERHubETE] BB=F To organise the “Jockey Club Intergenerational H.E.Y. Hub Project” for 6,570

three years
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BEHPFERER D Happy-Retired Charity Action
ERNEATIRREEHRREER To fund a sports and wellness project for young-olds and the elderly 5,930
EBEIAE The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
TN AR EIRAE > BERE To fund the Inter-generation Play Space Enhancement Project for two 4,990
years
SERMAREMTER Pokfulam Public Riding School
BN H2022/23 FEMEEFEIE To support its net operating deficit in 2022/23 1,860
BEBZLEERLT Hong Kong String Orchestra Limited
BOHEIESES425E8 ] A=F To fund its Power of Music+ programme for three years 3,300
BERESFEMnE Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation
BEE[EELE I EEMTTE To fund its stART Up community art project 3,112
BEEHFHEERERAA Street Soccer Hong Kong Limited
BHESRBEKRRIGE  AB=F To fund its Community Football for Future project for three years 2,581
REAXMHEBEERDLERAA The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited
BEHEINE ItE b EESE To fund its Village Enclave Cultural Heritage Scheme 2,169
XALHEERAA HULU Culture Limited
BEIHT B o« BEL 518 To fund its Heritage X Arts X Design Walk Plus 2,102
EBRARBNPOERAT Hong Kong Creative Arts Centre Limited
BOHEEEE 225 EMTE To fund the Jockey Club Black Box Theatre Subsidy Scheme 1,904
BEEERESSHRAT Young Artists Development Foundation Limited
BERHAFEHENEERSTTE To fund its painting education programme for the underprivileged 1,884
ERBREHKRRES Special Olympics Hong Kong
BOHERSEAREREE To fund its Special Olympics golf development project 1,778
BEROREEHBEERAT Audio Description Association (Hong Kong) Limited
BPE-TEIEBOMTETE  AH=F To fund its “On-the-Move” audio description programme for the visually 1,677
impaired for three years
EREERESHE Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association
BRHIEMEEBReEEE To fund its Mei Ho House Hong Kong Spirit Learning project 1,113
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